
Kermit Williams, District 7 
President 
Randy Carter, District 4 
President Pro Tern 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

Patrice Waterman, District 1 
George Williams, DistricL2 
Mary Pietila, District 3 
Gloria Miller, District 5 
Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents, fostering the vision of a family-jhendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

Website: http://pontiac.mi.us/council/meeting agendas and minutes/index.php 

FORMAL MEETING 
March 3, 2020 

6:00P.M. 
142nd Session of the 10th Council 

Call to order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of the Minutes 
1. February 25, 2020 

Subcommittee Reports 
2. Community Development- February 25, 2020 

3. Finance- February 11, 2020 

4. Law/50th District- February 25, 2020 

5. Public Safety- February 14, 2020 

Special Presentations (Presentations are limited to 10 minutes.) 
6. Pontiac Schools Bond and Sinking Fund 

Presentation Presenters: Kelley Williams, Superintendent, and James Graham, Business Director 

7. Detroit Institute of Arts (DIA) Millage 
Presentation Presenter: Eddie McDonald 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., Interim City Clerk 
Office of the City Clerk 47450 Woodward Pontiac, Michigan 48342 Phone (248) 758-3200 
Website: http:/ /pontiaccityclerk.com 



8. Proposed Request for Proposal (RFP) for Management of Phoenix Center Amphitheater 
Presentation Presenters: Mayor Deirdre Waterman and Dan Ringo, Interim DPW Director 

Recognition of Elected Officials 

Agenda Address 

Resolutions 
Department of Public Works (DPW) 

9. Resolution to auth01ize the Mayor to sign an "as-needed" cbntract with Pipeline Management Co., Inc. for 
Stonn Sewer Maintenance and Repairs for one year, with three years of optional extensions 

10. Resolution to acknowledge and accept the Phoenix Center Parking Garage A/E Selection Committee's 
recommendation, which satisfied the City's RFP process, completed comprehensive bid reviews and 
interviews; and to award the Professional Engineering and Architectural Services contract for the Phoenix 
Center to IDS in the amount of $659,000 (5.68%), with a Not to Exceed Cost of Reimbursable Expenses of 
$13,000. 

Finance 
11. Resolution to commit the $540,000.00 that the City has collected in Medical Marihuana Application Fees 101-

000-478.001 to Depaiiment 255 Medical Marihuana Applications. (The City Clerk and Finance Director are 
working out the details. The City Clerk is requesting that this item be deferred for one week.) 

Planning 
12. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-11] for Parcel No. 64-14-18-351-012 to 

amend the cmTent site zoning C-4 Suburban Commercial to M-1 Light Manufacturing with CR Conditional 
Rezoning 

13. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 20-01] for Parcel No. 64-14-21-302-001 to 
amend the cmTent site zoning R-1 One Family Dwelling to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling 

14. Resolution to authorize the Mayor to enter into an expanded Service Agreement with Wade Trim in order to 
augment and promptly serve the growing number of construction projects, as outlined in their January 16, 2020 
co1Tespondence. (This item was referred to the Finance Subcommittee on February 18, 2020.) 

Mayoral Monthly Reports 
15. Monthly Check Register 

(The check registers for January 24 and 31, 2020; and February 7, 2020 are attached. The check 
registers for February 14 and 21, 2020 have not been posted on the website) 

16. Staff Changes Report 
(The January and February reports was not submitted by the Mayor's Office.) 

1 7. City Credit Card Statement 
(The December, January and February credit card statements were not submitted by the Mayor's 
Office.) 

Public Comment 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 

Adjournment 





February 25, 2020 Study 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

141'1 Session of the Tenth Council 

A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, 
February 25, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Roll Call 
Members Present: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams and K. Williams. 
Members Absent: Carter and Waterman. 
Mayor Waterman was absent Deputy Mayor Jane Bais-DiSessa was present in the Mayor's absence. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 
20-78 Excuse Councilmembers Randy Carter and Patrice Waterman for personal reasons. 
Moved 1;,y Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson G. Williams. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams and K. Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Council President Pro-Tern Randy Catier arrived at 6:06 p.m. 

Approval of the Agenda 
20-79 Approval of the Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks. 

20-80 
Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Suspend the Rules. Moved by Councilperson g. Williams and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

20-81 Motion to remove item #5 (Resolution for wide track loop proposal.) from the 
agenda. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

1 



February 25, 2020 Study 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Approval of Minutes 
20-82 Approve meeting minutes for February 18, 2020. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and 
second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Introduction of Matt Gibbs - Special Counsel for Community and Economic Development 

Public Comment 
Eighteen ( 18) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

Resolution 
20-83 
G. Williams. 

City Clerk 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and G. Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

20-84 Resolution to approve a budget amendment for fiscal year 2019/20200 to establish 
account 101-191-731-003 computer equipment in the Elections Dept. budget; and to transfer 
$13,000.00 from account 101-191-702-000 salaries and wages in the Election Dept. budget to 
account 101-191-731-003 computer equipment to cover the cost of purchasing 25 new laptops for 
the Electronic poll book at voting precincts. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Pietila. 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2019-2020 budget on June 25, 2019; and 
Whereas, the adopted FY 2019-2020 General Fund (101) Elections Dept. (191) budget includes an 
appropriation for salaries and wages account 101-191-702.000; and 
Whereas, the City Clerk is requesting that Finance establish account 101-191-731.003 computer 
equipment in the Elections Dept. budget; and 
Whereas, the City Clerk is requesting to transfer $13,000.00 from account 101-191-702.000 to account 
101-191-731.003 to cover the cost of purchasing 25 new laptops for the Electronic poll book at voting 
precincts; and 
Whereas, this transfer is necessary to ensure that residents in Pontiac will be able to vote at voting 
precincts on March 10, 2020 in the Presidential Primary Election; and 

2 



February 25, 2020 Study 

Whereas, section 5.106 of the Charter states "after adoption of the appropiiations ordinance, and upon at 
least one week's notice in a newspaper of general circulation in the City, the Council by a resolution of 
five members, may amend such ordinance to authorize the transfer of an unused balance appropriated for 
one purpose to another purpose, or to appropriate available revenues not previously appropiiated. "; and 
Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the City Council hereby approves a budget amendment for fiscal 
year 2019-2020 to establish account 101-191-731.003 computer equipment in the Elections Dept. budget 
and transfer $13,000.00 from account 101-191-702.000 to account 101-191-731.003. 

20-85 
Pietila. 

Ayes: Caiier, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams and K. Williams 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams and Carter 
No: None 

· Motion Carried. 

20-86 Received communication #12 - #14 from the Mayor's Office. Moved by 
Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Adjournment 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Council President Kemrit Williams adjourned the meeting at 8: 10 p.m. 

3 

GARLAND S DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 





COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SUB-COMMITTEE NOTES 
February 25, 2020 

In attendance: 
Council members: Chairperson Gloria J'viiller and President Kermit \v'illiams 
Deputy Mayor: Jane Bais-Disessa 
Pl~nning Manager: Vernon Gustafsson 

Start: 12:04 p.m. 

I. Old Business- Landlord/ Tenant Fees 
o Discussion regarding fee rentals and maybe lowering the rental fees and increasing the cost of the penalties. 
o As it relates to landlord evictions, Councilwoman \YI aterman suggested implementing an ordinance that would 
allow the City to remove items placed on the street by landlords after an eviction. The cost would be passed on 
to the landlord via ticket. If the ticket is not paid, the fee would then be applied to the property, just like grass 
cutting. 
o J'vlike \Ylilson to provide current fees. 
o Currently, tl1e cost to register an unoccupied pmperty is more than an unoccupied property. If tl1e property 
is not a homestead or a rental property, the fee is $500.00. 
o Fees from Amazon will go into enterprise fund as inspection fees do not go into general fund. 
o Wade Trim is contracted for building and safety. 
o How can the fund accommodate all operations? 
o Site plans, variances are separate. 
o The Deputy Mayor reviews monthly reports which include the number of homes assessed by each employee, 
the work performed and what they were paid. 

A. Other Issues 
o The Mayor indicated that there are currently over 30 projects coming into the City. A list of projects to be 
provided. 
o The Ultimate Soccer Arena is up for sale and the asking price is $28 million. 
o Unity Park will attend the next Community Development subcommittee meeting. The organization is seeking 
a 10% PILOT. 
o Are there requirements as to how gas stations are allowed to operate in the City? 
o There appears to be to many gas stations in close proximity to one another and by residential areas. 
o On Joslyn, there are 4 gas stations next to each other. 
o There are site plan reviews, so there are requirements, but no distance requirements. 
o The FED EX tanks are above ground, but the tanks at the gas stations are under ground. 
o There are environmental concerns. Research to be conducted to see how other municipalities address the 
issue. 
o The City of Birmingham has a drive-thru ordinance which requires businesses to have a special exemption 
permit. 
o Distance requirement and land use for gas stations. 
o Consideration: future land use and ordinance requirement to allow citizens to be involved and more 
requirements and or things to consider for planning (a review of the ordinance in Detroit). 

II. Animal Ordinance 
o City Attorney to appear at Law/S0th subcommittee meeting to discuss. 
o Ad Hoc special committee to address animal ordinance and review long tem1 and short term goals. 
o Silver dome is coming along and an update will be provided soon. 

Adjourned 12:55 p.m. 

1 





In attendance: 

FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE NOTES 

February 11, 2020 

Council members: Chairperson Patrice \v'aterman and President Kermit \v'illiams 
Mayor: Deirdre \v'aterman 
Deputy Mayor Jane Bias-DiSessa 
Plante Moran, CPA: Irwin \v'illiams 

Sta11 time: 4:06 p.m. 

New Business 

1. Process of preparing for 2020/2021 budget has begun. Reviewing staff budget projections for next year. 
2. Preparation of business plan for Phoenix Center in progress. 
3. Purchasing policies are being updated. Making sure that they are correct, backed up properly and reviewing 

the process and procedures. Currently three quotes are required for every wok order. 
4. Laser Fiche is being updated for all contracts. Reviewing contracts in advance and 90 days before 

expiration. 

Review of December 2019 financial activities 

1. Cash summary by fund as of 12/31/2019 
2. Comparative balance sheet for all funds as of 12/31/2019 
3. Revenue and expenditure report by fund (summary) 12/31/2019 
4. Income Tax collections-month and fiscal year (totals) 12/31/2019 
5. Property tax collection report for the period ending 12/31/2019 

Items of interest: 

• The total cash and investments in all funds for the City as of 12/31/2019 was $50,950,165. The General fund 
portion of the total amount of cash is $17,673,741 compared to $17,611,854 the prior month. This amount 
includes the accumulated general fund, fund balance as of 6/30/2019. 

• The general fund accumulated fund balance as of 7/1/2019 was $18,585,011 

• The PhoenL'l: Center Settlement payment $2,800,000 

• Non-spendable fund balance $30,209 

• Committed for Youth Center Purchase $3,200,000 

• Net revenues over expenditures $3,621,508 

• Unassigned fund balance as of 12/31/19 $16,176,310 

• The general fund unassigned fund balance was $12.55 million, the current balance sheet as of 12/31/2019 is 
reporting an increase of unassigned fund balance of approximately $3.62 million resulting in an unassigned fund 
balance of$16.17 million. This increase is due to greater than expected receipts from property taxes and income 
taxes. 

1 



• Income tax collections for the current fiscal year vs prior fiscal year. Income taxes collected thru December 
31, 2019 were $6,984,313.65 compared to $6,387,994.23 in December 2018 and an increase of $596,319. 

Over Budget Items and Variance Explanations: 

• The General fund is 100% over budget. 

• Local Streets 54% of budget: local streets were approved in the prior fiscal year, but not completed by yearend 
in the amount of: $700,929. Council has not approved the budget amendment rollover. 

• Sports Youth Director: reclassified from salaried to hourly resulting in $4,125 of unbudgeted over time. Also, 
the Youth Rec. vacancy of Rec Manager caused the Ivfanager to work extra hours and assume other duties 
totaling, $5,758. 

• Youth Rec Building: not purchased. Lease of facility not budgeted for. Monthly lease payment of $26,000 is 
an unbudgeted amount. The total cost for the year is $312,00. Also, office supplies are at 124% of budget, 
$1,700 budgeted, actual $2,108. 

• Iviaintenance wages are over budget. 

• Drug Enforcement: cell phones total budget $15,240, actual $12,461. 

• Capital Improvements Fund at 65.65% of the budget. 

a. Timing differences at 50th District Court House Renovations 
b. unbudgeted repair of mausoleum-Ottawa Cemetery $28,000 and 
c. unbudgeted repairs replacement of boilers at 3 fire stations $69,770. 

• Legal Se1-vices: the budget was cut $131,034 from the prior year. Budget this year is $200,000 the year to date 
actual is $287,445 (prosecution 50th district $108,452, general legal se1-vices $168,515 and other $10,478. 

• Amazon: will local contractors be able to participate in Amazon project? There was a meet and greet with 
Amazon and local contractors 

• Marilmana: there were 106 marilmana applications submitted and approximately $540,000 was received. 

Adjourned: 5:35 p.m. 

2 





LAW /50TH DISTRICT SUB-COMMITTEE NOTES 
February 25, 2020 

In attendance: 
Council members: Chair Gloria lviiller 
Chief Judge 50th District Court: Cynthia Walker 
Court Administrator: Lynette Ward 
Deputy Mayor Jane Bia~-Disessa 
City Attorney: Anthony Chubb 

Start time: 4:05 p.m. 
Michigan Indigent Fund 

o Resolved. 
o Due to the MIDC, increased prosecutorial work, but the MIDC fund is completely separate. 
o lvIIDC flyer to be provided to -the Cable Director and to Council members for CDC groups. 
o Regional MIDC Administrator's article highlights Pontiac and Royal Oak as both doing really well with the 
MIDC program. The article further reports that since the MIDC program was started, 879 bench warrants have 
been dismissed and 1,695 cases have been dismissed. 
o Two part-time officers were hired to facilitate attorney-client meetings. 
o A draft of an article written by Chief Justice Bridget Mary McCormack of the Michigan Supreme Court 
indicates that as it relates to Access to Justice, the civil side should also be included. This may take into account 
landlord tenant cases as many tenants do not have the ability to get assistance in defending against landlords. 
In the past, Legal Aid would act as the clearing house and would assist tenants in getting help with their cases 
from other organizations. However, Legal Aid as well as other organizations have been dependent on grants 
and other funding sources. 
o There is a new State Court Administrator, Judge Thomas Boyd from Kalamazoo. Judge Boyd is fabulous. 
He was a District Court Judge for 15 years, so he can relate and has a community setvice initiative. 

Gate 
o The gate at the Coutt is a DP\'(! issue. The gate that opens from the inside is what gets stuck and not the _ 
outside gate which is opened with a temote key fob. 

Repairs at the Courthouse 
o Repairs at the court are coming along well. The public testrooms are beautiful. However, the locks on the 
outside of the public restrooms on the second floor currently do not lock. The employee restrooms remain 
unchanged. 

Animal Ordinance 
o Discharging of a firearm is a chargeable offense and on the books. 
o The Deputy Mayor will talk to Oakland County to determine what services they can provide. 
o Maybe tl1e city can enter into a contract witl1 Oakland County to provide services. 
o Attomey Chubb to review Emma's Clause from Detroit which was recently implemented. 
o To be determined as to what parts of tl1e Farmington Hill ordinance can be used as there are cost factors 
which include an animal control officer and a location. 
o Can the city adopt an ordinance without having to have a physical location? 
o A consideration: funds to be allocated for the ordinance. 
o The animal control facility was just expanded across from the circuit court courthouse. 
o The Animal League is in the city. 
o The animal ordinance is to go back to the Community Development subcommittee. 

Adjourned: 4:40 p.m. 

1 





Public Safety Subcommittee for January reports. 
Held 2-14-2020@ 9:30 A.M 

Present was 

Star EMS- Charles Hughes, OCSD Sgt. Law 
Waterford Fire Marshal Interim Captain Phebus, Liaison White 

Absent was Council ProTem Randy Carter, Councilman George Williams, Deputy Mayor Jane Bias
Dissesa, and Mayor D. Waterman. 

The meeting was called to order at 9:30 a.m. 

All were accounted for; 

Mr. Hughes reported 7 car seats were checked, no new units were required. 6 new Basic EMTS were 
hired and 6 new are currently in place. 

We did notice an increase in calls dispatched of about 33, Breathing calls are raised, however the 
weather conditions could be a contributing factor, again anything on the list is how It was called in and 
documented. A Dr. may have diagnosis for the patient differently, once seen and tested. Star would not 
know. 

The Reports were distributed, we discussed response times and the comments made at the council 
meetings, and how variables play a part in response times. 

Sgt reported during January's tag and Drag there were 243 cars tagged, 19 ticketed and 25 towed. 

I did inquire as to Section 1 to find out 33 were tagged, 2 were ticketed for illegal parking, none towed 
from Section 1. There is a restriction on stop signs of 10 feet and 15 feet for fire hydrants as well as 18 
feet from the curb. All can result in tickets, as well as parking over the sidewalks. 

Captain Phebus did share there is still testing for the fire Marshall as he is only the interim at this time. 
Mr. White explained ACT 78 which is a Union matter required whenever a position has been vacate as 
the Fire Marshall's has by Deputy Chief Wallace and is being filled. 
Anything else is on the reports, and should be self explanatory. 



I 

2495 Crescent Lake Road O \IVaterford, MI 48329 
Phone: 248.673.0405 ° Fax: 248.674.4095 

www.waterfordmLgov 
lVJ!atthew IT, Covey Fire Chief" Car! j. ·walface Deputy Fire Chief 

MONTHLY FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT 
For the City of Pontiac 

January 2020 
Total Pontiac Fire Station calls - month: 438 Average Response Time 5.23 per call 

Total calls for Pontiac Stations - YTD: 438 

City Calls: Fires: 10 EMS: 217 False Alarms: 29 Other: 101 

Pontiac YTD, Fires: 13 3.39% EMS: 262 68.23% False Alarms: 318.07% Other: 78 Total: 384 

Month Count 

FS-6 Fires -4 

EMS-64 

FS-7: Fires - 6 

EMS-98 

FS-8: Fires~ 3 

EMS-62 

FS-9: Fires-0 

EMS-36 

Response Times VTD average 

5.50 

5.58 

4.53 

5.19 

5.04 

5.04 

5.09 

4.08 

,., 

VTD Count 

4 

64 

6 

98 

3 

62 

0 

36 

Fire Injuries to personnel: 0 Fire Injuries to civilian: 0 
Incidents for month: 
Comparing to 2019: Fire Calls are down by 23.53%. 

Notable Event: 

o Took delivery of two inspector Pickup trucks 
• Ordered a new fire Engine through Sutphen Corp out of Ohio 12 to 14 month expected delivery 

o Received delivery of 22 sets of body armor and helmets and EMS equipment for Active Shooter Events 

e Received 7 seek thermal imaging Cameras 

e Ordered 4 new Positive Pressure Fans (used to evacuate Smoke from a building) 

® Testing materials out for the following positions, Captain, Battalion Chief, Inspector, Inspector Captain, 
and Fire Marshal 



Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 

48340 4.9 
48341 5 
48342 4.9 

Monthly 4.93 

48340 
48341 
48342 

Monthly 

; 



D!§IP'ATCIHI IDec-:ll.9 Jan-20 

Abdominal Pain 53 24 

airmedical transport 

Allergies 8 3 

ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 4 7 
Animal bites 1 1 
Assault 27 34 

Invalid assist 5 8 

Pedestrian struck by Auto 

Back Pain 14 10 

Breathing Problems 71 142 
Burns 2 1 
Cardiac Arrest 18 18 
Chest pain 52 85 
Choking 2 3 

CO poisoning 1 
Seizures 124 55 ' 
Diabetic Issues 28 22 
Drowning 1 
Eiectrocution 

Eye issues 3 3 

Fainting 

Fall Victim 61 60 
Fever 3 

Fire 1 
Headache 4 4 
Heart Problems 11 13 
Heat/Cold Exposures 3 

Hemorrhage from Laceration 18 26 
Industrial Accident 

Medical alarms 12 17 
MCI 

lngested Poison 

Non Emergent requests 



Overdose 

Pregnancy/Childbirth 

Psychiatric Problems 

Respiratory Arrest 

"Sick" Person 

Standby 

stab/Gunshot Wound 

Stroke/CV A 

Traffic Accidents 

Palliative care 

Traumatic Injury 

Unconscious/unknown cause 

UNKNOWN 

"Person DOWN" 

Sexual Assault 

Well Person Ck 

total 

-") 
, . ~ 

39 
5 

43 

224 

3 
14 

33 
31 
15 

44 

13 

1 

989 

--,.,JV • f ;;·r 

27 

14 
36 

185 

5 

22 
61 

33 
13 

54 

9 

23 

1 

1022 

r7, 
// 

' 

.,. 



I 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable City Council President Williams and City Council Members 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

Anthony Chubb, City Attorney; Dan Ringo, DPW Interim Director; John Balint, 
Engineer; and Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

February 26, 2020 

RFP for the Phoenix Center Amphitheater Venue Management. 

For your information and review, attached is the draft Request for Proposal (RFP) for the 
Phoenix Center Amphitheater Venue Management. 

To ensure the success of the Phoenix Center Amphitheater, it is our belief that experienced 
management is necessary. As such, the draft RFP seeks proposals from experienced 
entities that have successfully managed similar type facilities. 

Let me know if any questions arise, or if additional information is needed. 

DR 

Attachment 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

For 

PHOENIX CENTER AMPHITHEATER 
VENU'E MANAGEMENT 

Prepared by: 

City of 
Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

City of Pontiac RFP No. 

~20 --

March 2020 



INFORMATION TO PROPOSERS 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS RFP NO. -20 

PHOENIX CENTER AMPHITHEATER VENUE MANAGEMENT 

ISSUE DATE: 

MAIL OR SPECIAL 
DELIVERY REPONSES TO: 
CITY OF PONTIAC 
47450 WOODWARD AVENUE 
PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

DELIVER PROPOSALS TO: 

PROPOSALS MUST BE 
RECEIVED: 

NOT LATER THAN: 

GARLAND DOYLE 
CITY CLERK 
CITY OF PONTIAC 

MARCH __ _, 2020 

CITY CLERK 

SAME AS ABOVE 

----------~ 

3:00 P.M. LOCAL TIME 

2020 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

Sealed Proposals for the City of Pontiac RFP No. _._-20 PHOENIX CENTER AMPHITHEATER VENUE 
MANAGEMENT, addressed to the City of Pontiac, will be received at the Office ofthe City Clerk, 47450 
Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 48342 until 3:00 pm on ____ ~ 2020, and then will be publicly 
opened and read. Any proposals received after the time and date specified will not be considered. 

Please submit two (2) originals and (2} two flash drives with one single PDF file of the entire proposal 
package on each flash drive: Proposal packages are to be enclosed in sealed envelopes, clearly marked 
on the outside either "PROPOSAL FOR RFP No. _-20 PHOENIX CENTER AMPHITHEATER VENUE 
MANAGEMENT1' addressed and delivered to the City Clerk at the address noted above. 

The City of Pontiac is seeking proposals to provide venue management of the Phoenix Center Amphitheater. 
The City will consider proposals that include a broad range of business, financial, and organizational structures 
and relevant experience in event and facilities management, while providing these services at a competitive 
cost. 

Request for Proposal package may be obtained from the City of Pontiac website. 

A pre-proposal meeting will be held in the City Clerk office on----~ 2020, at 11:00 A.M. Meeting 
attendance in person is mandatory. 

The successful Proposer will be required furnishing necessary additional bonds for the faithful performance of 
the Contract, as prescribed in the Request for Proposal. The Bidder will be required to furnish documentation 
showing that he/she is in compliance with the licensing requirements of the State and the provisions of 
Chapter__, Section_ of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pontiac. Compliance with these provisions 
is required before the Contractor can enter into the agreement contained in the Contract Documents. 
Specifically, Proposer shall demonstrate that he/she holds, as a minimum, the following licenses and 
certificates required by State Statute and local codes. 

All insurance contracts, and certificates of insurance shall be either executed by or countersigned by a licensed 
resident agent of the Surety or Insurance Company having his place of business in the State of Michigan, and 
in all ways complying with the insurance laws of the State of Michigan. Further, the said Surety or Insurance 
Company shall be duly licensed and qualified to do business in the State of Michigan. 

Before a Contract will be awarded for the work contemplated herein, the CITY will conduct such investigation 
as is necessary to determine the performance record and ability of the apparent successful Proposer to 
perform the size and type of work specified under this Contract. Upon request, the Proposer shall submit such 
information as deemed necessary by the CITY to evaluate the Proposer's qualifications. 

For information concerning the proposed work, please contact Garland Doyle, City Clerk, by email at 
gdoyle@pontiac.mi.us. 



As stated above at the time of the Proposal submittal the Proposer must provide satisfactory 

documentation of State Licenses. The Bidder shall furnish documentation showing that he/she is in 

compliance with the licensing requirements, with City licenses procured within ten days of the award. The 

successful Proposer must also be able to satisfy the City Attorney as to such insurance coverage and legal 

requirements as may be demanded by the Proposal in question. The City may reject bids for any of the 

following reasons: (1) for budgetary reasons, (2) if the bidder misstates or conceals a material fact in its 

bid, (3) if the bid does not strictly conform to the law or is non- responsive to the bid requirements, (4) if 

the bid is conditional, (5) if a change of circumstances occurs making the purpose of the bid unnecessary 

to the City, or (6) if such rejection is in the best interest of the City. The City may also waive any minor 

informalities or irregularities in any bid. 

* * * * * * 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ........................................................................................................ . 

Table of Contents ................................................................................................................................ . 

List of Appendices ............................................................................................................................... . 

1. Project Description ....... _ .......................................................................................................... . 
1.1.1 Amphitheater Facility .................................................................................................. . 
1.1.2 Venue Management Qualifications ............................................................................. .. 
1.1.3 Anticipated Scope of Services .............................................................. ." ....................... . 

1.6 Evaluation Criteria .................................................................................................................. . 
1.6.1 Qualifications Presentation and Cost Proposal Presentation ........................................ . 
1.6.2 Evaluation Panel Process ............................................................................................. . 
1.6.3 Basis of Scoring ...................................... _ ..................................................................... . 

Appendices 

Phoenix Center Drawings 



1. Pro. ect Descri tion 

The City of Pontiac is seeking qualifications of parties interested in venue management of the PHOENIX 
CENTER Amphitheater. The City will consider qualifications that include a broad range of business, 
financial, and organizational structures and relevant experience in event and facilities management. 
Background 

1.1.1 Amphitheater Facility 

The Amphitheater is owned by the City of Pontiac and is located within the PHOENIX CENTER Park in 
Pontiac, Michigan. The open-air covered stage measures 60 x 40 feet. Refer to attached site plan for 
facility layout. The Amphitheater can accommodate approximately 3,500 patrons with reserved seating 
and spacious lawn seating. Features include: 

. • 500 portable seats on hard surface 
• Tiered lawn seating 
• Covered stage with rigging structure 
• Walkways and ramps including ADA accessible walkways and ramps 
• Site Utilities for electric power supply 
• Small Restroom with adequate port-a-let space 
• Temporary support spaces for dressing rooms, green room, showers, etc. 
• Vendor spaces including electrical service 
• RV - "Roady" parking 
• Paved handicap parking and grass priority/VIP parklng 
• Transit drop off. 

1.1.2 Venue Management Qualifications 

The City of Pontiac seeks a strategic, creative and passionate firm to provide venue management of the 
PHOENIX CENTER Amphitheater. lt desires a firm that has broad-based experience with concerts and 
with event management overall to create other entertaining, lively, fun community experiences at the 
amphitheater. The successful firm will have the proven ability to manage a broad range of events, 
understand long-term planning and have an innate ability to identify and secure sponsorship funding 
while creating and marketing programs to attract users and patrons alike. Demonstrated experience in 
working with a public agency or governmental entity is a plus. The Venue Manager will not act as a 
concert promoter. 

The Venue Manager will provide all services necessary so that events are financially self-sustaining; 
outsource all event related logistics, tasks, marketing, promotion and labor. The City of Pontiac expects 
the Venue Manager to work independently; however, the City may have supervisory and advisory 
involvement in day-to-day activities and will participate directly with approvals and in other areas as 
indicated. It is the intent of this RFQ to identify an independent Venue Ma'nager that will organize, and 
manage the overall operation of each event. The City of Pontiac reserves the right to have input on the 



overall strategy and will assist in outreach to stakeholders as may be necessary and will participate as 
required to make each event successful. The successful manager will have open and frequent 
communication with the City through a City employed "PHOENIX CENTER Park Event Coordinator". This 
coordinator will act as the main point of contact for the Venue Manager for coordinating all City 
services; required permits, licenses, insurance and indemnification, as well as coordination with other 
park activities, good neighbor policies, sound control, traffic/parking plans. 

1.1.3 Anticipated Scope of Services 

The Venue Manager will work independently to ensure accountability in the operation of the 
amphitheater while minimizing City involvement in event operations. The Venue Manager will be 
responsible for the administration, financial management, marketing, sponsorships, contracting for 
venue event operations, and coordination with city services. 

Administration 

Coordinate a master calendar of amphitheater events, bookings and venue operations which may be 
determined by the type of use: 

Open Venue- Non-exclusive use for large events with noise exemptions required. 
User is responsible for talent, advertising, stage crews, cost of all contracted and city services, city fees, 
any percentage revenues and any miscellaneous fees. 

Facility Rental- Non-exclusive use for smaller events i.e. local, community and non-profits. User is 
responsible for ta lent, advertising, sponsorships, cost of all contracted and City services, City venue fees, 
any percentage revenues and any miscellaneous fees. 

Free Events - Limited scope, duration, and number of attendees. User is responsible for talent, 
advertising, sponsorships, cost of all contracted services, venue fees. Some basic city services may be 
included in rental fee. 

The Venue Manager, in conjunction with the promoter/user, will determine all aspects of the venue set 
up, desired contracted services. A traffic plan, security plan, sound level plan and City services plan will 
be submitted to the City Event Coordinator for compliance with pre-established parameters, 
coordination and any additional approvals that may be necessary. 

Financial Management 

The Venue Manager will submit a financial management plan for the City's approval. The plan will 
include a five-year operational financial forecast; cash management; business controls and accounting 
procedures. The Venue Manager will provide periodic financial reporting. Key performance indicators 
will be established to that operations are financially stable and business plan goals are met. The Venue 
Manager will act as the city's fiduciary providing recommendations on venue use fees, ticket surcharges, 
revenue sharing, performance guaranties, and any other sources of revenue that will accrue to the 
financial benefit of the amphitheater. The Venue Manager will collect all up~front fees and settlement 
with promotors/users and vendors following each event. The Venue Manager will provide a financial 
accounting of each event and submit payment to the City as required pursuant to the venue 



management agreement. 

Marketing 

The Venue Manager must ensure usage is active and diverse with the goal to fully realize the 
amphitheater's economic potential. The Venue Manager will actively market the amphitheater to 
concert and event promoters and will develop community and other cultural programming. The Venue 
Manager will be responsible for developing and implementing a plan to engage public and priva'te 
fund raising; solicit event and venue sponsorships; advertising at the venue; pursuing grant opportunities 
and other funding sources. 

Venue Operations 

The Venue Manager will contract with Promoters/Talent/ Event Organizers for facility usage. The Venue 
Manager will ensure facility users contract with vetted service providers for necessary services, 
including, but not limited to: 

• Sound 
• Lighting 
• Ticketing/box office operations 
• VIP Services 
• Pre-post show VIP event 
• Talent support spaces for dressing rooms, green room, showers, etc. 
• Security 
• Event Staff 
• Food and Beverage Vendors 
• Merchandise Vendors 
•Seating-set up, cleanup on site and affected neighborhood areas 
• Private Security/Ushers 
• Transportation/wayfinding 
• Traffic/parking plan and control 
• Site Control: barricades, gates, points of entry 
• Sound levels: control, monitoring 
• Portable Sanitation 
•Trash/recycle on site and in neighborhood travel routes 

City Services 

The Venue Manager will act as liaison for promoters to plan and coordinate with the City for event 
services including, but not limited to: 

• Police 
• Fire 
• EMS/ First Aid 
• Permits, Licenses 
• Site map - event set up/clean up 
• Site Control - barricades/gates 
• Noise Exemption/Control/Monitoring 



.. Traffic Control 

1.6 Evaluation Criteria 

The CITY will convene an Evaluation Panel to conduct a review and ranking of Qualifications Proposals and 
Cost Proposals submitted in response to the Request for Proposal. The Evaluation Panel will consist of 
designated CITY staff and/or selected representatives of the CITY. The Evaluation Panel may be assisted 
by the following non-panel individuals: 

1. Reference Verifier - contacts and verifies references listed in the Statement of Qualifications and 
reports to the Evaluation Panel on findings on fact. 

2. Financial and Surety Advisor(s) - reports to the Evaluation Panel on the sufficiency and quality of 
financial information and creditworthiness, as well as and insurance documentation submitted 
with a Qualifications Proposal or Cost Proposal. 

3. Contact Person - serves as an information conduit between CITY staff, the Proposers and the 
Evaluation Panel. 

4. Legal Consultant - advises the Evaluation Panel on questions of law that may arise and ensures 
that the Panel, its members, and the actions and decisions of the panel do not violate existing 
law or CITY rules, regulations, policies and procedures. 

Evaluation of the Qualifications Proposal which includes qualifications and experience, and the Cost 
Proposal from each Proposer shall be based on evaluation criteria and procedures established within this 
document. The Evaluation Panel shall evaluate and score the two parts of the proposal from each 
Proposer and establish the final ranking of submittals received. 

1.6.1 Qua I ifications Presentation and Cost Proposal Presentation 

The two parts of the Proposal and required attachments shall be submitted to the CITY on or before the 
due date stated in the RFP solicitatior.i. The Proposer must identify any portions of the submittal that are 
proprietary. The contact person will review the submittals and make provisions for withholding 
proprietary documents from public record. 

Each member of the Evaluation Panel will receive a packet containing the Qualifications Proposa I of each 
Proposer. The Evaluation Panel will review and score the Qualifications Proposals according to the scoring 
criteria which follows. The Proposer shall ensure that the required elements of the similar project 
descriptions and personnel experience are adequately explained in the text with emphasis on how the 
particular element was performed in conjunction with the overall project. The mere listing of elements 
without specific details in the body of the description will negatively impact the scoring for the project. 

1.6.2 Evaluation Panel Process 

The Evaluation Panel is subject to the state law and CITY rules and regulations. Michigan Statute Section 
286-011 ("Government in Sunshine Law") requires that any meeting (including telephone conversations) 
between two or more members of a public board or commission, for the purpose of discussing any matter 
on which foreseeable action may be taken by the board or commission, must be publicly noticed and open 



to attendance by the general public. 

Meetings of the Evaluation Panel shall be as follows: 

• Initial Orientation Meeting: Panel members will receive a copy of each Qualifications 
Proposal. The panel will select a Chairman. The Reference Verifier, Contact Person and 
Financial/Security Adviser will be identified. 

After the initial meeting, each Panel member will independently review the Qualifications 
Proposals for scoring in accordance with the established evaluation criteria. Questions or 
comments a Panel member has relative to any Proposal shall be directed to the Contact Person. 
Additional meetings of the Panel may be convened to initiate discussions or to develop and direct 
requests for information to one or more of the Proposers, the Legal Consultant, the Reference 
Verifier, the Financial and Security Advisor(s}, or CITY staff. 

• Ranking Meetings: After the Panel members have completed their individual evaluations, 
the Panel will reconvene to score and conduct a ranking of the Qualifications Proposals. The 
Chairman will total and average the scores of each Panel member and calculate the score for each 
Proposer. This will establish a numeric ranking for each Proposer based on the Qualifications 
Proposal and attachments. Additional meetings of the Panel may be convened if deemed 
necessary. 

After the initial ranking of the Qualifications Proposals is finalized, the Chairman will open each 
Cost Proposal comprised of Cost Proposal, Bid Bond, and Preliminary Schedule of Values. 

• Final Ranking: The Cost Proposal Score will then be added to the Qualifications Proposal 
Evaluation Score and the Evaluation Panel shall recommend contract award to the Proposer with 
the highest total score. This action will end the duties of the Evalua.tion Panel. 

1.6.3 Basis of Scoring 

A ranking of Proposers submitting, with higher point totals being desirable, shall be based on weighted 
scoring criteria for the Proposals as follows: 

Qualifications Proposal Points (Maximum 300 Points) 

Part 1 - letter of Transmittal and Company Background No Points 

Part JI - Qualifications/Experience (Maximum 150 Points} 
Proposer's experience in providing proposed services, including, but not limited to, 
demonstrating relevant venue management experience, established relationships 
with concert promoters & exam pies of sponsorship development. 0 - 40 

Qualifications and experience of Key Personnel assigned to the Project O - 20 

Number of other venues that all or some of proposed team 
have worked together O -10 



Familiarity with local conditions and community involvement. Provide a description 
of your local community knowledge and relationships that will offer insight on your 
ability to solicit sponsorships and other community support. 0- 20 

Provide a description of your vision for the PHOENIX CENTER Amphitheater and how this venue can drive 
economic development through tourism (based upon the caliber and variety of events). Give examples of 
some of the groups/events you think are realistic to book at 
the amphitheater. O - 40 

Provide a one-page conclusion on why your organization should be 
selected as Venue Manager for the City of Pontiac PHOENIX CENTER 
Amphitheater 0- 20 

Part Ill - Draft Financial & Facility Management Plan (Proforma} (Maximum 75 Points) Proposer's 
approach to managing and marketing the Venue 
Provide a typical/draft financial management plan which shall include cash management, business 
controls, and accounting procedures for booking fees, performance guaranties and 
settlements with concert promoters following events O - 75 

Part IV- Financial Stability {Maximum 50 Points) 
Provide a copy of Proposer's most recent financial statement 

Size of venues successfully managed in the past 5 years 

Part V - Past Performance (Reference Verification} (Maximum 25 Points) 

Cost Proposal -Annual Cost to City (200 Points} 

Lowest Annual Cost to City 

0-25 

0-25 

0-25 

200 points 

Total Possible Points ---------------------------------------------------------500 Points 





-------_-_._- .. _-___ ~ -·---· ----
-·------•;:_;:,-_,_ .. _. __ -··---···•:.:.·,-

--··--·--·"-•·-.··---·;:•---.·-·-.- .-.--:• -· .· ... -- .. ". - .,._ - - -. --. --::--: ·.-::-- -. - - - -~.-:-: - ,_. ..... ·. - -· -- - ~ '. ., ·.: : - . --- ---.. ---. 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

TO: Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

FROM: Dan Ringo, DPW Interim Director 

DATE: February 14, 2020 

RE: Contract with Pipeline Management 

The City, through City Council approva[, awarded a contract to Pipeline Management Co., Inc. in 
early 2019. That award was based on the MiDeal contract Pipeline Management already had in 
place with Oakland County Water Resources Commissioners Office (WRC). Recently, that 
contract with WRC has expired and has been re-bid. Through this re-bid process Pipeline 
Management has been awarded a new contract. This new contract has been designated 
CONTRACT NUMBER 005952. 

MiDeal allows Michigan Cities, Townships, Villages, Counties, School Districts, Universities and 

Community Colleges to use State contracts to buy goods and services. 

Because our contract for storm drain system investigation, maintenance and repair has recently 
expired, the Department of Public Works is in need of a contractor to perform these needed 
functions. 

This work is time sensitive in order to begin design for major and local road projects as well as 
maintaining the integrity of the existing storm drainage system. 

The City has met with Pipeline Management and they have agreed to honor the pricing provided 
to WRC. Based on current need, City would like to enter into a contract with Pipeline Management 
co., Inc. for as-needed storm sewer maintenance and repairs. Budget for this maintenance work 
can be found in the Major and local Street Funds (202,203) under Storm Sewer. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

The City of Pontiac has reviewed pricing provided by Oakland County 
MiDeal and determined that the current contract (ID No.005992) 
between Pipeline Management and WRC would provide the City with 
needed capacity, and; 

City staff has reviewed the contract documents and met with Pipeline 
Management, who has agreed to extent current pricing to the City, 

and; 



WHEREAS, Pipeline Management Co., Inc. has performed these necessary services 
to the City for the past several years and has proved to be effective and 
efficient, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, The P0:1tiac City Council authorizes the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to enter 
into an as-needed contract with Pipeline Management Co., Inc. for 
Storm Sewer Maintenance and Repairs for one year, with three years of 
optional extensions. 

DR/jc 
Attachments 

i 



- -. --·--·-- -- -----"C..•.I~-·-------·------··-··"...C...--------. , -·-·-· .. -.·.-,-.-.·.,.-.·--.· .. ·,.•-·o.·,,.-,·-7.·· -.·.· .. ~--~ · ... • • · · --.-.,.·c.·ccc~c,.-.,,.· .. -~--• 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

CONTRACT FOR STORM DRAIN AND STRUCTURE CLEANING, CLOSED 

CIRCUIT TV INSPECTION AND RELATED WORK 

CONTRACTOR: PIPELINE MANAGEMENT CO., INC. 

THIS AGREEMENT IS A RESULT OF UTILIZING THE COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

CREATED BY THE COMPLIANCE OFFICE-PURCHASING OFFICE, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN. 

Pipeline Management hereby agrees to perform certain services related to storm 

drain and structure cleaning, television inspection (CCTV) and related work for the 

City of Pontiac. 

This work shall be performed in accordance with the standards and specifications 

as defined in a certain contract between Pipeline Management Co., Inc. and 

Oakland County, Michigan. This contract being identified as: 

CONTRACT NUMBER: 005952 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 1/21/2020 

EVENT# 004793 

EXPIRATION DATE: 1/20/2023 

This contract shall become, by reference, the contract entered into by Pipeline 

Management and the City of Pontiac and each party agrees to the terms and 

conditions set forth in this document. 

As consideration for the performance of the services rendered and in accordance 

with the contract, the city agrees to compensate the contractor the amounts as 

shown in the Exhibit attached as the last three pages of the contract as follows: 

1. Equipment Rate Payment Schedule (Event No. 004793 - Bid Date 12/12/2020) 

2. Labor Rate Payment Schedule (Event No. 004793 - Bid Date 12/12/2020) 

3. Project Specific Materials, Equipment Rentals and Subcontract Payment 

Schedule (Event No. 004793 - Bid Date 12/12/2020} 

Sheet 1 of 2 

,_. 
; 

;-

1· 

i 
I 
I_ .. 



Sheet 2 of 2 

CONTRACT FOR STORM DRAIN AND STRUCTURE CLEANING, CLOSED 

CIRCUIT TV INSPECTION AND RELATED WORK 

Whenever a term utilized in the above-mentioned contract referring to Oakland 

County or any entity within the County Government it shall be understood that 

term shall refer to and mean the City of Pontiac. 

WITNESSES: 

1. 

2. 

1. 

2. 

2/19/20 

JB 

S://DPW/Storm Drain/2020 Storm & Catch Basin Maintenance 

FOR THE CONTRACTOR: 

Jacob A. Di Ponio 

PIPELINE MANAGEMENT CO. INC. 
2673 E. Maple Road 
Milford, Ml 48381 
Telephone: 248. 

FOR THE CITY OF PONTIAC: 

Deirdre Waterman 

Mayor, City of Pontiac 

47450 Woodward Ave. 

Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Date 

Date 



L. BROOKS PATTERSON, OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

COUNTY MICHIGAN 
COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Current Contract Holder Opt In 

Pamela L. Weipert, CPA, CIA 
Compliance Officer 

The Oakland County Purchasing Unit has developed an intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 
Program for use by other Michigan government entities and school districts, for the procurement of 
goods and/or services. 

The purpose of this program is to obtain an overall lower cost for all participants by combining volumes, 
increasing purchasing power, and realizing efficiencies. Oakland County requires that the vendor 
awarded the contract will authorize it's availability on the County's Cooperative program website. 

All purchasing requests by government entities will be conducted between that entity and the contract 
holder; purchase orders should be submitted & invoiced directly. Payments will be remitted by the 
ordering government entities on a direct and individual basis with the contracted vendor, in accordance 
with the contract pricing and terms. 

By signing this Opt In Form; the vendor agrees to supply the goods and/or services, scheduled in the 
below mentioned contract, at the established County contract pricing to other Michigan government 
entities and school distrlcts. 

CONTRACT NUMBER: QQS952 

V d IC N ( . t dJ Pipeline Management Co. Inc. en or ompany ame pnn e : _______________________ _ 

. Jacob A. Di Ponio Contact Person's Name (pnnted): _______________________ _ 

Ema.,.jake@pipeline.us.com 
I. {j Phone: _______ _ 

J1.~ a. (;\\I r; · 
Signature:_,v...J.-".-~"---'/)J-~ _________ Date: 2/11/2020 

Completed form should be emailed back to the person that emailed it to you. 
Otherwise, please email to: scianc@oakgov.com 

EXECUTIVE OFF!CE BLDG I 2100 Pontiac Lake Rd, Bldg 41 West [ Waterford, Ml 48328 
PH (248) 858-0511 I FAX (248) 858-1677 l purchasing@oakgov.com 

I"' .. : 

I' 
' !-



Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 
Event No. 004793 - Bid Date December 12, 2019 
Project Specific Materials, Equipment Rentals and Subcontract Payment Schedule 

MATERIALS 

Description 
Grout 

SUBCONTRACT 
I · Proposed Rates 

Description I 2020/21 I 2021/22 I 2022/23 
IA'E!l!RillRif-0J~\Sf)'.€i6ifi~~JjQ'f;iti;alliil~.$fSgJSJ;jalfiElll$:JfmM$lijiilflp~!~~l]~t~i-©:MJ'JIB,~!~~~~H~ 

I I I 

EQUIPMENT RENTAL 
I Proposed Rates 

Description I 2020/21 I 2021/22 I 2022/23 
:~~~lE?lf&J~~~{~J~ifiiliigfflJ~fillllffifffl1[g~lfit§l~1~~llff£.fB:~\!pleap1~'f~~1!)}3mf!N~f!~~~~if'ffilF 

I I I 

Permits/lnspection/WaterUsage/Other Job Specific Reimburseables 
I Proposed Rates 

Description I 2020/21 I 2021/22 I 2022/23 

Payment Terms: Net 30 
Note: Permits (not including water usage and inspection fees) will be a pass 
through billing item with no markups. 

I 
I 



Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 
Eyent No. 004793 - Bid Date December 12, 2019 
Labor Rate Payment Schedule 

Proposed 2020/21 Prices 
Std. 1.5 O.T. Double 

Description Rate Rate Time Rate 
Field Superir.itendent 81.00 106.00 136.00 

Operator/Driver 61.00 82.00 102.00 
•~0.l!t~J11r1~~,~qif.~"1¢J~"@1ator~]~~l:1~1~ilil!l1fi~fim~i:1i !HlE~~~~li~tt?[~p~: !~~~1i~11~iQ£~~(J.l; l~7~¥l\fil'Jl¥.R\ill,ey'i~~l 
Laqorer 57.00 75.00 95.00 

Proposed 2021 /22 Prices 
Std. 1.5 O.T. Double 

Description Rate Rate Time Rate 
· Field Superintendent 82.00 108.00 138.00 

Operator/Driver 62.00 84.00 104.00 
~p~t'j!;!ir/j~r~:r:iy,@f'l,~p,e.r,?iat~itj~j~;:)~~~j~jg![42:tli1• gill~ililBITlB,4Dfti; 1iifi1¥.lli!tlf\8~filB1~ :11:~li~il\ijifil~'~L\!)Qff 
Laborer 58.00 77.00 97.00 

Proposed 2022/23 Prices 
Std. 1.5 O.T. Double 

Description Rate Rate Time Rate 
Field Superintendent 83.00 110.00 140.00 

Operator/Driver 63.00 86.00 106.00 
~PPMi1a~i~mclN:'erl©.betat0@;g\:id!ii~s~m~iili~)\,j iJ~2filil~ife@l3¥09J, j~!~•jc.fr,1l~.flh~,0l~ :i~H~~iii~¥iilif1;4:@'i0Q~-
Laborer 59.00 79.00 99.00 

NOTES: 
1) Standard Rates: First 45 Hours per week (Monday Thru Friday) 
2) 1.5 O.T. Rates: Over 45 Hours per week and between the hours of 10 P.M. 

& 8 AM. when part of the same shift. Saturday work at 1.5 O.T. Rate. 
3) Double Time Rates: Sunday and legal holidays. 
4) Mobile equipment and one driver per unit will charge actual time up to a 

maximum of 45 minutes for each daily mob and again for each demob 
from the jobsite daily. 

5) No travel time will be billed for job labor not specifically driving equipment 
to and from the worksite. Includes fueling time. 

6) A minimum showup time of two hours will be paid for crews that have 
mobilized but are unable to work for conditions outside of their control. 

7) If the Vactor is mobilized and not used but required to recirculate due to cold weather conditions, 
the Vactor shall be charged at full time due to need to keep water on the truck from freezing. 

, · ·:···,· .,c·••• .··r,·.•c~;'.~:'.::.,::~•••.:;-,---.··--.7.:., • • • •.• - • ,' •·• :, • :. ·~,.., . · • 

i 
1 •. ,, 
); 
( 
! 

; 

i 
I 

i 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Buyer: EJT CONTRACT NUMBER:005952 Event# 004793 

CONTRACT between the COUNTY OF OAKLAND and CONTRACTOR 

Not To Exceed Amount: $500,000.00 I Effective Date: 1/21/2020 j Expiration Date:1/20/2023 

Contract Description: j E-Sewer Lining/Repairs - M 

. Contractor Information: Contract Administrator: 

PIPELINE MANAGEMENT CO INC PIPELINE MANAGEMENT CO INC 

2673 E Maple Road Jacob Di Ponio 

Milford, Ml 48381 348/685-1500 
Vendor No: 15328 jake@pipeline.us.com 

Compliance Purchasing County Contract Administrator 

Office Information: and Using Department: 

Edward Tucker Ben Lewis 

OAKLAND COUNTY OAKLAND COUNTY WRC 

2100 Pontiac Lake Rd., Bldg. 41W One Public Works Dr. 

Waterford, Ml 48328-0462 Waterford, Ml 48328 

248-858-0511 248-858-1539 

purchasing@oakgov.com lewisbe@oakgov.com 

The Parties agree to the attached terms and conditions: 

FOR THE CONTRACTOR: 

s1GN· Jacob A. Zf 7J?11@ 
• ,i.Jc.-:;b f.,_ D1 Ponk, (Feili 5, 2i12(J) 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

Contract Administrator 

cjs 

Rev 11/26/2019 

SIGN: Suo-1-t N: u!JV"t. 
SccJtt N. Guuy{f"-t-t.;5, 2t1illf 

Pamela L. Weipert, CPA, CIA, Compliance Officer 

or 
Scott N. Guzzy, CPPO, MBA, Purchasing Administrator 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 1 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

This Contract is organized and divided into the following Sections for the convenience of the Parties. 

Contract Definitions 

Contract Term and Renewal 

Section 1. 

Section 2. 

Section 3. 

Section 4. 

Section 5. 

Contract Administration and Amendments 

Contract Termination 

Scope of Deliverables and Financial/Payment Obligations 

Section 6. Contractor's Warranties and Assurances 

Section 7. Liability 

Section 8. Contractor Provided Insurance 

Section 9. Intellectual Property 

Section 10. Confidential Information 

Section 11. County Data 

Section 12. Information Technology Standards 

Section 13. General Terms and Conditions 

§1. CONTRACT DEFINITIONS 

The following words when printed with the first letter capitalized shall be defined and 
interpreted as follows, whether used in the singular or plural, nominative or possessive case, and 
with or without quotation marks: 

1.1. "Amendment" means any change, clarification, or modification to this Contract. 

1.2. "Business Day" means Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., excluding County 
designated holidays. 

1.3. "Claims" means any loss; complaint; demand for relief or damages; lawsuit; cause of action; 
proceeding; judgment; penalty; costs or other liability of any kind which is imposed on, incurred by, 
or asserted against the County or for which the County may become legally or contractually 
obligated to pay or defend against, whether commenced or threatened, including, but not limited 
to, reimbursement for reasonable attorney fees, mediation, facilitation, arbitration fees, witness 
fees, court costs, investigation expenses, litigation expenses, or amounts paid in settlement. 

1.4. "Confidential Information" means all information and data that the County is required or 
permitted by law to keep confidential, which includes computer software, cybersecurity 
assessments and plans and measures to protect the County's security. 

1.5. "Contract" means this document and any other documents expressly incorporated herein. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page2 

I 



1.6. 

1.7. 

1.8. 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 [ purchasing@oakgov.com 

"Contractor" means the entity or person Hsted under "Contractor' on the first page of this Contract. 

"Contractor Employee" means any employee; officer; director; member; manager; trustee; 
volunteer; attorney; licensee; contractor; subcontractor; independent contractor; subsidiary; 
joint venture; partner or agent of Contractor; and any persons acting by, through, under, or in 
concert with any of the above, whether acting in their personal, representative, or official 
capacities. Contractor Employee shall also include any person who was a Contractor Employee 
at any time during the term of this Contract but, for any reason, is no longer employed, 
appointed, or elected in that capacity. 

"Contract Documents" mean the following documents, which this Contract includes and incorporates: 

Exhibits (Applicable if Checked} 

1.8.1. Jg! Exhibit!: Contractor Insurance Requirements 

1.8.2. D Exhibit II: Business Associate Agreement (Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 

Requirements) 

1.8.3. D Exhibit Ill: Requirements for Contractors with Access to County Pl! {Personally Identifiable 

Information) 

1.8.4. • Exhibit IV: Requirements for Contractors with Access to Criminal Justice Information 

1.8.5. D Exhibit V: Federally Funded Contract Requirements 

1.8.6. D Exhibit VI: Software License(s) 

1.8.7. D Exhibit VI!: License for Use of County Servicemark 

1.8.8. D Exhibit VIII: Acknowledgement of Independent Employment Status 

1.8.9. 181 Exhibit IX: Scope of Contractor Deliverables/Financial Obligations 

1.9. "County" means the County of Oakland, a Municipal and Constitutional Corporation, its 
departments, divisions, authorities, boards, committees, and "County Agents" as defined below. 

1.10. "County Agent" means any elected and appointed officials; directors; board members; council 
members; commissioners; employees; and volunteers of the County; whether acting in their 
personal, representative, or official capacities. "County Agent" shall also include any person who 
was a "County Agent" anytime during the term of this Contract but, for any reason, is no longer 
employed, appointed, or elected and in that capacity. 

1.11. "County Data" means information or data collected, used, processed, stored, or generated in any 
format, by or on behalf of the County, in connection with the Deliverables, which shall include, but 
not be limited to: (a) personal health information (PHI) as defined under the Health Insurance 
Portability Act (HIPPA) and Exhibit 11, (b) personally identifiable information (PII} as defined in 
Exhibit III, and (c) Criminal Justice Information defined in Exhibit IV if the Exhibit(s) are incorporated 
into the Contract. County Data includes Confidential Information as defined in this Contract. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 3 

,.··) 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COUL TE.R 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

1.12. "County Network" means County owned, leased, or licensed equipment, hardware1 and 
software that is interconnected via fiber optic, wireless1 or other communication mediums for 
the purposes of County hosting, processing, using, sharing, and/or transporting data} video, 
voice, or any other form of information. 

1.13. "Day' means any calendar day, which shall begin at 12:00:00 a.m. and end at 11:59:59 p.m. 

1.14. "Deliverables" mean goods and/or services provided under this Contract, whether tangible or 
intangible1 and may be more specifically described in the Exhibits. 

1.15, "Effective Date" means midnight on the date listed on the first page of this Contract. 

1.16. "Expiration Date" means 11:59.59 p.m. on the date listed on the first page of this Contract. 

1.17. "E-Verify" means an Internet based system operated by the Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS) in partnership with the Social Security Administration {SSA) that allows participating 
employers to electronically verify the employment eligibility of their newly hired employees. 
Information and the registration process are found at the E-Verify website: 
https: // e-verify. uscis.gov /enrol I. 

1.18. "Intellectual Property" means any developments1 improvements, designs, innovation, and 
materials that may be the subject of a trademark/servicemark, copyright, patent, trade secret, 
which includes ideas, concepts, inventions, and processes related to the development and 
operation of computer software and systems. 

1.19. "Iran-Linked Business" is defined in the Michigan Compiled Laws (MCL), specifically MCL 
129.312, being Section 2 of Publfc Act 517 of 2012. 

1.20. "Not to Exceed Amount" means the dollar amount listed on the first page of this Contract, unless 
amended. The "Not to Exceed Amount" is not the Countys financial obligation under this Contract, but 
the maximum amount that can be paid to Contractor during the term of this Contract. 

1.21. "Proposal1
' means Contractor's response or bid to the County's Request for Proposal, Request for 

Qualifications, or Request for Quotes. 

1.22. "Purchase Order}} means the County's written request to Contractor for Deliverables pursuant 
to this Contract. The Purchase Order may include terms regarding delivery schedule, payment, 
and transportation. 

1.23. "Purchasing" means the Purchasing Unit of the Oakland County Compliance Office. 

§2. CONTRACT TERM AND RENEWAL 

2.1. Contract Term. This Contract shall begin on the Effective Date and shall end on the Expiration Date. 

2.2. Contract Renewal. Unless otherwise provided herein, the Parties are under no obligation to 
renew or extend this Contract after the Expiration Date. This Contract may only be extended by 
an Amendment. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page4 

I' 

I 



2.3. 

§3. 

3.1. 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Legal Effect. This Contract shall be effective and binding when all ofthe following occur: (a) this 
Contract is signed by a Contractor Employee, legally authorized to bind Contractor; (b) this 
Contract is signed by an authorized County Agent; (c) all Contractor certificates of insurance, 
required by this Contract, are submitted and accepted by Purchasing; and (d) any other 
conditions precedent to this Contract have been met. 

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION AND AMENDMENTS 

Contract and Purchase Order Issuance. Purchasing shall issue this Contract and any Purchase 
Orders that may be required. Purchasing is the sol'e point of contact in the County regarding all 
procurement and contractual matters relating to this Contract and any Purchase Orders. 
Purchasing is the only County office/department authorized to make any Amendments to this 
Contract or Purchase Orders. 

3.2. Purchase Orders. Purchase Orders issued under this Contract are governed by the terms and 
conditions of this Contract and are included and incorporated herein. 

3.3. Proiect Managers. Each Party may designate an employee or agent to act as a Project Manager. If 
Project Managers are selected, they shall be listed, along with their duties, in Exhibit IX. Unless 
otherwise stated in Exhibit IX, the County's Project Manager has no authority to amend this Contract. 

3.4. Contract Administrators. The County shall designate an employee or agent to act as Contract 
Administrator(s). Contractor may designate its employee or agent to act as Contract 
Administrator(s). The Contract Administrators shall be listed on the first page of this Contract. 
The County's Contract Administrator(s) shall be responsible for monitoring and coordinating day
to-day activities under this Contract, reviewing Deliverables and invoices, and submitting 
requests for Amendments to Purchasing. The County's Contract Administrator(s) have no 
authority to amend this Contract. 

3.5. Contract Amendments. All Amendments to this Contract must be in writing. This Contract shall not 
be amended by any packing slip, Purchase Order, invoice, click through license agreement, or 
Contractor policies or agreements published on Contractor's website or otherwise. Amendments to 
this Contract shall be issued only by Purchasing. The Amendment shall be effective when signed by 
an authorized Contractor Employee and an authorized County Agent. 

3.6. Unauthorized Changes. Contract changes shall not be effective until an Amendment containing 
the change is executed according to the procedures described in this Contract. If the Contractor 
is directed to perform work that Contractor believes is a change in the Contract/Deliverables, 
then Contractor must notify Purchasing that it believes the requested work is a change to the 
Contract before performing the requested work. If Contractor fails to notify Purchasing before 
beginning the requested work, then Contractor waives any claims for additlonal compensation 
for performing the requested work. If Contractor begins work that is outside the scope of this 
Contract or begins work before an Amendment is executed and then stops performing that work, 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 5 



3.7. 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Contractor must, at the request of the County, undo any out-of-scope work that the County 
believes would adversely affect the County. 

Precedence of Contract Documents. In the event of a conflict, the terms and conditions 
contained in Sections 1 through 13 of this Contract shall prevail and take precedence over any 
allegedly conflicting provisions in all Contract Documents, Exhibits, Purchase Orders, 
Amendments, and other documents expressly incorporated herein. Terms and conditions 
contained in Contractor invoices, packing slips, receipts, acknowledgments, click-through 
licenses, and similar documents shall not change the terms and conditions of this Contract. 

§4. CONTRACT TERMINATION 

4.1. County Termination. In addition to any other legal rights the County may have to terminate or 
cancel this Contract, the County may terminate the Contract as follows: 

4.1.1. Immediate Termination. The County may terminate or cancel this Contract, in whole or in part, 
immediately, upon notice to Contractor, if any of the following occur: (a) Contractor, officer of 
Contractor, or an owner of a 25% or greater share of Contractor is convicted of a criminal 
offense; or (b) if any third-party funding for this Contract is reduced or terminated. 

4.1.2. Termination for Convenience. The County may terminate or cancel this Contract, in whole or 
part, at any time, upon ninety (90) Days' notice to Contractor, for any reason, including 
convenience without incurring obligation or penalty of any kind. The effective date for 
termination or cancellation shall be clearly stated in the notice. 

4.2. Contractor Termination. Contractor may terminate or cancel this Contract, in whole or part, 
upon one hundred and eighty (180) Days' notice to the County, if the County breaches any duty 
or obligation contained herein and within such notice period has failed or has not attempted to 
cure the breach. The effective date of termination or cancellation and the specific alleged 
default shall be clearly stated in the notice to the County. 

County's Obligations Upon Termination. The County's sole obligation in the event of 
termination or cancellation of this Contract is for payment of the actual Deliverables provided to 
the County before the effective date of termination. Under no circumstances shall the County be 
liable for any future loss of income, profits, any consequential damages, any loss of business 
opportunities, revenues, or any other economic benefit Contractor may have realized but for the 
termination or cancellation of this Contract. The County shall not be obligated to pay Contractor 
any cancellation or termination fee if this Contract is cancelled or terminated as provided herein. 
If the County chooses to terminate the Contract in part, then the charges payable under this 
Contract must be equitably adjusted to reflect those Deliverables that are terminated. 

4.3. Contractor's Obligations Upon Termination. If the County terminates this Contract, for any 
reason, then Contractor must do the following: (a) cease providing all Deliverables as specified at 
the time stated in the notice of termination; (b) take any action necessary, or as the County may 
direct, to preserve and protect Deliverables or other property derived or resulting from the 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 6 

I ~ 
!··. 

! 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTlVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Contract that is in Contractor's possession; {c) return all materials and property provided to 
Contractor by the County; (d) unless otherwise directed by the County, transfer title in and 
deliver to the County all Deliverables in the possession of Contractor or Contractor Employees 
{which Deliverables are transferred to the County "As-ls", except to the extent the amounts paid 
by the County for these Deliverables include warranties or warranty services and, in that 
situation, the Deliverables will be transferred with the warranty or warranty services and not 
"As-ls"); and (e) take any action to mitigate and limit any potential damages, including terminate 
or limit, as applicable, those subcontracts and outstanding orders for materials and supplies 
connected with or related to this Contract. 

4.4. Assumption of Subcontracts. If Contractor is in breach of this Contract and the County terminates 
this Contract, then the County may assume, at its option, any subcontracts and agreements for 
Deliverables provided under the Contract and may pursue completion of the Deliverables by 
replacement Contract or otherwise as the County, in its sole judgment, deems expedient. 

§5. SCOPE OF DELIVERABLES AND FINANCIAL/PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS 

5.1. Performance of Deliverables. Contractor shall provide all Deliverables identified in and as set 
forth in Exhibit IX, any Purchase Orders, or any Amendments to this Contract. 

5.2. Software License(s). If this Contract includes a Software License(s) as described in Exhibit VI, 
then the Parties shall follow the terms and conditions therein. Any applicable third-party 
Software License(s) are also provided in Exhibit VI. Unless specifically agreed to by County, if 
County Agents are required to accept click through license terms to access any of the 
Deliverables in this Contract, the terms and conditions of those click through licenses are without 
force and effect. 

5.3. Financial Obligations. Except as otherwise set forth in this Contract, the County's sole financial 
obligation under this Contract shall be set forth in Exhibit IX. The amount and manner of 
payment of the financial obligation shall be set forth in Exhibit IX and may be in the Software 
License Exhibit VI, if applicable, or a Purchase Order. 

5.4. Payment Obligations. Except as otherwise set forth in the Exhibits, Contractor shall submit an 
invoice to the County's Contract Administrator itemizing amounts due and owing under this 
Contract, as of the date of the invoice. Invoices shall contain the following information: (a) County 
Contract Number; (b} dates of Deliverables; {c) itemized list of Deliverables; {d) Contractor Tax ID 
Number (federal and State); (e) licenses; and (f) any other information requested by Purchasing. 
The County shall have no obligation to make a payment under this Contract until an invoice is 
submitted in the form set forth herein and shall have no obligation to pay for Deliverables, which 
have not been invoiced (as required herein) within sixty (60) Days of Contractor's performance. 
Unless otherwise set forth in the Exhibits, the County shall only pay Contractor for Deliverables 
under this Contract and not any subcontractors or assignees of Contractor. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 7 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

5.5. Not to Exceed Amount. The amount due and owing to Contractor, under this Contract, shall not 
exceed the "Not to Exceed Amount." If Contractor can reasonably foresee that the total financial 
obligation for the Contract will exceed the "Not to Exceed Amount/' then Contractor shall 
provide Purchasing with notice of this fact at least ten (10) Days before this event. 

5.6. No Obligation for Penalties/Costs/Fines. The County shall not be responsible for any cost, fee, 
fine, penalty; or direct, indirect, special, incidental, or consequential damages incurred or 
suffered by Contractor in connection with or resulting from the performance of this Contract 
under any circumstances. 

5.7. Set-Off of County Costs. If the County incurs any costs associated with the duties or obligations 
of Contractor under this Contract, then the County has the right to set-off those costs from any 
amounts due and owing Contractor. This set-off includes withholding payment in an amount 
equal to the cost of any County-provided equipment, supplies, or badges that are not returned 
by Contractor upon completion, termination, or cancellation of this Contract. 

5.8. In-Kind Services. Unless expressly provided herein, this Contract does not authorize any in-kind 
services by ~ither Party. 

§6. CONTRACTOR'S WARRANTIES AND ASSURANCES 

6.1. Full Knowledge of Contract Expectations. Contractor warrants that before submitting its 
Proposal and/or entering into this Contract, it had a full opportunity to review all County 
requirements and/or expectations for this Contract. Contractor is responsible for being 
adequately and properly prepared to execute this Contract. Contractor has satisfied itself in all 
material respects that it will be able to perform the Contract as specified herein. 

6.2. Complete and Accurate Representations. Contractor certifies that all statements, assurances, 
records, and materials submitted to the County in connection with seeking and obtaining this 
Contract have been truthful, complete, and accurate. 

6.3. Access to Contractor Policies. If the Parties agree in this Contract to follow any Contractor policies, 
such as acceptable use or privacy policies, then Contractor shall retain each version of such policy 
with the effective dates and shall promptly provide such to the County, if requested. 

6.4. Grant Compliance. If any part of this Contract is supported or pafd for with any State, federal, or 
other third-party funds granted to the County, then Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
grant requirements. Upon request of Contractor, the County shall provide Contractor with a 
copy of the applicable grant requirements. 

6.5. Contractor Incidental Expenses. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, 
Contractor shall be solely responsible and liable for all costs and expenses associated or needed 
to perform this Contract, including, but not limited to, any professional dues, association fees, 
license fees, fines, taxes, and penalties. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 8 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

6.6. Equipment and Supplies. Contractor is responsible for providing all equipment and supplies to 
perform .this Contract, which are not expressly required to be provided by the County. 

6. 7. Contractor Employees. 

6.7.1. Number and Qualifications of Contractor Employees. Contractor shall employ and assign 
qualified Contractor Employees as necessary and appropriate to perform this Contract. 
Contractor shall ensure all Contractor Employees have the knowledge, skill, and qualifications to 
perform this Contract and possess any necessary licenses, permits, certificates, and 
governmental authorizations as may be required by law. 

6.7.2. Control and Supervision of Contractor Employees. Contractor shall solely control, direct, and 
supervise all Contractor Employees with respect to all Contractor obligations under this Contract. 
Contractor will be solely responsible for and fully liable for the conduct and supervision of any 
Contractor Employees. 

6.7.3. Removal or Reassignment of Personnel at the County's Request. Contractor shall remove a 
Contractor Employee performing work under this Contract at the County's request provided that 
the County's request is based on legitimate, good-faith reasons. Replacement personnel for the 
removed person must be fully qualified for the position. Jf the removal of a Contractor Employee 
results in an unanticipated delay, which is attributable to the County, then this delay shall not be 
considered a breach of the Contract and the terms and conditions of this Contract effected by 
the removal will be adjusted accordingly. 

6.7.4. Contractor Employee Identification. If requested by the County, Contractor Employees shall 
wear and display a County-provided identification badge at all times while working on County 
premises. In order to receive a County identification badge, a Contractor Employee shall sign the 
"Acknowledgement of Independent Contractor Status" form, Exhibit VIII to this Contract. 
Contractor shall return all County-provided identification(s) upon completion of Contractor's 
obligations under this Contract. 

6.7.5. Background Checks. At the County's request, Contractor Employees performing work under this 
Contract shall be subject to a background check by the County. The scope of the background 
check is at the discretion of the County and the results will be used to determine Contractor 
Employee's eligibility to perform work under this Contract. Any request for background checks 
will be initiated by the County and will be reasonably related to the type of work requested. 
Contractor and Contractor Employees shall provide all information or documents necessary to 
perform the background check. 

6.7.6. Contractor Employee Expenses. All Contractor Employees shall be employed at the Contractor's 
sole expense (including employment-related taxes and insurance). Contractor warrants that all 
Contractor Employees shall fully comply with and adhere to the terms of this Contract. 
Contractor shall be solely liable for all applicable Contractor Employees' federal, state, or local 
payment withholdings or contributions and/or all Contractor Employee related pension or 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 9 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purcllasing@oakgov.com 

welfare benefits plan contributions under federal or state law. Contractor shall indemnify and 
hold the County harmless for all Claims against the County by any Contractor Employee, arising 
out of a~y contract for hire or employer-employee relationship between Contractor and any 
Contractor Employee including, but not limited to, Worker's Compensation, disability pay, or 
other insurance of any kind. 

6.7.7. Contractor's Compliance with the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act. If Contractor is 
subject to the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act ("ACA"), PL 111-148, 124 Stat 119, then 
Contractor shall ensure that all Contractor Employees, under assignment to the County, and their 
dependents, as defined by the ACA, are provided with or have access to insurance as required by 
the ACA. If Contractor is subject to the ACA, Contractor warrants it offers group health coverage 
to Contractor Employees and their dep.endents that is affordable, that provides minimum 
essential coverage and value, and that each offer of coverage meets the timing requirements of 
the ACA. Contractor warrants, whether or not it is subject to the ACA, that it will pay all 
applicable fees, taxes, or fines, as set forth in the employer mandates of the ACA under Tax Code 
§4980H and related regulations for any Contractor Employee, whether the fee, tax, or fine is 
assessed against the Contractor or the County. 

6.8. Acknowledgment of Independent Contractor Status. 

6.8.1. Independent Contractor. Nothing in this Contract is intended to establish an employer
employee relationship between the County and Contractor or any Contractor Employee. In no 
event, shall Contractor Employees be deemed employees, agents, volunteers, or subcontractors 
of the County. Contractor shall ensure that Contractor Employees are apprised of their status 
and the limitations independent contractors have of this status. 

6.8.2. Contractor/Contractor Employee Representations. Contractor and/or Contractor Employees 
shall not represent themselves as County employees. Contractor shall ensure that Contractor 
Employees do not represent themselves as County employees. 

6.8.3. County Benefits and Plans. Contractor and Contractor Employees shall not be entitled to 
participate in any County employee benefit plans and programs, including but not limited to, 
retirement, deferred compensation, insurance (including without limitation, health, disability, 
dental, and life), and vacation pay. This limitation includes access to benefit plans and programs 
that are not described by a written plan. However, Contractor Employees who are retired 
County Employees may receive vested post-employment benefits such as retiree health care and 
pension benefits from Oakland County. 

6.8.4. County Reliance. The County entered into this Contract in reliance of the representations made 
by Contractor regarding its understanding of the role of independent contractors, its stated 
relationship to Contractor Employees, and other representations Contractor has made regarding 
the management and performance oversight of Contractor Employees. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 10 

-------- ------"-""" 

!: 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

6.8.5. Independent Employment Status. If Contractor provides Contractor Employees for staffing and/or 
leasing services to County, those Contractor Employees shall sign Exhibit VIII, Acknowledgement of 
Independent Employment Status, prior to performing services for the County. 

6.9. Permits and Licenses. Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining, throughout 
the term of this Contract, all licenses, permits, certificates, governmental authorizations, and 
business/professional licenses necessary to perform this Contract. Upon request by the County, 
Contractor shall furnish copies of any permit, license, certificate, or governmental authorization 
necessary to perform this Contract. 

6.10. E-Verify. In accordance with Miscellaneous Resolution No.09116 (BOC Minutes, July 30, 2009, 
pp 37-38), unless otherwise exempted, all service contractors who wish to contract with the 
County to provide services must first certify they have registered with, wtll participate in, and 
continue to utilize, once registered, the E-Verify Program (or any successor program 

- implemented by the federal government or its departments or agencies) to verify the work 
authorization status of all newly hired employees employed by the Contractor. Breach of this 
term or condition is considered a material breach of this Contract. Contractor's execution of this 
Contract constitutes a certification that they are authorized to certify ori behalf ofContractor 
and do hereby certify on behalf of Contractor that the Contractor has registered with, has and 
will participate in, and does and will continue to utilize once registered and throughout the term 
of this Contract and any permissible extension hereof, the E-Verify Program (or any successor 
program implemented by the federal government or its departments or agencies) to verify the 
work authorization status of all newly hired employees employed by the Contractor. 

6.11. Iran-Linked Business Certification. Contractor certifies that it is not an Iran-Linked Business. 
Contractor further certifies that it was not an Iran-Linked Business at the time it submitted its 
Proposal for this Contract. Contractor must promptly notify the County, if Contractor becomes 
an Iran-Linked Business at any time during this Contract. 

6.12. Foreign Adversary Certification. If Contractor supplies technology or equipment to County, 
Contractor certifies that the technology and/or equipment was not produced, assembled or 
manufactured by a foreign adversary, as defined, and as prohibited by the federal government. 

6.13. Taxes. 

6.13.1. Contractor Taxes. Contractor shall collect and pay its local, state, and federal taxes, including 
but not limited to, all employment taxes, sales taxes, personal property taxes, and real property 
taxes. The County shall not be liable to or required to reimburse Contractor for any local, state, 
or federal tax of any kind. 

6.13.2. County Tax-Exempt. The County is exempt from state and local sales tax, personal property tax, and 
real property tax. Prices under this Contract shall not include taxes, unless the County is not tax
exempt for a specific Deliverable. Exemption certificates for sales tax will be furnished upon request. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 11 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

6.14. Warranty for Services. Contractor warrants that all Deliverables that are services shall be 
performed in compliance with all applicable laws, statutes, regulations, ordinances, and 
professional standards. 

6.15. Warranty for Goods. All Deliverables that are goods shall be subject to the following warranties: 

6.15.1. Warranty of Merchantability. Goods provided by Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall: (a) be 
merchantable; (b) be of good quality; (c) be fit for their ordinary purpose; (d) be adequately contained 
and packaged; and {e) conform to the specifications and descriptions contained in this Contract. 

6.15.2. Warranty of Fitness for a Particular Purpose. If Contractor knows or has reason to know that 
the goods will be used for a particular purpose and the County is relying on Contractor's skill or 
judgment to select or furnish the goods, then there is a warranty that the goods are fit for a 
particular purpose. 

6.15.3. Warranty of Title. All goods conveyed to the County shall be conveyed and transferred: {a) with 
good title; (b) free from any security interest, lien, or encumbrance that the County did not have 
knowledge of when the Contract was executed; and (c) free of any rightful claim of infringement 
or similar claim by a third-party. 

6.16. ADA and Section 508 Compliance. If Contractor is providing a Deliverable that requires County 
Agents or the public to use a software application or to access a website, Contractor warrants 
that end users can utilize the software or access the website in accordance with the accessibility 
requirements of the ADA and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Contractor's Deliverable will 
conform, where relevant, to level AA of the World Wide Web Consortium (W3C) Web Content 
Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.0. Contractor may provide a description of conformance with 
the above-mentioned specifications by means of a completed Voluntary Product Accessibility 
Template for WCAG 2.0 (WCAG 2.0 VPAT) or another comparable document. Any additional 
compliance requirements shall be specified in the Scope of Contractor's Deliverables Exhibit IX. 

§7. LIABILITY 

7.1. Contractor Indemnification. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the County harmless 
from all Claims, incurred by or asserted against the County by any person or entity, which are 
alleged to have been caused directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions of Contractor or 
Contractor's Employees. The County's right to indemnification is in excess and above any 
insurance rights/policies required by this Contract. 

7.2. No Indemnification from the County. Contractor shall have no rights against the County for 
indemnification, contribution, subrogation, or any other right to be reimbursed by the County, 
except as expressly provided herein. 

§8. CONTRACTOR PROVIDED INSURANCE. At all times during this Contract, Contractor shall obtain 
and maintain insurance according to the requirements listed in Exhibit I. 

Rev 11/2612019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 12 



§9. 

9.1. 

9.2. 

9.3. 

9.4. 

§10. 

10.1. 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Contractor Use of County Licensed Software. In order for Contractor to perform this Contract, 
the County may permit Contractor or Contractor Employees to access certain Software licensed 
to the County. Contractor or Contractor Employees shall not transfer, remove, use, copy, or 

otherwise provide or make available such Software or documentation to any other person or 
entity, for any purpose, without the prior written consent of the County and/or the licensor. 
Furthermore, neither Contractor nor Contractor Employee shall produce a source listing, 
decompile, disassemble, or otherwise reverse engineer any Software. Neither Contractor nor 
Contractor Employee shall use any Software contrary to the provisions of any applicable 

Software license agreement or state or federal law. 

Contractor License to Use County Service marks. If this Contract involves the use of County 

servicemarks, then Contractor is granted a license to use the servicemarks subject to the terms listed in 
Exhibit VII. Contractor shall only use the servicemarks as directed by the County in Exhibit VII. 

Assignment of Rights. In consideration for.the performance of this Contract and the fees paid to 
· Contractor, Contractor agrees to the following: (a) Contractor shall have no copyright, patent, 

trademark, or trade secret rights in County Intellectual Property; (b) any and all programs, inventions, 
and other work or authorship developed by Contractor while providing Deliverables to the County 
are works made for hire, created for, and owned exclusively by the County, unless otherwise 
specified in the Contract; {c) Contractor assigns to the County all rights and interest in County 
Intellectual Property, which Contractor has made or conceived or may make and conceive, either 

solely or jointly with others, either on or off County premises while performing this Contract or with 
the use of the time, material, or facilities of the County; and {d) Contractor and its applicable 

Contractor Employees shall sign any documents necessary for the County to register patents, 
copyrights, or trademarks with federal or state agencies. Contractor shall ensure Contractor 
Employees assign their rights and interests in County Intellectual Property to the County. 

Infringement Remedies. If, in either Party's opinion, any of the services or Deliverables supplied by 
Contractor or Contractor Employees is likely to become the subject of a copyright, patent, trademark, 
or trade secret infringement claim, Contractor shall at its own expense: {a) procure for County the 
right to continue using the services or Deliverables, or if this option is not reasonably available to 
Contractor; {b) replace or modify the same so that it becomes non-infringing; or (c) accept its return 
by County with appropriate credits to County and reimburse County for any losses or costs incurred 
as a consequence of County ceasing its use and returning it. 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Contractor Use of Confidential Information. Contractor and Contractor Employees shall use 
appropriate safeguards to protect the confidentiality and integrity of Confidential Information. 
Contractor shall not reproduce, provide, disclose, or give access of Confidential Information to any 
Contractor Employee or third-party not having a legitimate need to know. Contractor and 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 13 

I 
I 
1-

1 
I 

I 
I 
!_: 



§11. 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUN1Y EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasfng@oakgov.com 

Contractor Employees shall only use the Confidential Information for performance of this Contract. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor may qisclose the Confidential Information, if required 
by law, statute, or other legal process; provided that Contractor: (a) gives the County prompt 

written notice of the impending disclosure; (b) provides reasonable assistance to the County in 
opposing or limiting the disclosure; and (c) makes only such disclosure as is compelled or required. 
This Contract imposes no obligation upon Contractor with respect to any Confidential Information 

which Contractor can establish by legally sufficient evidence: (a) was in possession of or was known 
by Contractor, prior to its receipt from the County, without any obligation to maintain its 
confidentiality; or (b) is obtained by Contractor from a third-party having the right to disclose it, 
without an obligation to keep such information confidential. 

COUNTY DATA. If Contractor uses or possesses County Data in the performance of this Contract, 
then the following provisions contained in this section apply: 

11.1. Use of County Data. Contractor and Contractor Employees shall have a limited license to County 
Data, including a license to collect, process, store, generate and display County Data but only to the 

extent necessary to provide services under this Contract. Contractor and Contractor Employees 
may not use, sell, rent, transfer; distribute, or otherwise disclose or make available County Data for 
Contractor's own purposes or for the benefit of anyone other than the County, without the 
County's prior written consent, unless otherwise provided for within an Exhibit to this Contract 

11.2. Unauthorized Access/Disclosure or Theft of County Data. Contractor or Contractor Employees 
shall notify the County's Chief Information Officer as soon as practicable but no later than forty
eight (48) hours of "Discovery" of suspected unauthorized access1 acquisition, disclosure, or theft 
of County Data (a ''Security Breach"). "Discovery" means the first day on which the Security Breach 

is known to Contractor or Contractor Employees or should have been known by exercising 
reasonable diligence. Upon Discovery of a Security Breach, Contractor shall do the following: (a) 
take reasonable measures to promptly cure the deficiencies relating to the Security Breach in order 
to secure County Data; (b) cooperate with the County in investigating the occurrence, including 
making available all relevant records, logs, files, and data reporting materials required upon 
request by the County; and (c) comply with all applicable federal or state laws and regulations 
pertaining to unauthorized disclosures or as otherwise directed by the County. If Contractor uses 
or possesses County Data described in in Exhibit II (HIPPA), Exhibit Ill (PII), or Exhibit IV (CJIS), 
Contractor shall follow the procedures in the applicable Exhibits governing the unauthorized 

access/disclosure or theft of County Data. 

11.3. Storage of County Data. Contractor shall only store and process County Data at and from data 
centers located within the United States. Contractor shall not permit Contractor Employees to store 
County Data on portable devices, including personal co,mputers, except for portable devices that 
encrypt data at rest and are used and kept within the U.S. Contractor shall permit its Contractor 
Employees to access County Data remotely only as required to provide technical support 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 14 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

11.4. Requirements for PCI Data. If Contractor possesses, stores, processes, or transmits County 
Data that is considered Payment Card Industry (PCI) Data by the PCI Security Standards Council, 
Contractor shall comply with PCI Data Security Standard (DSS) and shall provide the County 
with a copy of its PCI DSS Attestation of Compliance and its Certificate of Compliance with PCI 
Data Security Standard. Contractor warrants that it will keep its Certification of Compliance 
with PCI Data Security Standard current. 

11.5. Response to Legal Request for County Data. If the County receives a Court Order, a Freedom of 
Information Act (FOIA) request, or other legal request to provide County Data held by 
Contractor, then Contractor shall provide County Data to the County, in a format directed by the 
County, within the time frame required by law. 

11.6. Obligations upon Expiration, Termination or Cancellation of Contract. At the County's sole 
discretion, upon expiration, termination, or cancellation of this Contract, Contractor shall return 
County Data in a mutually agreeable format in a prompt and orderly manner or provide for the 
secure disposal of County Data as directed by County. 

§12. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STANDARDS. If Contractor provides a technology application or 
requires the use of the Internet to access a Deliverable, the following sectio·ns apply: 

12.1. County Standards. If Contractor and Contractor Employees that will be given access to the 
County Network, Contractor and Contractor Employees shall comply with the County Electronic 
Communications and Use of Technology Policy. 

12,2. Implementation of Security Measures. Contractor shall implement and maintain appropriate 
administrative, technical, and organizational security measures to safeguard against 
unauthorized access to the County Network and County Data. Such measures shall be in 
accordance with security industry best practice and not less stringent than the measures 
Contractor applies to protect its own data of a similar kind. 

12.3. Completion of County Security Questionnaire. Contractor warrants it has completed the 
County's security questionnaire. Each year, prior to the anniversary date of this Contract, and 
upon receipt of the County's security questionnaire, Contractor shall provide the County with the 
answers to the County's security questionnaire. 

§13. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

13.1. Access to County Property or Facilities. As set forth in this Contract, Contractor has access to 
and the right to use County property and facilities necessary to perform this Contract. Unless 
otherwise provided in this Contract or Contracto!" receives prior written permission from the 
County's Director responsible for the department requiring access outside of Business Days, 
Contractor may only access and use County property and facilities for performanc~ of this 
Contract on Business Days. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUN1Y COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 15 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

13.2. Signs on County Property or Facilities. Contractor shall not place any signs or advertisements on 
County property or facilities without the prior written permission of the County's Director of 
Fadlities Management or successor. 

13.3. Use of County Property or Facilities. While performing this Contract, Contractor shall keep 
County property or facilities, and anything stored thereon in a clean, safe, and healthful 
condition and shall keep the property and facilities in a manner that will not prevent or interfere 
with the County's performance of its functions. 

13.4. Removal of Contractor's Personal Property. At the expiration or termination of this Contract, 
Contractor shall leave County property or facilities in the same condition that Contractor found 
them and clean of all rubbish. Contractor shall remove all of its personal property within thirty 
{30) Days of expiration or termination of this Contract. If Contractor does not remove its 
personal property within the thirty (30) Day period, then the County shall dispose of it and bill 
Contractor for any costs associated with the removal and disposal. 

13.5. Damage to County Property or Facilities. Contractor shall be responsible for any damage to any 
County property or a fadlity that is caused by Contractor or Contractor Employees. If damage 
occurs, the County shall make the necessary repairs and/or replacements or cause a third-party 
to make the necessary repairs or replacements, provided, however, that Contractor shall 
reimburse the County for all costs associated with repairing and/or replacing the damaged 
property or facilities. 

13.6. Damage to Contractor's Property. Contractor shall be solely liable and responsible for any property 
loss or damage resulting from fire, theft, or other means to Contractor's personal property located, 
kept, or stored on or at County property or facilities during performance of this Contract. 

13.7. County's Right to Suspend Contract Performance. Upon written notice, the County may require 
Contractor to suspend performance of this Contract if Contractor has failed to comply with 
federal, state, or local laws or any requirements contained in this Contract. The right to suspend 
performance of this Contract is in addition to the County's right to terminate and/or cancel th is 
Contract. The County shall incur no penalty, expense, or liability to Contractor if the County 
suspends performance of this Contract under this Section. 

13.8. Discrimination. Contractor, and its subcontractors under this Contract, shall not discriminate 
against an employee or an applicant for employment in hiring, any terms and conditions of 
employment or matters related to employment regardless of race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, age, genetic information, height, 
weight, disability, veteran status, familial status, marital status or any other reason, that is 
unrelated to the person's ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position, in 
accordance with applicable federal and state laws. 

13.9. Conflict of Interest. Pursuant to Public Act 317 and 318 of 1968, as amended (MCL 15.301, et 
seq. and MCL 15.321, et seq.), no contracts shall be entered into between the County and any 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 16 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

County Agent. To avoid any real or perceived conflict of interest, Contractor shall disclose to the 
County the identity of all Contractor Employees and all relatives of Contractor Employees who: a) 
are employed by the County on the date the Contract is executed; and b) become employed by 
the County during the term of the Contract. Contractor shall also disclose to the County the 
identity of all County Agents and all relatives of County Agents who: a) are employed by 
Contractor on the date the Contract is executed; and b) become employed by Contractor during 
the term of the Contract. 

13.10. Access and Records. Contractor will maintain accurate books and records in connection with 
performance of this Contract for thirty-six (36) months after the end of this Contract and Contractor 
shall provide the County with reasonable access to such books and records, upon request. 

13.11. Audit. The County or an independent auditor hired by the County may perform contract audits 
(in its sole discretion) and shall have the authority to access all pertinent records and data and to 
interview any Contractor Employee during the term of this Contract and for a period of three 
years after final payment. Contractor shall explain any audit findings, questioned costs, or other 
Contract compliance deficiencies to the County within thirty (30) Business Days of receiving the 
draft audit report. Contractor's written response shall include all necessary documents and 
information that refute the draft audit report and an action plan to resolve the audit findings. A 
copy of Contractor's response will be included in the final report. Failure by Contractor to 
respond in writing within thirty (30) Business Days shall be deemed acceptance of the draft audit 
report and will be noted in the final report. 

13 .12. Assignments/Delegations/Subcontracts. 

13.12.1. Prior Written Consent Required. Except by operation of law, neither Party may assign, delegate, 
or subcontract any of its duties, obligations, or rights under this Contract without the prior 
written consent of the other Party; provided, however, Contractor may assign, delegate, or 
subcontract this Contract to an affiliate or subsidiary as long as the affiliate or subsidiary is 
adequately capitalized and can provide adequate written assurances to the County that the 
affiliate or subsidiary can perform this Contract. The County may withhold consent, if the County 
determines that the assignment, delegation, or subcontract would impair performance of this 
Contract or the County's ability to recover damages under this Contract. Contractor shall also 
provide the County with adequate information to allow the County to make a determination 
regarding the assignment, delegation, or subcontract. 

13.12.2. Flow Down Clause Required. Any assignment, delegation, or subcontract by Contractor must 
include a requirement that the assignee, delegee, or subcontractor will comply with the terms 
and conditions of this Contract. The assignment, delegation, or subcontract shall in no way 
diminish or impair performance of any.term or condition of this Contract. 

13.12.3. Contractor Responsibility for Assigns/Delegates/Subcontractors. If Contractor assigns, 
delegates, or subcontracts this Contract, in whole or in part, Contractor shall remain the sole 
point of contact regarding all matters under this Contract and shall remain liable for performance 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 17 



- ~ - - - -.- - - - - - • - - - • - - ·- - - •.... - . . -- ·-- - - - - - • - - - - -. - - - . -- • - . -· -· -·-.-.·-- .::"-. ... -~---.-.·.-,-----.'-'·• -· c.~ ,· -.-- -,-.. ,-.- -.-•. , •- - -.• ·-. ····--., ··-·--., .,._._._-,-, .. • .r;. --~ • • .,-.•.- , .. -- • - .. ---~---=- - -... - .. ·-- --· ... -.-. - -- ....... -. -- _- .. -. 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

of this Contract. Contractor is solely responsible for the management of assignees, delegees, 
and subcontractors. 

13.12.4. Performance Required. If an assignee, delegee, or subcontractor fails to perform as required 
under this Contract, Contractor shall contract with another entity for such performance. Any 
addit[onal costs associated with securing another assignee, delegee, or subcontractor shall be 
the sole responsibility of Contractor. 

13.13. Non-Exclusive Contract. This Contract is a non-exclusive agreement. No provision in this 
Contract limits or is intended to limit, in any way, Contractor's right to offer and provide its 
services to the general public, other business entities, municipalities, or governmental agencies 
during or after the term of this Contract. Similarly, the County may freely engage other persons 
to perform the same work that Contractor performs. Except as provided in this Contract, this 
Contract shall not be construed to guarantee Contractor or any Contractor Employee any fixed or 
certain number of Deliverables. 

13.14. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except as provided for the benefit of the Parties, this Contract 
does not and is .not intendedto create any obligation, duty, promise, contractual right or benefit, 
right to be indemnified, right to be subrogated to the Parties' right in this Contract, or any other 
right in favor of any other person or entity. 

13.14.1. Survival of Terms and Conditions. The following terms and conditions shall survive and continue 
in full force beyond the termination or cancellation of this Contract (or any part thereof) until the 
terms and conditions are fully satisfied or expire by their nature: Section 1. Contract Definitions, 
Section 5. Scope of Deliverables and Financial/Payment Obligations, Section 6. Contractor's 
Warranties and Assurances, Section 7. Liability, Section 8. Contractor Provided Insurance, 
Section 9, Intellectual Property, Section 10. Confidential Information, Section 11. County Data, 
Section 13. General Terms and Conditions; and if incorporated into this Contract, Exhibit II: 
Business Associate Agreement (Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
Requirements), E~hibit Ill: Requirements for Contractors with Access to County PII (Personally 
Identifiable Information) and Exhibit IV: Requirements for Contractors with Access to CJIS Data 
(Criminal Justice Information Security. 

13.15. Reservation of Rights. This Contract does not, and is not intended to impair, divest, delegate, or 
contravene any constitutional, statutory, or other legal right, privilege, power, obligation, duty, 
or immunity of the County. 

13.16. Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, 
ordinances, regulations, insurance policy requirements, and requirements applicable to its 
activities under this Contract .. 

13.17. Force Majeure. Notwithstanding any other term or condition of this Contract, neither Party shall 
be liable for failure to perform contractual duties or obligations caused by events beyond their 
reasonable control, including but not limited to: (a) acts of public enemies; (b) natural disasters; 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 18 

•.:.· 
[.-, 

I • 

' 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-05111 purchasi_ng@oakgov.com 

(c) terrorism; (d) war; (e) insurrection or riot; (f) natural disasters; (g) strikes, lockouts, work 
stoppages, or other labor difficulties; or (h) compliance with law. Reasonable notice shall be 
given to the affected Party of such event. Contractor is expected, through insurance or 
alternative temporary or emergency service arrangements, to continue its contractual duties or 
obligations if a reasonably anticipated, insurable business risk, such as business interruption or 
any insurable casualty or loss occurs. 

13.18. Notices. 

13.18.1. Written Notice. All notices required under this Contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be 
effective: (a) the next Business Day, if personally delivered; (b) the third Business Day, if sent by 
U.S. mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; (c) the next Business Day, if sent by a 
nationally recognized overnight express courier with a reliable tracking system; or (d) the next 
Business Day with a receipt of confirmation, if sent by e-mail or fax. 

13.18.2. Notice to Contractor. Unless otherwise specified, Notice to Contractor shall be addressed to the 
Contract Administrator listed on the first page of this Contract. 

13.18.3. Notice to County. Un less otherwise specified herein, Notice to the County shall be addressed to 
Purchasing, the County Project Manager (if applicable), and the County Contract Administrator(s) 
listed on the first page of this Contract. 

13.19. Captions. Section and subsection numbers, captions, and any index to sections or subsections 
contained in this Contract are intended for the convenience of the reader and are not intended 
to have any substantive meaning and shall not be interpreted to limit or modify any substantive 
provisions of this Contract. In this Contract, for any noun or pronoun, use of the singular or 
plural form, use of the nominative, possessive, or objective case, and any reference to gender 
(masculine, feminine, and neuter) shall mean the appropriate form, case, or gender-as the 
context requires. 

13.20. Waiver. Waiver of any term or condition under this Contract must be in writing and notice given 
pursuant to this Contract. No written waiver, in one or more instances, shall be deemed or 
construed as a continuing waiver of any term or condition of this Contract. No waiver by either 
Party shall subsequently affect its right to require strict performance of this Contract. 

13.21. Cumulative Remedies. A Party's exercise of any remedy shall not preclude the exercise of any 
other remedies, all of which shall be cumulative. A Party shall have the right, in its sole 
discretion, to determine which remedies are to be exercised and in which order. 

13.22. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds a term or condition of this Contract to be 
illegal or invalid, then t_he term or condition shall be deemed severed from this Contract. All 
other terms or conditions shall remain in full force and effect. Notwithstanding the above, if 
Contractor's promise to indemnify or hold the County harmless is found illegal or invalid, 
Contractor shall contribute the maximum it is permitted to pay by law toward the payment and 
satisfaction of any Claims against the County. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 19 

1= 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNlY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I pu rchasing@oakgov.com 

13.23. Dispute Resolution. All disputes arising under or relating to the execution, interpretation, 
performance, or nonperformance of this Contract involving or affecting the Parties may first be 
submitted to the respective Project Manager (if applicable) and Contract Administrators for 
possible resolution. 

13.24. Governing Laws/Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue. This Contract shall be governed, 
interpreted, and enforced by the laws of the State ·of Michigan. Except as otherwise required by 
law or court rule, any action brought to enforce, interpret, or decide any Claim arising under or 
related to this Contract shall be brought in the Sixth Judicial Circuit Court of the State of 
Michigan, the 50 th Dlstrict of the State of Michigan, or the United States District Court for the 
Eastern District of Michigan,. Southern Division, as dictated by the applicable jurisdiction of the 
court. Except as otherwise required by law or court rule, venue is proper in the courts set forth 
above. The choice of forum set forth above shall not be deemed to preclude the enforcement of 
any judgment obtained in such forum or taking action under this Contract to enforce such 
judgment in any appropriate jurisdiction. 

13.25. Entire Contract. This Contract represents the entire agreement and understanding between the 
Parties. This Contract supersedes all other prior oral or written understandings, 
communications, agreements, or contracts between the Parties. The language of this Contract 
shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning and not construed strictly for or 
against any Party. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 20 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

EXHIBIT I 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

CONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

During this Contract, the Contractor shall provide and maintain, at their own expense, all insurance as set 
forth and marked below, protecting the County against any Claims, as defined in this Contract. The 
insurance shall be written for not less than any minimum coverage herein specified. Limits of insurance 
required in no way limit the liability of the Contractor. 

Primary Coverages 

Commercial General Liability Occurrence Form including: (a} Premises and Operations; (b) Products and 
Completed Operations (including On and Off Premjses Coverage); (c} Personal and Advertising Injury; (d) 
Broad Form Property Damage; (e) Broad Form Contractual including coverage for obligations assumed in 
this Contract; 

$1,000,000- Each Occurrence Limit 
$1,000,000- Personal & Advertising Injury 
$2,000,000- Products & Completed Operations Aggregate Limit 
$2,000,000 - General Aggregate Limit 
$ 100,000 - Damage to Premises Rented to You (formally known as Fire Legal Liability) 

Workers' Compensation Insurance with limits statutorily required by any applicable Federal or State Law 
and Employers Liability insurance with limits of no less .than $500,000 each accident, $500,000 disease 
each employee, and $500,000 disease policy limit. 

1. IZI Fully Insured or State approved self-insurer. 

2. • Sole Proprietors must submit a signed Sole Proprietor form. 

3. • Exempt entities, Partnerships, LLC, etc., must submit a State of Michigan form WC-337 Certificate 
of Exemption. 

Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance covering bodily injury or property damage arising out of the 
use of any owned, hired, or non-owned automobile with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 each 
accident. This requirement is waived if there are no company owned, hired or non-owned automobiles 
utilized in the performance of this Contract. 

Commercial Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance with minimum limits of $2,000,000 each occurrence. 
Umbrella or Excess Liability coverage shall be no less than following form of primary coverages or 
broader. This Umbrella/Excess requirement may be met by increasing the primary Commercial General 
Liability limits to meet the combined limit requirement. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 21 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID CQUL TER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Supplemental Coverages -As Needed 

1. D Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions Insurance (i.e., Consultants, Technology Vendors, 

Architects, Engineers, Real Estate Agents, Insurance Agents, Attorneys, etc.) with minimum limits of 
$1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 aggregate shall be required when the Contractor provides 

professional services that the County relies upon. 

2. • Cyber Liability Insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 aggregate shall be 

required when the Contractor has access to County IT systems and/or stores County data electronically. 

3. • Commercial Property Insurance. The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining 

insurance covering their equipment and personal property against all physical damage. 

4. D Liquor Legal Liability Insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 each occurrence shall be required when 

liquor is served and/or provided by Contractor. 

5. 0 Pollution Liability Insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 

aggregate shall be required when storage, transportation and/or cleanup & debris removal of 
pollutants are part of the services utilized. 

6. 0 Medical Malpractice Insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 

aggregate shall be required when medically related services are provided. 

7. • Garage Keepers Liability Insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 

aggregate shall be required when County owned vehicles and/or equipment are stored and/or 
serviced at the Contractors facilities. 

8. 0 Other Insurance Coverages as may be dictated by the provided product/service and deemed 
appropriate by the County Risk Management Department. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 22 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office [ Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

General Insurance Conditions 

The aforementioned insurance shall be endorsed, as applicable, and shall contain the following terms, 
conditions, and/or endorsements. All certificates of insurance shall provide evidence of compliance with 
all required terms, conditions and/or endorsements. 

1. All policies of insurance shall be on a primary, non~contributory basis with any other insurance or self
insurance carried by the County; 

2. The insurance company(s) issuing the policy(s) shall have no recourse against the County for 
subrogation (policy endorsed written waiver), premiums, deductibles, or assessments under any form. 
All policies shall be endorsed to provide a written waiver of subrogation in favor of the County; 

3. Any and all deductibles or self-insured retentions shall be assumed by and be at the sole risk of the Contractor; 

4. Contractors shall be responsible for their own property insurance for all equipment and personal 
property used and/or stored on County property; 

5. The Commercial General Liability and Commercial Automobile Liability policies along with any 
required supplemental coverages shall be endorsed to name the County of Oakland and it officers, 
directors, employees, appointees and commissioners as additional insured where permitted by law 
and policy form; 

6. If the Contractor's insurance policies have higher limits than the minimum coverage requirements 
stated in this document the higher limits shall apply and in no way shall limit the overall liability 
assumed by the Contractor under contract. 

7. The Contractor shall require its contractors or sub-contractors, not protected under the Contractor's 
insurance policies, to procure and maintain insurance with coverages, limits, provisions, and/or 
clauses equal to those required in this Contract; 

8. Certificates of insurance must be provided no less than ten (10) Business Days prior to the County's 
execution of the Contract and must bear evidence of all required terms, conditions and 
endorsements; and provide 30 days' notice of cancellation/material change endorsement. 

9. All insurance carriers must be licensed and approved to do business in the State of Michigan along 
with the Contractor's state of domicile and shall have and maintain a minimum A.M. Best's rating of 
A- unless otherwise approved by the County Risk Management Department. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 23 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLANO COUNTY EXECUTIVE; DAVID COULTER 

EXHIBIT II 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 
(Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Requirements) 

Exhibit II is a Business Associate Agreement between Contractor ("Business Associate") and the County 
("Covered Entity"). This Exhibit is incorporated into the Contract and shall be hereinafter referred to as 
"Agreement." The purpose of this Agreement is to facilitate compliance with the Privacy and Security 
Rules and to facilitate compliance with HIPAA and the HITECH Amendment to HIPAA. 

§1. 

1.1 

DEFINITIONS. The following terms have the meanings set forth below for purposes of the 
Agreement, unless the context clearly indicates another meaning. Terms used but not otherwise 
defined in this Agreement have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy Rule. 

Business Associate. "Business Associate" means the Contractor. 

1.2 CFR. "CFR" means the Code of Federal Regulations. 

1.3 Contract. "Contract" means the document with the Purchasing Contract Number. 

1.4 Contractor. "Contractor" means the entity or individual defined in the Contract and listed on the 
first page of this Contract. 

1.5 Covered Entity. "Covered Entity" means the County of Oakland as defined in the Contract. 

1.6 Designated Record Set. "Designated Record Set" is defined in 45 CFR 164.501. 

1.7 Electronic Health Record. "Electronic Health Record" means an electronic record of health
related information on an individual that is created, gathered, managed, and consulted by 
authorized health care clinicians and staff. 

1.8 HIPAA. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. 

1.9 HITECH Amendment. "HITE CH Amendment" means the changes to HIPAA made by the Health 
Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act. 

1.10 Individual. "Individual" is defined in 45 CFR 160.103 and includes a person who qualifies as a 
personal representative in 45 CFR 164.502(g). 

1.11 Privacy Rule. "Privacy Rule" means the privacy rule of HIPAA as set forth in the Standards for Privacy of 
Individually Identifiable Health Information at 45 CFR part 160 and part 164, subparts A and E. 

1.12 Protected Health Information. "Protected Health Information" or "PHI" is defined in 45 CFR 
160.103, limited to the information created or received by Business Associate from or on behalf of 
Covered Entity. 

1.13 Required By Law. "Required By Law" is defined in 45 CFR 164.103. 

Rev 11 /2612019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 24 

i 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

1.14 Secretary. "Secretary" means the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or 

his or her designee. 

1.15 Security Incident. "Security Incident" is defined in 45 CFR 164.304. 

1.16 Security Rule. "Security Rule" means the security standards and implementation specifications at 

45 CFR part 160 and part 164, subpart C. 

§2. OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE. Business Assoeiate agrees to perform 

the obligations and activities described in this Section. 

2.1 Business Associate understands that pursuant to the HITECH Amendment, it is subject to the HIPAA 
Privacy and Security Rules in a similar manner as the rules apply to Covered Entity. As a result, 
Business Associate shall take all actions necessary to comply with the HIPAA Privacy and Security 
Rules for business associates as revised by the HITECH Amendment, including, but not limited to, the 

following: (a) Business Associate shall appoint a HIPAA privacy officer and a HIPAA security officer; 
(b) Business Associate shall establish policies and procedures to ensure compliance with the Privacy 
and Security Rules; (c) Business Associate shall train its workforce regarding the Privacy and Security 

Rules; (d) Business Associate shall enter into a privacy/security agreement with Covered Entity; 
(e) Business Associate shall enter into privacy/security agreements with its subcontractors that 
perform functions relating to Covered Entity involving PHI; (f) Business Associate shall conduct a 
security risk analysis; and (g) Business Associate shall provide documentation upon request in 

relation to performance under this section. 

2.2 Business Associate shall not use or disclose PHI other than as permitted or required by this 
Agreement or as required by law. 

2.3 Business Associate shall use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of the PHI. 
Business Associate shall implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards (including 
written policies and procedures) that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, 
integrity, and availability of PHI that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of 

Covered Entity as required by the Security Rule. 

2.4 Business Associate shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to Business 
Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate in violation of law or this Agreement. 

2.5 Business Associate shall report to Covered Entity any known Security Incident or any known use or 
disclosure of PHI not permitted by this Agreement. 

2.6 Effective September 23, 2009 or the date this Agreement is signed, if later, Business Associate shall do 
the following in connection with the breach notification requirements of the HITECH Amendment: 

2.6.1 If Business Assodate discovers a breach of unsecured PHI, as those terms are defined by 45 CFR 
164.402, Business Associate shall notify Covered Entity without unreasonable delay but no later than 
ten (10) calendar days after discovery. For this purpose, "discovery" means the first day on which 

the breach is known to Business Associate or should have been known by exercising reasonable 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 25 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

----·.:c--:--.:----------·-="7:-__________ -:.·---. ~--.,-~-.-·.--.---.•;_.__.-, '····-•·······••-"•. 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248•858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

dillgence. Business Associate shall be deemed to have knowledge of a breach if the breach is known 
or should have been known by exercising reasonable diligence, to any person, other than the person 
committing the breach, who is an employee, officer, subcontractor, or other agent of Business 
Associate. The notification to Covered Entity shall include the following: (a) identification of each 
individual whose unsecured PHI has been breached or has reasonably believed to have been 
breached, and (b) any other available information in Business Associate's possession that the 
Covered Entity is required to include in the individual notice contemplated by 45 CFR 164.404. 

2.6.2 Notwithstanding the immediate preceding subsection, Business Associate shall assume the 
individual notice obligation specified in 45 CFR 164.404 on behalf of Covered Entity where a 
breach of unsecured PHI was committed by Business Associate or its employee, officer, 
subcontractor, or other agent of Business Associate or is within the unique knowledge of Business 
Associate as opposed to Covered Entity. In such case, Business Associate shall prepare the notice 
and shall provide it to Covered Entity for review and approval at least five (5) calendar days before 
it is required to be sent to the affected individual(s). Covered Entity shall promptly review the 
notice and shall not unreasonably withhold its approval. 

2.6.3 Where a breach of unsecured PHI involves more than five htindred (500) individuals and was 
committed by the Business Associate or its employee, officer, subcontractor, or other agent or is 
within the unique knowledge of Business Associate as opposed to Covered Entity, Business 
Associate shall provide noti'ce to the media pursuant to 45 CFR 164.406. Business Associate shall 
prepare the notice and shall provide it to Covered Entity for review and approval at least five (5) 
calendar days before it is required to be sent to the media. Covered Entity shall promptly review 
the notice and shall not unreasonably withhold its approval. 

2.6.4 Business Associate shall maintain a log of breaches of unsecured PHI with respect to Covered 
Entity and shall submit the log to Covered Entity within thirty (30) calendar days following the end 
of each calendar year, so that the_Covered Entity may report breaches to the Secretary in 
accordance with 45 CFR 164.408. This requirement shall take effect with respect to breaches 
occurring on or after September 23, 2009. 

2. 7 Business Associate shall ensure that any agent or subcontractor to whom it provides PHI, received 
from Covered Entity or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, agrees 
in writing to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to Business Associate with respect to such 
information. Business Associate shall ensure that any such agent or subcontractor implements 
reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect Covered Entity's PHI. 

2.8 Business Associate shall provide reasonable access, at the written request of Covered Entity, to 
PHI in a Designated Record Set to Covered Entity or, as directed in writing by Covered Entity, to an 
Individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR 164.524. 

2.9 Business Associate shall make any amendment(s) to PHI in a Designated Record Set that the 
Covered Entity directs in writing or agrees to pursuant to 45 CFR 164.526. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 26 

k: 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

2.10 Following receipt of a written request by Covered Entity, Business Associate shall make internal 
practices, books, and records reasonably available to the Secretary in order to determine Covered 
Entity's compliance with the Privacy Rule. The afore mentioned materials include policies and 
procedures and PHI relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from Covered Entity or 
created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity. 

2.11 Business Associate shall document disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures, 
to permit Covered Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for: (a) an accounting of 
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR 164.528 or (b) effective January 1, 2011 or such later 
effective date prescribed by regulations issued by the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services, an accounting of disclosures PHI from an Electronic Health Record in accordance with the 
HITECH Amen-dment. 

2.12 Following receipt of a written request by Covered Entity, Business Associate shall provide to 
Covered Entity or an Individual information collected in accordance with Section 2 to permit 
Covered Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for: (a) an accounting of disclosures of PHI 
in accordance with 45 CFR 164.528 or (b) effective as of January 1, 2011 or such later effective 
date prescribed by regulations issued by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, an 
accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information from an Electronic Health Record in 
accordance with the HITECH Amendment. 

§3. PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY BUSINESS ASSOCIATE. Business Associate may use and 
disclose PHI as set forth in this Section. 

3.1 Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use or disclose PHI to 
perform functions, activities, or services for or on behalf of Covered Entity as specified in the 
underlying service agreement between Covered Entity and Business Associate, provided that such 
use or disclosure shall not violate the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity or the minimum 
necessary policies and procedures of the Covered Entity. If no underlying service agreement 
exists between Covered Entity and Business Associate, Business Associate may use or disclose PH! 
to perform functions, activities, or services for or on behalf of Covered Entity for the purposes of 
payment, treatment, or health care operations as those terms are defined in the Privacy Rule, 
provided that such use or disclosure shall not violate the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity or 
the minimum necessary policies and procedures of the Covered Entity. 

3.2 Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use PHI for the proper 
management and administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities 
of the Business Assodate. 

3.3 Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may disclose PHI for the proper 
management and administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities 
of the Business Associate, provided that disclosures are Required by Law or Business Associate 
obtains reasonable assurances in writing from the person to whom the information is disclosed 
that: (a) the disclosed PHI will remain confidential and will be used or further disclosed only as 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 27 

IC ,. 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248•858..05111 purchasfng@oakgov.com 

Required by Law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the person and {b) the person 
notifies the Business Associate of any known instances in which the confidentiality of the 
information has been breached. 

3.4 Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use PHI to provide data 
aggregation services to Covered Entity as permitted by 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2}(i)(B). 

3.5 Business Associate may use PHI to report violations of law to appropriate federal and state 
authorities, consistent with 45 CFR 164.502(j)(1). 

§4. OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY. 

4.1 Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any limitation(s) of Covered Entity in its notice of 
privacy practices in accordance with 45 CFR 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect 
Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI. 

4.2 Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes in or revocation of permission by an 
Individual to use or disclose PHI, to the extent that such changes may affect Business Associate's 
use or disclosure of PHI. 

4.3 Covered Entity shall use appropriate safeguards to maintain and ensure the confidentiality, privacy 
and security of PHI transmitted to Business Associate pursuant to this Agreement, the Contract, 
and the Privacy Rule, until such PHI is received by Business Associate, pursuant to any 
specifications set forth in any attachment to the Contract. 

4.4 Covered Entity shall manage all users of the services including its qualified access, password 
restrictions, inactivity timeouts, downloads, and its ability to download and otherwise process PHI. 

4.5 The Parties acknowledge that Covered Entity owns and controls its data. 

4.6 Covered Entity shall provide Business Associate with a copy of its notice of privacy practices 
produced in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, as well as any subsequent changes or 
limitation(s) to such notice, to the extent such changes or limitations may affect Business Associate's 
use or disclosure of PHI. Covered Entity shall provide Business Associate with any changes in or 
revocation of permission to use or disclose PHI, to the extent the changes or revocation may affect 
Business Associate's permitted or required uses or disclosures. To the extent that the changes or 
revocations may affect Business Associate's permitted use or disclosure of PHI, Covered Entity shall 
notify Business Associate of any restriction on the use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has 
agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.522. Covered Entity may effectuate any and all 
such notices of non-private information via posting on Covered Entity's web site. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 28 



§5. 

5.1 

5.2 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

EFFECT OF TERMINATION. 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248•858,0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Except as provided in Section 5, upon termination of this Agreement or the Contract, for any 
reason, Business Associate shall return or destroy (at Covered Entity's request) all PHI received 
from Covered Entity or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity. This 
provision shall apply to PHI that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of Business 
Associate, Business Associate shall retain no copies of PHI. 

If Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the PHI is infeasible, Business 
Associate shall provide to Covered Entity written notification of the conditions that make return or 
destruction infeasible. Upon receipt of written notification that return, or destruction of PHI ls 
infeasible, Business Associate shall extend the protections of this Agreement to such PHI and shall 
limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or 
destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI, which shall be for a 
period of at least six (6) years. 

§6 MISCELLANEOUS. 

6.1 This Agreement is effective when the Contract is executed or when Business Associate becomes a 
Business Associate of Covered Entity and both Parties sign this Agreement, if later. However, 
certain provisions have special effective dates, as set forth herein or as set forth in HIPM or the 
HITECH Amendment. 

6.2 Regulatory References. A reference in this Agreement to a section in the Privacy Rule or Security 
Rule means the section as in effect or as amended. 

6.3 Amendment. The Parties agree to take action to amend this Agreement as necessary for Covered 
Entity to comply with the Privacy and Security requirements of HIPAA. If the Business Associate 
refuses to sign such an amendment, this Agreement shall automatically terminate. 

6.4 Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate and Covered Entity under 
this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement and/or the Contract. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 29 



.... -- --·., . - . -c---- -· -- - .... ·····- -~- -.--- -- ---- - -- .. -· -•.JJ.>, ••• - ••• - • - ·- •• ---- -- - -- ••• --.~,.-·.·-·-·---·-·.=-.----·-·---··-.. '.·.·----.---.--·,---.-,-,-.-.-.---.---,-.. •. 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

EXHIBIT Ill 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS WITH ACCESS TO COUNTY PII 
(Personally Identifiable Information} 

Exhibit Ill governs the requirements for Contractors with Access to Personally Identifiable Information (PII). 

1. DEFINITIONS 

1.1 Security Breach means the unauthorized access, acquisition, theft, or disclosure of PII. 

1.2 PII (Personally Identifiable Information) means a name, number, or other information that is used 
for the purpose of identifying a specific person or providing access to a person's financial accounts, 
including, but not limited to, a person's name, address, telephone number, driver's license or state 
personal identification card number, social security number, place of employment, employee 
identification number, employer or taxpayer identification number, government passport number, 
health insurance identification number, mother's maiden name, demand deposit account number, 
savings account number, financial transaction device account number or the person's account 
password, any other account password in combination with sufficient information to identify and 
access the account, automated or electronic signature, biometrics, stock or other security certificate 
or account number, credit card number, vital record, or medical records or information as well as 
the first name or first initial and last name linked to a social security number, driver's license or state 
personal identification card or financial account number in combination with a code or password 
that would permit access to a person's financial account(s) and as otherwise may be defined by state 
or federal laws governing the unauthorized access to personal information. 

2. OBLIGATIONS 

2.1 Contractor shall not use or disclose PII other than as permitted or required by this Contract or as 
required by law. 

2.2 Contractor shall implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards (including written 
policies and procedures) that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and 
availability of PII that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits on behalf of the County. 

2.3 Contractor shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect known to Contractor of the 
use or disclosure of PII in violation of law or this Contract. 

2.4 If Contractor or Contractor Employees discover a Security Breach, Contractor shall notify the 
County without unreasonable delay, but no later than within forty-eight (48) hours of discovery. 
For this purpose, "discovery" means the first day on which the Security Breach is known to 
Contractor or Contractor Employee or should have been known by exercising reasonable diligence. 
Contractor shall be deemed to have knowledge of a Security Breach if the Security Breach is 
known or should have been known by exercising reasonable diligence by any person, other than 
the person committing the Security Breach. The notification to the County shall include the 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 30 

1 •• : 



2.5 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-05111 purchasing@oakgov.com 

following: (a) describe the Security Breach in general terms; (b) describe the type of personal 
information that is the subject of the Security Breach; (c} identify each individual whose PII has 
been breached or has reasonably believed to have been breached; (d} describe in general terms, 
what Contractor has done to prevent additional Security Breaches; and (e) provide any other 
available information in Contractor or subcontractor's possession that may be necessary to 
comply with Security Breach notification laws. 

If the County determines it will provide the notice of the Security Breach to the affected individuals 
and/or to governmental authorities, Contractor shall reimburse the County for: (a) its costs in 
notifying the affected individuals; (b} the cost of third-party credit and identify monitoring services 
to each of the affected individuals with compromised PII for no less than twenty-four (24) months 
following the date of notification to each individual; and (c) costs associated with the Security 
Breach, including but not limited to any costs incurred by the County in investigating and resolving 
the Security Breach, including reasonable fees associated with such investigation and resolution. 
Without limiting Contractor's obligations of indemnification as described in the Contract, Contractor 
shall indemnify, defend, and hold .harmless the County for any and all claims, including reasonable 
attorneys' fees, costs, and incidental expenses, which may be suffered by, accrued against, charged 
to, or recoverable from the County in connection with the Security Breach. Contractor shall 
reimburse County for the applicable costs described above within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
itemization of costs incurred by the County because of the Security Breach. 

2.6 Within ten (10) calendar days of its discovery of the Security Breach, Contractor shall provide the 
County with a detailed plan describing the measures Contractor will undertake to prevent a future 
Security Breach. The County shall have the right to audit, inspect and test Contractor's new 
safeguards put in place because ofthe Security Breach. Contractor shall be responsible for 
recreating lost County Data in the manner and on the schedule set by the County without charge 
to the County. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 31 



... ,,~_-_______ -.._.-_-_cc,;- <a,-.·-.·,_-,.,-_,-,,,,•,,.-.•~,,.-. • •· . •••·· ._,.,_, ••• -- ·,-:-

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

EXHIBIT IV 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.cdm 

REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS WITH ACCESS TO CJIS DATA 
(Criminal Justice Information Security} 

Exhibit IV governs the requirements for Contractors with Access to Criminal Justice Information governed 
by the CJ I Security Policy of the FBI. 

1. Definitions 

1.1 Criminal Justice Information (01) means data or information governed _by the CJIS Security Policy. 

1.2 Criminal Justice Information Services (CJIS) means the Criminal Justice Information Services, a 
division in the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) that sets a minimum standard of security 
requirements to protect and safeguard CJI. 

1.3 OIS Security Policy means the Policy that governs the security of CJI. The CJIS Security Policy 
provides guidance for the creation, viewing, modification, transmission, dissemination, storage, 
and destruction of CJI. This Policy applies to every individual-contractor, private entity, 
noncriminal justice agency representative, or member of a criminal justice entity-with access to, 
or who operate in support of, criminal justice services and information. 

2. Obligations 

Contractor shall comply with the current version of the CJIS Security Policy, which may be 
amended from time to time by the CJIS Advisory Policy Board of the FBI. A link to the current FBI 
standards is available: https://www.fbi.gov/services/cjls/cjis-security-po!icy-resource-center 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 32 

i 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

EXHIBIT V 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858,0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

FEDERALLY FUNDED CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

Exhibit V sets forth additional provisions for all federally funded contracts. To the extent that this Contract 
is funded, in whole or in part, by any federal award, the following provisions apply: 

1. Termination. In addition to the termination rights set forth in Section 4 of this Contract, the 
County may terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, for cause upon notice to Contractor if 
Contractor breaches any duty or obligation in the Contract and fails to cure the breach, to the 
County's satisfaction, if applicable. 

1.1 Right to Cure. If the Contractor breaches this Contract, and the County, in its sole discretion, 
determines that the breach is curable, then the County must provide the Contractor with written 
notice of the breach and a time period (not less than thirty (30) Days} to cure the breach. The 
notice of breach and opportunity to cure do not apply in the following circumstances: (1) for 
successive or repeated breaches; (2) if the County determines in its sole discretion that the breach 
poses a serious and imminent threat to the health or safety of any person or the imminent loss, 
damage, or destruction of any real or tangible personal property; or (3) if the County terminates 
the Contract under this Section or Section A above. The effective date for termination or 
cancellation shall be clearly stated in the written notice. 

1.2 Termination Deemed for Convenience. If the County terminates the Contract for cause and it is 
determined, for any reason, that Contractor was not in breach of Contract, then the termination 
for cause shall be deemed a termination for convenience, effective as of the same date specified 
in the notfce of breach. 

2. Contractor's Obligations Upon Termination for Cause. If the Contract is terminated for cause, the 
County may require Contractor to pay all costs incurred by the County in terminating the Contract, 
including but not limited to, administrative costs, reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, and any 
reasonable additional costs the County may incur to procure the Deliverables required by the Contract 
from other sources. Re-procurement costs are not consequential, indirect or incidental damages and 
cannot be excluded by any other terms included in this Contract; however, such costs shall not exceed 
50% of the County's financial obligation under this Contract. 

3. Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall comply with the following, if applicable: 

3.1 The Davis·Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations 
(29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed 
and Assisted Construction"); 

3.2 The Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145 et seq.), as supplemented by Department of 
Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public 
Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"); 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 33 



3.3 

3.4 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

~----~-----·----·-- --------~-----~ 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

The Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) as supplemented by 
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5); 

The requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and 
Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any 
implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency; 

3.5 All applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-
7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 u.s.r 1251-1387); 

3.6 All mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state 
energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 
U.S.C. 6201 et seq.); and 

3.7 The Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352 et seq.) 

4. Debarment and Suspension. Contractor certifies that it is not listed on the government-wide 
Excluded Parties List System in the System for Award Management (SAM). Contractor must 
promptly notify the County, if Contractor is listed in SAM at any time during the term, renewal, or 
extension of this Contract. If Contractor is listed in SAM, the County may terminate or cancel this 
Contract, in whole or in part, immediately, upon notice to Contractor. 

5. Equal Employment Opportunity. If this Contract meets the definition of "Federally Assisted 
Construction Contract" under 41 CFR Part 60-1.3, then during the performance of this Contract, 
Contractor agrees as follows: 

5.1 The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 
of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard 
to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to 
the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of.pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for 
training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available 
to employees and applicants for employment, notices to. be provided setting forth the provisions 
of this nondiscrimination clause. 

5.2 The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of 
the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment 
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

5.3 The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a 
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided 
advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under 
this Section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 34 

; 

I 
, .. 



5.4 

5.5 

5.6 

•• - ,. ~•- --.- -- - - - • •-,,-- •,••••-, • __ ••••• • • -•. •-• • • ~--••. -• • - • ,_ •. c,r-.•r• •,• • ",T ·•••.> "r -•, -.- •.-••-• ._,._, - •. "" •.•.• ~ r+ --- •. - • • -,.--• • • -- "•,-,----.-••- _ • • • • • • • • • •• - • - • • • - • ., • • • 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, 
and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant 
thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency 
and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, 
regulations, and orders. 

In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this Contract 
or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this Contract may be cancelled, terminated, or 
suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further 
Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures 
authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be 
imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or 
by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

5.7 The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph E (1) and 
the provisions of paragraphs E (1) through E (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless 
exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 
of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon 
each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing 
such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a 
Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as 
a result of such direction by the administering agency the Contractor may request the United 
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 35 

ii. 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

EXHIBIT VII 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-05111 purchasing@oakgov.com 

LICENSE FOR USE OF COUNTY SERVICEMARK 

County grants to Contractor the non-exclusive right to use its Servicemark {hereinafter "Mark"), described and 

listed in the Servicemark Guidelines (below), for programs and activities that are related to the governmental 

servfces provided by Oakland County, specifically: 

The Mark may be used on: (Applicable if Checked): 

• Printed materials 

• Electronic materials 

• Contractor's website: [insert website address]. 

Contractor shall not use the Mark for any other purpose. 

The Mark must be used by Contractor as shown in the Servicemark Guidelines, with no variations of color, font 

or proportion. Contractor acknowledges that the County has intellectual property rights in the Mark. Nothing 

in this Contract gives Contractor any right, title, or interest in the Mark. Contractor may not take any action 

that will interfere with County's rights in the Mark. 

The County may terminate Contractor's rights under this Exhibit, if County notifies Contractor it has breached 

the terms of this Exhibit and Contractor fails to cure the breach within ten (10) business days of notice of 

breach. Following termination of this Exhibit, Contractor shall have ten (10) business days to remove the Mark 

from the materials and/or website authorized for use above. Contractor shall provide County with written 

confirmation that such actions have been taken. Upon termination of the Contract, Contractor shall cease all 

use of the Mark. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 36 

I 

! 

!. 
,. 
i. 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Servicemark Guidelines 

The Guidelines for proper use of the Mark provided to the Contractor are as follows: 

OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
LOGO BRAND STANDARDS 

!ffilW.i'~W.~~'W'~.,,,~ . 
f~~~~~MW~ !if>, 

Oa,1snd County hM 1wo logoa t11at 0an be used 
lnterr.hartg~abfy. Use the Horizontal Two Tmes logo 
as your default cholc,,. This is our primer)' logo. The 
Stacl<ed Log() can t)e \!Sed wh,;never space or size 
Is a consideration in yuur publication. Ertt,er logo is 
acceptable tor ell Oakland County publications. 

However, only one style of lugo may be U$ed per 
publication. For Instance, If you have the horizontal 
logo on the front of a publication, you can't use the 
$tacked logo e!sewhere In 'the document. 

Piok om, logo style for each publication and use it ll 
througho,rt, do not mixed styl!aS. 

HORllOUTAL ''TWO TREeS'' L.000 

$TACKED LOOO 

OAKIAND 
COUN1Y 
MICHIGAN 

. i;,· J~.i,"~,;;l!ll-.l,i-m 
Lo(l(ls snould appear in rulh'Y.>lor when usoo l~ a 
full color design, whenever possible. Howe,1er, if lhe 
publication raqulras a single colorvernion ,tine logo, 
cheese either all-black or ell-whtte. No other color is 
acceptabli;. 

• -

Accent colors for 1he brand are pulled from two o)har 
major s,wicemarks ior Oakland County. These cobrs 
may ba used as secondary co!om in publications. 

Forquastions.:ir c1arificaJlon on these brand s!anc!aitis • 
plooso contact; 

Pam.Tremble 
Graphic Designer 

CO'Jnly Executive Administration 
(24S) 858-8964 I 1tom1>1op@oakgov.com 

·,111~: Adob.e swatch Exct1ange 
~ n,ti.r,!Mf~l .a;.+.:-,!~ U .;.,;~\v,/>~:~r.t~s,01 

Do not provide copies to a third-party of any artwork provided to you by County and referenced in this Exhibit 

without the express consent of County. 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 37 

I: 

i. 
I. 
I 
t" 
i: 
I! 
1: 



.---=-.. •,~. -~-.C".-.. -.-r•,.•,•;.-r"•c.-.-•--•'-0" •',• • ~ • • -• • • - • • . • --

. OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

EXH 1B IT VIII 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchaslng@oakgov.com 

ACl<NOWLEDGEMENT OF INDEPENDENT EMPLOYMENT STATUS 

!, _______________ __, acknowledge that I am an employee or subcontractor of 

(Name of Contractor's Company): __________________ _ 

(hereinafter "Company") under Contract#: ____ __,_ and 

• At all times during my assignment at Oakland County, I will remain an employee or 
subcontractor of the Company 

" I am not an employee of Oakland County; and, 

" I may not represent myself as an employee of Oakland County. 

I understand that: 
• Company is responsible for establishing the conditions of my assignment to Oakland County; and 
" Company is solely responsible for compensating me for my services; and 
• I understand and agree that as an employee or subcontractor of Company, I am not eligible to 

participate in or accrue any benefits under any of Oakland County's employee benefits or benefit plans, 
including retirement, deferred compensation, insurance (including without limitation: health, disability 
dental and life insurance), vacation pay, and any other similar plans and programs. However, if I am a 

retired County employee, I may receive vested post-employment benefits such as retiree healthcare 
and pension benefits from Oakland County. I understand that the post-retirement benefits I receive 
from the County cannot be enhanced by my work for the above Contractor. 

I acknowledge that: 
" I have no copyright, patent, trademark or trade secret rights to any Oakland County Intellectual 

Property or any work developed by me while providing services to Oakland County; and, 
• If I will be given access to the County Network, I will comply with the Oakland County Electronic 

Communications and Use of Technology Policy. 
• I will comply with and sign the FBI Criminal Justice Information Services Security Addendum if I 

will have access to CJIS Data. 

Signed: __________________ _ Date: _______ _ 

Print Name: ________________ _ 

Witness: _________________ _ Date: ________ _ 

Print Name: ________________ _ 

*Contractor or Contractor Employee must provide a copy of completed form to the Compliance Office -
Purchasing Unit at Purchasinq@oakqov.com to receive a County Identification badge. 

Rev 11126/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005952 
Page 38 



-. > ,., ;-.,,r --•••••-•-•,·.r.•.• ••• r _ •• .• ,~.--•..,_•.•.•-•.-;.•.••---.r•.-.--•• ~-;c--•---~--~ 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

EXHIBIT IX 

Compliance Office [ Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

SCOPE OF CONTRACTOR DELIVERABLES/FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS 

1. General 
WRC anticipates numerous maintenance and rehabilitation projects will be performed by one or 
more contractors during the duration of the Contract. The scope and duration of each project 

will be developed prior to assigning to the contractor. Based on the scope developed, for any 
individual project, WRC may request a project estimate from one or more of the contractors, 

based on the Contract rates/ unit prices or lump sum amounts. The project estimate may be 
used as a not to exceed amount for that particular project, as agreed upon between WRC and 
the Contractor. Project assignments will be made at the sole discretion of WRC. 

2. Contractor Availability 
The Contractor must be available for emergency services, with the ability to mobilize on site and 
be ready to work within 2 hours of being notified for any emergency maintenance or repair. In 

addition, the Contractor must have the ability to work flexible hours, including nighttime hours, 
and 4 day, ten hour per day work weeks, as determined necessary by WRC. 

3. Inspection 
WRC shall provide full time inspection, during the duration of each project. No operation{s) shall 

commence without WRC inspection, unless otherwise approved by WRC. 
4. Work Cancellation 

WRC will have complete discretion to cancel work due to weather and or other circumstances with 
no penalty to WRC. WRC will strive to provide reasonable notification of cancelled work. 

5. Invoicing 
Contractor invoicing shall be performed on a monthly basis or a mutually agreed upon schedule 
between WRC and the Contractor. Invoicing shall be itemized in accordance with the Contractor 

line items and segregated by the type of work and work order. 
For each project, the contractor may bill only one mobilization charge. 
Contractor shall provide back-up information such as purchase orders, invoices, delivery 
receipts and subcontractors a required by WRC for all subcontracted services and purchased 

material and supplies. 
6. .Non-productive Time 

Non-productive time due to equipment failure or other Contractor determined cause will not be 

included in the Contractor's monthly invoice. 
7. Grant Eligibility 

Certain projects may have grant eligibility requirements which will be provided by the Contractor 

at no cost to WRC, unless otherwise agreed upon. 
8. Safety 

Contractor shall be responsible for adhering to all local, State, and Federal Safety Standards. No 
additional payment will be made for any items needed to adhere to all local, State and Federal 
Safety Standards. 

9. Maintenance and Rehabilitation Services 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 39 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Rev 11/26/2019 

(a) General 
Bidders shall be capable of providing one or more of the services detailed below. All 
work shall be performed in a professional manner and shaU be consistent with the 
practices of the trade and the attached specifications for each operation. Specific 
information regarding items b-i will be found in Attachment C. 

(b) Thermal (Hot Water or Steam) Cured in Place Pipe Liner 
Provide for the reconstruction of sewer pipes by the use of the Cured-in-Place Pipe 

(C.1.P.P.) process utilizing the trench less method of installation of a resin
impregnated, flexible tube which is inverted into the existing sewer by hydrostatic 
head or steam and cured by means of thermally heated water or steam. Full length 
pipe liners, spot liners and lateral liners could be requested. When cured, the finished 

sewer lining shall be tight fitting and continuous from end to end. This operation 
shall be performed in accordance with the attached Thermal Cured in Place Pipe 
Specification or as otherwise agreed upon by WRC. 

(c) UV Cured in Place Pipe Liner 
Provide for the reconstruction of sewer pipes by the use of the Cured-in-Place Pipe 
(C.1.P.P.) process utilizing the trench less method of installation of a resin
impregnated, flexible tube which is inverted into the existing sewer by hydrostatic 
head or steam pressure and cured by means of ultraviolet light. 

When cured, the finished sewer lining shall be tight fitting and continuous from end 
to end. This operation shall be performed in accordance with the attached UV Cured 

in Place Pipe Specification or as otherwise agreed upon by WRC. 
(d) By-Pass Pumping and Dewatering 

Provide by-pass pumping and dewatering services as determined necessary and 
agreed upon between WRC and the Contractor. 

(e} Manhole and Pipe Rehabilitation by Spray Lining 
Provide for the reconstruction of manholes and sewer pipes by the use of the Spray 
Lining Rehabilitation process, spraying a cementitious lining, epoxy lining or another 

approved material into an existing host manhole and/or pipe. This operation shall 
be performed in accordance with the attached Manhole and Pipe Rehabilitation 

and Spray Lining Specification or as otherwise agreed upon by WRC. . 

(f} Sewer Cleaning 
The cleaning of small, moderate and large diameter sewers, complete with removal 
and disposal of debris resultant from the cleaning operation. Cleaning shall include, 
but not limited to, the removal of dirt, grease, rocks, roots, also other foreign solid 
or semi-solid material and obstructions from designated sewer lines and structures, 
including disposal of the materials. The work of this section shall conform to the 
applicable portions of the National Association of Sewer Service Companies 
(NASSCO) and performed in accordance with the attached Sewer Cleaning 
Specifications, or as otherwise approved by WRC. 

(g) Sewer Pipe Joint Testing and Sealing 
Sewer pipe joint testing is used to test the integrity (tightness or leakage) of 
individual pipe joints. The intent of pipe joint testing is to identify those sewer pipe 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 40 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

joints that are defective (allowing groundwater to enter the sewer system) and that 
can be successfully sealed by the internal pipe joint sealing process. Testing of joints 
which are visibly leaking (inffltrating) is unnecessary because the intent of testing is 
obviously attained. Testing cannot be performed and will not be required on cracked 
or broken pipe, building sewers, or sections of pipe between joints. Sealing is done by 
grouting of internal joints of sewer pipes which have failed the joint test criteria 
described in Sewer Pipe Joint Testing Specification. All grout shall contain root 
inhibitor unless specified otherwise. 

(h) CCTV/ Sewer Inspection 
Sewer inspection shall include Closed Circuit TV (CCTV) and/or Walk through 
Inspections of large diameter sewers. Personnel viewing the live video feed in the 
televising van must be NASSCO certified and have at least three years of certified 
NASSCO grading experience. All work must be in PACP format. WRC uses 
Granite Net software. The work of this section shall conform to the applicable 
portions of the National Association of Sewer Service Companies (NASSCO) and 
performed in accordance with the attached CCTV Inspection Specifications. All videos 
and reports shall be submitted on a portable hard drive or thumb drive and shall 
include work order numbers, footage and a video log. DVD's will not be accepted. 
Contractor shall keep copies of video and reports for one {1) year on a separate 
dedicated WRC hard drive. Video and reports shall be submitted with any payment 
request for WRC review prior to issuance of payment. 

(i) Other as Needed Services 
Other maintenance and rehabilitation services not identified in this RFP may be 
included in the Contractor's proposal. For these services the Contractor's proposal 
shall include a clear description of the proposed service, including applicable 
specifications and applicable pricing. 

PART 1 General 

1.01 SUMMARY 

Rev 11/26/2019 

1.01.01 Section includes thermal cured in place pipe. 
1.01.01.01 It is the intent of this specification to provide for the 
reconstruction of sewer pipes by the use of the Cured-in-Place Pipe {C.I.P.P.) 
process utilizing the trench less method of installation of a resin-impregnated, 
flexible tube which is inverted into the existing sewer by hydrostatic head or 
air pressure and cured by means of heated water or air (WRC approval only). 
When cured, the finished sewer lining shall be tight fitting and continuous 
from end to end. 

1.01.02 Referenced Specifications: 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 
CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 

Page 41 



,r,,, •~-• ;•.•->.•._•~ • ;• ,.-•.: -.•••••-~•• --,.-~--••• ~----. 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

1.01.02.01 CCTV Inspection Sewer 
1.01.02.02 Sewer Cleaning 
1.01.02.03 Sewer Pipe Joint Testing 

1.01.02.04 Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing 
1.01.02.05 Chemical Sealing (Grout) Material 
1.01.02.06 By-Pass Pumping 

1.01.02.07 Manhole and Pipe Rehabilitation and Spray Lining 
1.02 QUALITY CONTROL 

1.02.01 All work for this section shall conform to the applicable portions of the latest 
Standard Specifications: 

1.02.01.01 ASTM D 5813 - 04 (2008) 
1.02.01.02 ASTM F 1216 - 09 (including Appendix X1) 
1.02.01.03 ASTM F 2019-03 
1.02.01.04 ASTM F 1743-96 (2003) 

1.02.02 However, where the requirements of ASTM D 5813, ASTM F 1216, ASTM F 2019 or 

ASTM D 1743 conflict with the requirements of this section, this section shall govern. 
1.03 SUBMITTALS 

1.03.01 CCTV Inspection Sewer. 
1.03.01.01 A CCTV inspection of the sewer before conditions and after 
conditions including the restore connections shall be completed per the CCTV 

Inspection Sewer specifications and turned over to the Owner and become 
their property. 

1.03.02 Material Test 
1.03.02.01 Material test shall be furnished to the Owner for review and 
approval prior to beginning the rehabilitation work, satisfactory written 

guarantee of compliance with the standards specifications for all materials, 
techniques, and installation methods being used in the rehabilitation process. 

1.04 BY-PASS PUMPING PLAN 
1.04.01.01 Submit a detailed sewer by-pass pumping plan to WRC for review 

fifteen (15) days prior to the beginning of work per the By-Pass Pumping 
specifications. 

1.04.02 Request for Deviation 
1.04.02.01 Any deviation in this specification or reference specifications must 
have prior approval from WRC. 

1.05 DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS 

Rev 11/26/2019 

1.05.01 Treat the pipe as full deteriorated host pipe always for your design. 
1.05.02 Minimum CIPP Physical Properties: 

OAKLAND COUNlY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 42 

i 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248"858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Material 

Property Test Method 
Polyester 

Enhanced 
Vinyl Ester Epoxy 

Polyester 

Short Term Modulus ASTM D790 350,000 psi 400,000 psi 350,000 psi 350,000 psi 

of Elasticity 

Long Term Modulus ASTM D790 150,000 psi 200,000 psi 125,000 psi 150,000 psi 
of Elasticity 

Creep Retention ASTM D790 50% 50% 50% 50% 
Factor 

Flexural Stress ASTM D790 4,500 psi 4,500·psi 4,500 psi 4,500 psi 

1.05.02.01 Poisson's ratio= 0.30 

1.05.02.02 Safety Factor= 2.0 
1.05.02.03 Soil Density= 130 lbs/cft 
1.05.02.04 Soil Modulus 

1.05.02.04.01 700 psi for pipe inverts up to and including 15 feet deep. 

1.05.02.04.02 1,000 psi for pipe inverts greater than 15 feet deep. 
1.05.02.05 Surcharged Loading of HS-20 when any part of the sewer is under 
any roadway and E-80 when under any railroad. 

1.05.03 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall determine the liner thickness and resin quantity 

per ASTM F 1216, Appendix Xl.3.2 for the Fully Deteriorated Pressure Pipe condition and 
shall follow the requirements specified in this section. These detailed calculations shall 

provide the input data as well as the actual calculation for equations Xl.1, Xl.3, X1.4 and 
Xl.7 of Appendix Xl. of ASTM F1216. The design submittal shall also clearly identify the 
physical properties used for design and be sealed by a licensed Professional Engineer. 
These physical properties shall be the basis for acceptance of the final product. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

2.01 FELT LINER TUBE 

Rev 11/26/2019 

2.01.01 The Tube shall consist of one or more layers of flexible, needled felt or an 
equivalent nonwoven material. The material shall be capable of carrying the specified 
resin, be able to withstand installation pressures and curing temperatures, and be 
compatible with the resin used. 
2.01.02 The outer Tube coating shall consist of a translucent elastomer that allows for 

visual inspection and verification of proper resin impregnation. To help with this visual 
inspection a dye shall be placed in the resin and the color should be uniformed and must 
be approved by WRC. The plastic coating shall hold the resin inside the Tube without 

leakage, accommodate installation, and stretch to the size and shape of the existing 
sewer, and shall not delaminate before, during, or after curing. 

2.01.03 The Tube shall have a uniform thickness that when compressed at installation 
pressure will meet or exceed the design thickness. The thickness of the Tube shall be 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 
CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 

Page 43 



• • .-. • .-. -r. •• -• • --• • - • ----•--------- • • ~~ •• .• • • • • ••• • .~ • -- • 1•-:• • ---.--• •• •• .-~.:.r.•_,.,,., •. • •• •• • • • •• • • • .•.~••r•••-•.•-•.-.•.• 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

calculated based upon the resin system values given in this Section. The minimum roller 
gap shall be two times the design thickness plus the felt thickness. 
2.01.04 The CIPP wall thickness shall be calculated from the equation in ASTM F 1216, 
Appendix Xl, based upon the parameters given in this Section. The minimum CIPP wall 
thlckness shall be not less that the value calculated by the equation. Any layers of the 
tube that are not saturated with resin and totally cured shall not be included in the CIPP 
wall thickness. 
2.01.05 The Tube shall be fabricated to a size that when installed will tightly fit the internal 
circumference of the conduit to be lined as spedfied by the Engineer. Allowance for 
circumferential stretching of the pipe during insertion shall be made as per manufacturer's 
recommendations. 
2.01.06 The Tube shall be homogeneous across the entire wall thickness containing no 
intermediate or encapsulated elastomeric layers. No material shall be included in the 
Tube that may cause delamination in the cured CIPP. No dry or unsaturated layers shall be 
evident. The tube shall be constructed to withstand installation pressures and have 
sufficient strength to bridge missing pipe while meeting or exceeding the design wall 
thickness at all pipe location during installation conditions and pressures. 
2.01.07 The wall color of the interior pipe surface of the CIPP after installation shall be a 
light reflective color so that a clear detail examination with closed circuit television 
inspection equipment may be made. 
2.01.08 Seams in the Tube shall be stronger than the unseamed felt. Where the length 
requires joining along the cir:cumference of the Tube, the sewer joint shall not be 
perpendicular to the long axis but spirally formed and sewn. 
2.01.09 The outside of the Tube shall be marked for the distance at regular intervals along 
its entire length, not to exceed five (5) feet. Such marking shall include the manufacturers 
name and identifying symbol. 
2.01.10 The length of the Tube shall be deemed necessary by the AWARDED VENDOR(S) to 
effectively carry out the insertion and seal the pipe at the inlet and outlet points. The 
AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall verify the lengths in the field before cutting the Tube to 
length. Lengths of sewer can be lined over one or more access points as determined in the 
field by the AWARDED VENDOR{S) and approved by the ENGINEER. 

2.02 RESIN 

Rev 11/2612019 

2.02.01 Resin shall be enhanced polyester, vinyl ester, or epoxy. Resin selected shall be 
resistant to the chemical composition of the sewage. 
2.02.02 Resin with higher than minimum physical properties may be required for 
AWARDED VENDOR(S) to meet minimum field cured physical properties of the completed 
liner. 
2.02.03 The resin shall be thermosetting resin that is compatible with the lining process 
and shall meet the requirements of ASTM F 1216 except as otherwise specified in this 
section. The resin shall be able to cure in water with an initiation temperature for cure of 
not less than 120Q F. The cured resin/felt system shall be suitable for the expected 
conditions within the existing sanitary sewer. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 44 

I 



~- OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 
COUNTY MICHIGAN 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

2.02.04 If an epoxy resin is used and there is water present in the pipe a pre-liner must be 
used. 
2.02.05 Fiberglass reinforced system should be about 50% resin and 50% fiberglass by 
volume where the rest are about 85% resin to 15% fabric by volume. 
2.02.06 Alternate resins shall only be allowed per 1.02.03.04.01 of this specification. 

2.03 FIELD CURED LINER 
2.03.01 The completed liner as installed and fully cured in place shall meet the following 
minimum physical properties for short term flexural modulus and flexural strength given 
per 1.02.04 of this specification. 
2.03.02 The layers of the cured CIPP shall be uniformly bonded. It shall not be possible to 
separate any two layers with a probe or point of a knife blade so that the layers separate 
cleanly or the probe or knife blade moves freely between the layers. If separation of the 
layers occurs during testing of field samples, new samples will be cut form the work. Any 
reoccurrence may cause rejection of the work. 

PART 3 EXECUTION 
3.01 SAFETY 

3.01.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall carry out his operations in strict accordance with 
all OSHA, MIOSHA, traffic and manufacturer's safety requirements. 

3.02 CLEANING OF PIPELINES 
3.02.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall follow WRC's Sewer Cleaning specification. 

3.03 PRE-REHABILITATION INSPECTION OF PIPELINE 
3.03.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall follow WRC's CCTV Inspection Sewer 
specification. The location of any conditions which may prevent proper installation of the 
lining materials into the pipelines shall be noted and reported immediately to WRC and 
corrected by section 3.05. 

3.04 BY-PASS PUMPING 
3.04.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall follow WRC's By-Pass Pumping specification. 

3.05 LINE OBSTRUCTIONS 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.05.01 It shall be the responsibility of the AWARDED VENDOR(S) to clear the line of any 
obstructions such as solids, dropped joints, protruding branches, roots, or broken pipe 
that will prevent proper insertion of the liner. If inspection reveals an obstruction that 
cannot be removed by conventional cleaning equipment, then the obstruction shall be 
removed by equipment operating with the pipeline. 
3.05.02 Services shall not protrude more than¼ inch on any size sewer line. Anything 
protruding more than that shall be ground down as flush as possible with the wall of the 
sanitary sewer. Grinding shall be done with equipment operation inside of the sewer and 
shall not cause damage to the sewer or the service being ground. 
3.05.03 If the protruding service is in such condition that grinding is not possible or in 
condition that such a repair cannot be done from the inside then the AWARDED 
VENDOR(S) shall inform WRC that a spot repair is necessary and provide all the details. 
Once WRC gives its approval the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall make a spot repair 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 45 

I~', .. 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 [ purchasing@oakgov.com 

excavation, to uncover, remove, and repair the obstruction. The use of a flail type reamer 
to remove protruding services is not allowed. 

3.06 INSTALLATION OF RESIN IMPREGNATED TUBE 
3.06.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall designate a location where the uncured resin in 
the original containers and the un-impregnated liner will be resin impregnated prior to 
installation. The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall allow WRC's personal to inspect all materials 
and procedures and will not commence with any work without WRC1s personal on site 
unless given written permission by WRC. A resin and catalyst system compatible with the 
requirement of section 1.02.04 shall be used. The quantities of the liquid thermosetting 
materials shall be per manufacturer's standards to provide the cured liner properties 
specified. Sufficient resin shall be used to fill the volume of air voids in the liner with 
additional allowance for polymerization, shrinkage and loss of resin through cracks and 
irregularities in host pipe wall. The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall ensure that the proper 
amount of resin is uniformly distributed throughout the entire length of the Tube. 
3.06.02 The wetting out, installation, and curing ofthe resin impregnated tube shall be in 
accordance with ASTM F 1216. The Tube shall be inserted through an existing manhole or 
other approved access by means of an inversion process, the application of a hydrostatic 
head sufficient to fully extend the liner to the next designated access point, or any other 
means approved by WRC. 
3.06.03 The process will be adjusted as necessary to ensure a complete lining without over 
stressing or tearing the lining; and with sufficient pressure to hold the liner snug to the 
pipe wall and to produce dimples at side connection and flared ends at the entrance and 
exit access points. The use of a lubricant is recommended and if used, such lubricant shall 
be compatible with the rehabilitation process. 
3.06.04 The manufacturer's standards shall be closely followed during the elevated curing 
temperature so as not to over stress the felt fiber and cause damage or failure of the liner 
prior to cure. 

3.07 CURING 

Rev 11 /2612019 

3.07.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall submit a cure plan for approval by WRC. No work 
shall commence until the AWARDED VENDOR(S) gets WRC's approval. 
3.07.02 Hot water or heat cured liners are required for the full length of the liner. 
Ambient cure liners may be used for spot repair liners or can be substituted for a full 
length liner only with approval by WRC. 
3.07.03 After installation of the resin impregnated liner is completed the AWARDED 
VENDOR(S) shall supply a suitable heat source and water recirculation equipment when 
necessary to cure the liner. The equipment shall be capable of delivering hot water to the 
far end of the liner through a hose, which has been perforated per manufacturer's 
recommendations, to uniformly raise the water temperature in the entire pipe above the 
temperature required to affect a cure of the resin. This temperature shall be determined 
by the resin/catalyst system employed. 
3.07.04 The heat source shall be fitted with suitable monitors to gauge the temperature of 
the incoming and outgoing circulating water/air. Thermocouples shall be placed at the 
end of the Tube and between the Tube and existing pipe at the access points to determine 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 
CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 

Page 46 

.( 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-05111 purchasing@oakgov.com 

the temperature of the cure. Temperature in the line during the cure period shall not be 
less than 1509 For more than 2009 Fas measured at the heat exchanger return line. 
3.07.05 Initial cure shall be deemed to be completed when inspection of the exposed 
portions of the liner appears to be hard and sound and the thermocouples indicate that an 
exotherm has occurred. The cure period shall be of a duration recommended by the resin 
manufacturer, as modified for the lining process, during which time the recirculation of 
the water/air and cycling of the heat exchanger to maintain the temperature in the liner 
continues. 

3.08 COOL-DOWN 
3,08.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall cool the CIPP to a temperature below 909 F 
before relieving the static pressure in the liner. Cool-down may be accomplished by the 
introduction of cool water into the liner to replace water being drained from the 
downstream end. Care shall be taken in the release of the static head such that a vacuum 
will not be developed that could damage the newly installed liner. 

3.09 FINISH 
3.09.01 The cured liner shall be continuous over the entire length of an insertion run and 
be as free as commercially practicable from visual defects such as foreign inclusions, dry 
spots, pinholes and delamination. The lining shall be impervious and free of any leakage. 
3.09.02 Any defects which will affect the integrity of the liner, or any deficiencies in 
required strengths or thicknesses, shall be repaired or removed and replaced at the 

· AWARDED VENDOR(S)'S expense, in a manner acceptable to WRC. 
3.10 SEALING LINER AT THE ENDS 

3.10.01 If due to broken or misaligned pipe at the access point, the lining fails to make a 
tight seal, the AWARDED VENDOR{S} shall apply a seal at that point. The seal shall be of a 
resin mixture compatible with the installed liner. 

3.11 BRANCH OR SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
3.11.01 After the liner has been cured, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall reconnect the 
existing service connections. This shall generally be done without excavation and in the 
case of non~man entry pipes, from the interior of the pipeline by means of a television 
camera and cutting device that re-establishes them to operational capacity. After cutting 
open the service connections, the AWARDED VENDOR(S} shall use a brushing device from 
the interior of the pipeline by means of a television camera that touches-up the full 
circumference of the service connection to a minimum of 95% open and to eliminate any 
rough or jagged edges plus be smooth in the flow line. 
3.11.02 Reconnection of services shall begin immediately after curing of the CIPP has been 
completed. No service shall be interrupted for more than 12 hours unless otherwise 
approved by WRC. 

3.12 POST REHABILITATION TELEVISION INSPECTION 
3.12.01 The completed sewer shall be television inspected per the CCTV Inspection Sewer 
specification by the AWARDED VENDOR(S} after completion of the service connections. 

3.13 CIPP PIP TESTING 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.13.01 Testing in accordance W!th ASTM F 1216 (including appendixes), ASTM D 790, 
ASTM F 1743, ASTM F 2019 and ASTM D 5813 will be conducted and must witnessed by 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 47 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

WRC. Air test or hydrostatic tests must be done prior to re-establishing service 
connections and all other test shall be done within a month of the installation by the 
AWARDED VENDOR(S) at no additional cost to WRC. 
3.13.02 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall prepare samples of the liner for each section of 
sewer lined in accordance with Section 8 of ASTM F 1216. Samples shall be labeled for 
date, diameter, section of sewer, and delivered to WRC for future testing. When tested, 
each sample shall meet the physical properties for flexural modulus and flexural strength 
used in the design calculations. 
3.13.03 Air testing on isolated sections of sewer (2-3 feet in length) shall be required if 
post-rehabilitation inspection indicates leaks in the liner. The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall 
remove and replace or repair any defects in the installed liner to the satisfaction of WRC at 
no additional costs. 

3.14 TRAFFIC CONTROL 
3.14.01 During the entire rehabilitation process, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall provide 
all necessary barricades, signs, flagmen, minor traffic devices, etc., to maintain both 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic and if not possible all necessary barricades, signs, minor 
traffic devices, etc. for the road and sidewalk closure per the Michigan Manual of Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices. 

3.15 CLEAN UP 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.15.01 Upon completion of the installation work and after required testing indicates the 
lining(s) are acceptable, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall restore the project area affected 
by his operation to its original condition. 

END OF SECTION 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 48 

ji 

i 

i 



~~~- ---~---~--------------~ 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

UV Cured in Place Pipe Liner - 6 pages 

PART 1 General 

3.16 SUMMARY 
3.16.01 Section includes UV cured in place pipe. 

3.16.01.01 It is the intent of this specification to provide for the reconstruction of 
sewer pipes by the use of the Cured-in-Place Pipe (C.I.P. P.) process utilizing the 
trench less method of installation of a resin-impregnated, flexible tube which is 
inverted into the existing sewer by hydrostatic head or air pressure and cured by 
means of ultraviolet light. When cured, the finished sewer lining shall be tight 
fitting and continuous from end to end. 

3.16.02 Referenced Specifications: 
3.16.02.01 CCTV Inspection Sewer 
3.16.02.02 Sewer Cleaning 
3.16.02.03 Sewer Pipe Jornt Testing 
3.16.02.04 Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing 
3.16.02.05 Chemical Sealing (Grout) Material 
3.16.02.06 By-Pass Pumping 
3.16.02.07 Manhole and Pipe Rehabilitation and Spray Lining 

3.17 QUALITY CONTROL 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.17.01 All work for this section shall conform to the applicable portions of the latest 
Standard Specifications: 

3.17 .01.01 ASTM D 5813 - 04 (2008) 
3.17 .01.02 ASTM F 1216 - 09 (including a II Appendices) 
3.17.01.03 ASTM F 2019-11 
3.17.01.04 ASTM D 3567 
3.17.01.05 ASTM D 790 
3.17.01.06 ASTM D 2990 
3.17.01.07 DIN EN 761 
3.17.01.08 APS Water Porosity Standard 

3.17.02 However, where the requirements of ASTM F1216, ASTM D5813, ASTM F2019, 
ASTM 03567, ASTM D790, ASTM D2990, DIN EN 761 or APS Water Porosity Standard 
conflict with the requirements of this section, this section shall govern. 
3.17.03 Submittals 

3.17.03.01 CCTV Inspection Sewer. 
1.17.03.01.01 A CCTV inspection of the sewer before conditions and after 
conditions including the restore connections shall be completed per the 
CCTV Inspection Sewer specifications and turned over to the Owner and 
become their property. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 49 

!: 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.17.03.02 Material Test 
1.17.03.02.01 Material test shall be furnished to the Owner for review and 
approval prior to beginning the rehabilitation work, satisfactory written 
guarantee of compliance with the standards specifications for all materials, 
techniques, and installation methods being used in the rehabilitation 
process. 

3.17.03.03 By-Pass Pumping Plan 
1.17.03.03.01 Submit a detailed sewer by-pass pumping plan to WRC for 
review fifteen (15) days prior to the beginning of work per the By-Pass 
Pumping specifications. 

3.17.03.04 Request for Deviation 
1.17.03.04.01 Any deviation in this specification or reference specifications 
must have prior approval from WRC. 

3.17.04 Design considerations 
3.17.04.01 Treat the pipe as full deteriorated host pipe always for your design. 
3.17.04.02 Minimum CIPP Physical Properties: 

Property Test Method 
Material 

Short Term Modulus of Elasticity ASTM 0790 
Long Term Modulus of Elasticity ASTM D790 
Creep Retention Factor ASTM D790 
Flexural Stress ASTM D790 

3.17.04.03 Enhancement factor (K) = 7.0 
3.17.04.04 An ovality (q) = 0% 
3.17.04.05 Poisson's (v) ratio= 0.30 
3.17.04.06 Safety Factor= 2.0 
3.17.04.07 Soil Density= 130 lbs/cft 
3.17.04.08 Soil Modulus 

Polyester npg Vinyl Ester 

750,000 psi 750,000 psi 

150,000 psi 125,000 psi 

50% 50% 
4,500 psi 4,500 psi 

1.17.04.08.01 700 psi for pipe inverts up to and including 15 feet deep. 
1.17.04.08.02 1,000 psi for pipe inverts greater than 15 feet deep. 

3.17.04.09 Surcharged Loading of HS-20 when any part of the sewer is under any 
roadway and E-80 when under any railroad. 
3.17.04.10 The Cf PP design shall assume no bonding to the original pipe wall. 

3.17.05 The AWARDED VENDOR(S} shall determine the liner thickness and resin quantity 
per ASTM F 1216, Appendix Xl.3.2 for the Fully Deteriorated Pressure Pipe condition and 
shall follow the requirements specified in this section. These detailed calculations shall 
provide the input data as well as the actual calculation for equations Xl.1, Xl.3, Xl.4 and 
Xl.7 of Appendix X1. of ASTM F1216. The design submittal shall also clearly identify the 
physical properties used for design and be sealed by a licensed Professional Engineer. 
These physical properties shall be the basis for acceptance of the final product. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 50 



"-~ +-~-.. •-~ ,~ ---••• • • -.• • • __ • __ ~- • ••• _ • •- ~•• • "••-,- •• • • • • • • • • • •-•• _______ ---~--••• •• •• • •• .rrr ,r r-r • • • · · 

i 
I 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER i>-

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-051.1 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

PART 4 PRODUCTS 

4.01 FIBERGLASS LINER TUBE 

Rev 11/26/2019 

4.01.01 The fabric tube, resin and external pre-liners shall produce a CIPP that meets the 
requirements of ASTM F 2019-11. 
4.01.02 The glass fiber tubing shall be seamless and spirally wound, including an exterior 
and interior film must be used for resin control (to prevent resin migration and 
contamination). The exterior film will be provided with an UV light blocker foil. 
4.01.03 The Tube shall consist of a seamless, spirally wound fiberglass that is flexible and 
has strain values (expandable) of up to ten (10) percent. The tube will not have a 
longitudinal seam, including a stitched seam, stitch-free weld or bond, or stitch-free 
overlap. The tube shall be constructed to withstand installation pressures and have 
sufficient strength to bridge missing pipe. 
4.01.04 The inner film an outer film must both be certified styrene gas barriers. The inner 
liner film shall be removed running the installation process unless it is a permanent part of the 
system and is made an integral part of the carrier tube by bonding of fusing the carrier tube. 
4.01.05 The Tube shall have a uniform thickness that when compressed at installation 
pressure will meet or exceed the design thickness. The thickness of the Tube shall be 
calculated based upon the resin system values given in this specification. The minimum 
roller gap shall be two times the design thickness plus the felt thickness. 
4.01.06 The CIPP wall thickness shall be calculated from the equation in ASTM F 1216, 
Appendix Xl, based upon the parameters given in this specification. The minimum CIPP 
wall thickness shall be not less that the value calculated by the equation. Any layers of the 
tube that are not saturated with resin and totally cured shall not be included in the CIPP 
wall thickness. 
4.01.07 The Tube shall be fabricated to a size that when installed will tightly fit the internal 
circumference of the conduit to be lined as specified by WRC. Allowance for 
circumferential stretching of the pipe during insertion shall be made as per manufacturer's 
recommendations. 
4.01.08 The Tube shall be homogeneous across the entire wall thickness containing no 
intermediate or encapsulated elastomeric layers. No material shall be included in the 
Tube that may cause delamination in the cured CIPP. No dry or unsaturated layers shall be 
evident. The tube shall be constructed to withstand installation pressures and have 
sufficient strength to bridge missing pipe while meeting or exceeding the design wall 
thickness at all pipe location during installation conditions and pressures. 
4.01.09 The wall color of the interior pipe surface of the CIPP after installation shall be a 
light reflective color so that a clear detail examination with closed circuit television 
inspection equipment may be made. 
4.01.10 The glass fiber Tube shall be saturated with the appropriate resin using a resin 
bath to allow for the lowest possible amount of air entrapment. Vacuum-suction 
impregnation methods are not allowed due to the introduction of air using this method. 
The line will then be formed into a spirally wound shape for the purpose of being seamless 
in the cured state. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE~ PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 51 

t: 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

4.01.11 The outside of the Tube shall be marked for the distance at regular intervals along 
its entire length, not to exceed five (5) feet. Such marking shall include the manufacturers 
name and identifying symbol. 
4.01.12 The length of the Tube shall be deemed necessary by the AWARDED VENDOR(S} to 
effectively carry out the insertion and seal the pipe at the inlet and outlet points. The 
AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall verify the lengths in the field before cutting the Tube to 
length. Lengths of sewer can be lined over one or more access points as determined in the 
field by the AWARDED VENDOR(S} and approved by the ENGINEER. 

4.02 RESIN 
4.02.01 Resin shall be polyester npg or vinyl ester. Resin selected shall be resistant to the 
chemical composition of the sewage. 
4.02.02 To help with visual inspection of the resin once the liner is installed and before it is 
cured a dye, color approved by WRC, shall be placed in the resin and the color should be 
uniformed. 
4.02.03 Resin with higher than minimum physical properties may be required for 
AWARDED VENDOR(S) to meet minimum field cured physical properties of the completed 
liner. 
4.02.04 The resin shall be UV curing resin that is compatible with the lining process and 
shall meet the requirements of ASTM F 1216 except as otherwise specified in this section. 
The cured resin/fiberglass system shall be suitable for the expected conditions within the 
existing sanitary sewer. 
4.02.05 Alternate resins shall only be allowed per 1.02.03.04.01 of this specification. 

4.03 FIELD CURED LINER 
4.03.01 The completed liner as installed and fully cured in place shall meet the following 
minimum physical properties for short term flexural modulus and flexural strength given 
per 1.02.04 of this specification. 
4.03.02 The layers of the cured CIPP shall be uniformly bonded. It shall not be possible to 
separate any two layers with a probe or point of a knife blade so that the layers separate 
cleanly or the probe or knife blade moves freely between the layers. If separation of the 
layers occurs during testing of field samples, new samples will be cut form the work. Any 
reoccurrence may cause rejection of the work. 

PART 5 EXECUTION 
5.01 SAFETY 

5.01.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall carry out his operations in strict accordance with 
all OSHA, MIOSHA, traffic and manufacturer's safety requirements. 

5.02 CLEANING OF PIPELINES 
5.02.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall follow WRC's Sewer Cleaning specification. 

5.03 PRE-REHABILITATION INSPECTION OF PIPELINE 

Rev 11/26/2019 

5.03.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall follow WRC's CCTV Inspection Sewer 
specification. The location of any conditions which may prevent proper installation of the 
lining materials into the pipelines shall be noted and reported immediately to WRC and 
corrected by section 3.05. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 52 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

5.04 BY-PASS PUMPING 
5.04.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall follow WRC's By-Pass Pumping specification. 

5.05 LINE OBSTRUCTIONS 

5.05.01 It shall be the responsibility of the AWARDED VENDOR(S) to clear the line of any 
obstructions such as solids, dropped joints, protruding branches, roots, or broken pipe 
that will prevent proper insertion of the liner. If inspection reveals an obstruction that 
cannot be removed by conventional cleaning equipment, then the obstruction shall be 
removed by equipment operating with the pipeline. 
5.05.02 Services shall not protrude more than¼ inch on any size sewer line. Anything 
protruding more than that shall be ground down as flush as possible with the wall of the 
sanitary sewer. Grinding shall be done with equipment operation inside of the sewer and 
shall not cause damage to the sewer or the service being ground. 
5.05.03 If the protruding service is in such condition that grinding is not possible or in 
condition that such a repair cannot be done from the inside then the AWARDED 
VENDOR(S) shall inform WRC that a spot repair is necessary and provide all the details. 
Once WRC gives its approval the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall make a spot repair 
excavation, to uncover, remove, and repair the obstruction. The use of a flail type reamer 
to remove protruding services is not allowed. 

5.06 INSTALLATION FOR RESIN IMPREGNATED TUBE 

Rev 11/26/2019 

5.06.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall designate a location where the uncured resin in 
the original containers and the un-impregnated liner will be resin impregnated prior to 
installation. The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall allow WRC's personal to inspect all materials 
and procedures and will not commence with any work without WRC's personnel on site 
unless given written permission by WRC. 
5.06.02 The glass fiber tube shall be saturated with the appropriate resin using a resin 
bath to allow for the lowest possible amount of air entrapment. Vacuum-suction 
impregnation methods are not allowed due to the introduction of air using this method. 
The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall ensure that the proper amount of resin is uniformly 
distributed throughout the entire length of the Tube. 
5.06.03 The wetting out, installation, and curing of the resin impregnated tube shall be in 
accordance with ASTM F 1216. The Tube shall be inserted through an existing manhole or 
other approved access by means of an controlled tension winching process sufficient to fully 
extend the liner to the next designated access point, or any other means approved by WRC. 
5.06.04 A Slip sheet shall be installed on the bottom half of the pipe prior to liner 
insertion, the purpose of smoothing out the bottom of the liner to increase flow 
characteristics. 
5.06.05 A pre-liner tube or outer film shall be inserted into the pipe prior to inserting the 
liner, unless it is manufactured on the exterior of the liner. The pre-liner tube shall control 
resin loss, contamination of the resin by water or other contaminates, and prevent 
blocked or plugged services and laterals. The pre-liner tube shall be reinforced plastic 
sheet formed into a tube sized to fit the host pipe and shall be continuous from manhole 
to manhole. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 53 

1. 

I' 
·,. 

! 
l·O 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

5.06.06 A constant tension winch should be used to pull the glass fiber liner into position in 
the pipe. Once inserted, end plugs shall be used to cap each end of the glass fiber tube liner 
to prepare for pressurizing the liner. The end plugs shall be secured with straps to prevent 
them from being expelled due to the pressure. Liner restraints shall be used in manholes. 
5.06.07 The process will be adjusted as necessary to ensure a complete lining without over 
stressing or tearing the lining; and with sufficient pressure to hold the liner snug to the 
pipe wall and to produce dimples at side connections and flared ends at the entrance and 
exit access points. The use of lubricant is recommended and if used, such lubricant shall 
be compatible with the rehabilitation process. 
5.06.08 The manufacturer's standards shall be closely followed during the curing so as not 
to over stress the fiberglass tube and cause damage or failure of the liner prior to cure. 

5.07 CURING 

5.07.01 The UV light sources shall be assembled according to the manufacturer's 
specifications for the liner diameter. For the liner to achieve the required water tightness 
and specified mechanical properties, the following parameters shall be controlled during 
the entire curing process, giving WRC a record of the curing parameters over every 
segment of the entire length of the liner. This demonstrates that the entire liner is cured 
properly. The recoding will include: 

5.07.01.01 Curing Speed 
5.07.01.02 Light source working and wattage 
5.07.01.03 Inner air pressure 
5.07.01.04 Exothermic (curing) temperatures 
5.07.01.05 Date and time 
5.07.01.06 Length of liner 

5.07.02 This will be accomplished using a computer and data base that are tamper proof. 
During the curing process, infrared sensors will be used to record curing data that will be 
submitted to WRC with a post TV inspection per the specifications for CCTV Inspection Sewer. 

5.07.02.01 The parameters for curing speed, inner air pressure and wattage are 
defined in the Quality Tracker UV curing protocol issued by the manufacturer. The 
optimal curing speed, or travel speed of the energized UV light sources, is 
determined for each length of liner based on liner diameter, liner thickness, and 
exothermic reaction temperature. 

5.07.03 The inner film material shall be removed and discarded after curing to provide 
optimal quality of the final product. 
5.07.04 Flushing of the cured fiberglass/UV cured CIPP line (to reduce styrene residual) is 
not required for fiberglass/UV cured CIPP products that provide 3rd party test results that 
document styrene residual levels (without flushing) are within acceptable defined levels. 

5.08 FINISH 

Rev 11126/2019 

5.08.01 The cured liner shall be continuous over the entire length of an insertion run and 
be as free as commercially practicable from visual defects such as foreign inclusions, dry 
spots, pinholes and delamination. The lining shall be impervious and free of any leakage. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 54 

' ,, 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

5.08.02 Any defects which will affect the integrity of the liner, or any deficiencies in 
required strengths or thicknesses, shall be repaired or removed and replaced at the 
AWARDED VENDOR(S)'S expense, in a manner acceptable to WRC. 

5.09 SEALING LINER AT THE ENDS 

5.09.01 If due to broken or misaligned pipe at the access point, the lining fails to make a 
tight seal, the AWARDED VENDOR($) shall apply a seal at that point. The seal shall be of a 

resin mixture compatible with the installed liner. 
5.10 BRANCH OR SERVICE CONNECTIONS 

5.10.01 After the liner has been cured, the AWARDED VENDOR($) shall reconnect the 

existing service connections. This shall generally be done without excavation and in the 
case of non-man entry pipes, from the interior of the pipeline by means of a television 

camera and cutting device that re-establishes them to operational capacity. After cutting 
open the service connections, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall use a brushing device from 
the interior of the pipeline by means of a television camera that touches-up the full 
circumference to a minimum of 95% open and to eliminate any rough or jagged edges plus 
be smooth in the flow line. 
5.10.02 Reconnection of services shall begin immediately after curing of the CIPP has been 

completed. No service shall be interrupted for more than 12 hours unless otherwise 
approved by WRC. 

5.11 POST REHABILITATION TELEVISION INSPECTION 

5.11.01 The completed sewer shall be television inspected per the CCTV Inspection Sewer 
specification by the AWARDED VENDOR(S) after completion of the service connections. 

5.12 CIPP PIP TESTING 
5.12.01 Testing in accordance with ASTM F 1216 (including appendixes), ASTM D 790, 
ASTM F 1743, ASTM F 2019 and ASTM D 5813 will be conducted and must witnessed by 
WRC. Air test or hydrostatic tests must be done prior to re-establishing service 
connections and all other test shall be done within a month of the installation by the 
AWARDED VENDOR($) at no additional cost to WRC. 

5.12.02 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall prepare samples of the liner for each section of 
sewer lined in accordance with Section 8 of ASTM F 1216. Samples shall be labeled for 
date, diameter, section of sewer, and delivered to WRC for future testing. When tested, 
each sample shall meet the physical properties for flexural modulus and flexural strength 
used in the design calculations. 
5.12.03 Air testing on isolated sections of sewer (2-3 feet in length) shall be required if 
post-rehabilitation inspection indicates leaks in the liner. The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall 
remove and replace or repair any defects in the installed liner to the satisfaction of WRC at 
no additional costs. 

5.13 TRAFFIC CONTROL 

Rev 11/26/2019 

5.13.01 During the entire rehabilitation process, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall provide 
all necessary barricades, signs, flagmen, minor traffic devices, etc., to maintain both 

vehicular and pedestrian traffic and if not possible all necessary barricades, signs, minor 
traffic devices, etc. for the road and sidewalk closure per the Michigan Manual of Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 55 



~e 

~KIAN~ 
COMPLIANCE OFFICE 

PURCHASING 

5.14 CLEAN UP 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

5.14.01 Upon completion of the installation work and after required testing indicates the 
lining(s) are acceptable, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall restore the project area affected 
by his operation to its original condition. 

Rev 11/26/2019 

END OF SECTION 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 56 



..:s.SE.ft...,e 

~D~ OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858--0511 [ purchasing@oakgov.com 

By-Pass Pumping - 5 pages 

PART 1 General 

Rev 11/26/2019 

1.1 SUMMARY 
1.1.1 Section includes By-Pass Pumping 

1.1.1.1 lt is the intent of this specification to implement a temporary pumping 
system for the purpose of diverting the existing flow around a work area for the 
duration of the work. 

1.1.2 Referenced Specifications: 
1.1.2.1 CCTV Inspection Sewer 
1.1.2.2 Sewer Cleaning 
1.1.2.3 Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing 
1.1.2.4 Sewer Pipe Joint Testing 
1.1.2.5 Chemical Sealing (Grout) Material 
1.1.2.6 Thermal Cured in Place Pipe 
1.1.2.7 UV Cured in Place Pipe 
1.1.2.8 Manhole Rehabilitation and Spray Lining 
1.1.2.9 Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 

1.2 QUALITY CONTROL 
1.2.1 All work for this section shall conform to the applicable portions of the latest 
Standard Specifications: 

1.2.1.1 ASTM F 714 
1.2.1,2 
1.2.1.3 
1.2.1.4 

ASTM D 1248 
ASTM D 3550 
ASTM D 2657 

1.2.1.5 APS Water Porosity Standard 
1.2.2 However, where the requirements of ASTM F 714, ASTM D 1248, ASTM D 3550, 
ASTM D 26571 and APS Water Porosity Standards conflict with the requirements of this 
section, this section shall govern. 
1.2.3 AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall perform a leakage and pressure test on the entire 
system using clean water, before beginning the operation. This operation will not 
commence without a WRC inspector on site to witness it. 
1.2.4 Maintain and inspect the by-pass pumping system every two hours. A 
qualified and certified operator from the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall be on-site the 
entire time when the pumps are operating, 
1.2.5 AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall have a redundant back-up system shall be on-
site, tested, and ready to be in operation the entire time when the pumps are 
operating. 
1.2.6 AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall keep and maintain standard typical spare parts 
for the pumps and piping on-site for emergency repairs. 
1.2.7 All pumps and generators shall have the maximum sound suppression units 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 57 

r: 
r 



•·-------------~----------.; ____ ·-·--·-~--~----·------·--.·-- - ..... ..,_, .. _. - - . 

I: 
OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Rev 1112612019 

installed on them to minimize the disturbance to the surrounding area. 

1.3 SUBMITTALS 

1.3.1 AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall submit a detailed plan and description of the 
proposed by-pass pumping system with the following: 

1.3.1.1 By-pass pump sizes, capacity, number of each size to be on site 
and power requirements. 

1.3.1.1.1 Provide pipeline plugs and pumps of adequate size to 
handle peak flow, and temporary discharge piping to ensure total flow 
of main can be safely diverted around section to be repaired. 

1.3.1.2 Backup by-pass pumps, power and piping equipment with a detailed 
operation plan with layout. 
1.3.1.3 Indicate number, size, material, location and method of installation of 
suction and discharge of the piping. 
1.3.1.4 Indicate the staging area, site access point, and expected flow. 
1.3.1.5 Size and location of manhole or access points for suction and 
discharge hose and/or piping. 
1.3.1.6 Cross sections showing suction and discharge pipe depth, embedment, 
select fill and special backfill, if buried. 
1.3.1.7 Temporary pipe support and anchoring required. 
1.3.1.8 Cross sections and details of any temporary crossing entrances, 
driveways, and pedestrian/bikes/etc. 
1.3.1.9 Thrust and restraint block sizes and location or alternative 
methods with calculations. 
1.3.1.10 Sewer plugging method and type of plugs. 
1.3.1.11 Calculations of static lift, friction losses, and flow velocity. Pump 
curves showing pump operating range. 
1.3.1.12 Calculations for selection of by-pass pumping pipe size. 
1.3.1.13 Method of noise control for each pump and/or generator. 
1.3.1.14 Method of protection discharge manholes or structures from erosion and 

damage. 
1.3.1.15 Schedule for installation and maintenance of by-pass pumping system. 
1.3.1.16 Procedures to monitor upstream mains for back up impacts. 
1.3.1.17 Procedures for setup and breakdown of pumping operation. 
1.3.1.18 Emergency plan detailing procedures to be followed in the event of a 
pump(s) failure(s), sewer overflow, service back-ups, and sewage spillage. 

1.3.1.18.1 Maintain a copy of the emergency plan on site for the 
duration of the project. 

1.3.1.19 Certify the by-pass pumping system will meet the requirements of 
codes, Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control and regulatory agencies of the 
MDEQ, WRC, or any other agency having jurisdiction. 

1.3.2 Request for Deviation 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 58 

i; 

I 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

1.3.2.1 Any deviation in this specification. or reference specifications must 
have prior approval from WRC. 

1.4 RESPONSIBILITY FOR OVERFLOWS AND SPILLS 
1.4.1 AWARDED VENDOR(S) ls fully responsible for any overflow(s), spill(s), clean
up(s) and claim(s). There will be no compensation by WRC for these operations. 

1.4.1.1 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall immediately clean-up(s) all resultant 
debris from sewer backups caused by the by-pass pumping operation and shall not 
proceed with the operation, unless the backup system is fully functioning and rssues 
are solved, until the clean- up(s) is resolved to the satisfaction of WRC. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

Rev 11/26/2019 

2.1 MATERIALS 

2.1.1.2 

2.1.1 Discharge and Suction Pipes material must be approved by WRC 
2.1.1.1 Polyethylene Plastic Pipe 

2.1.1.1.1 High density solid wall and following ASTM F 714 
Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Pipe (SDR-DR) based on Outside Diameter, 
ASTM D 1248 and ASTM D 3550. 

2.1.1.1.2 Homogenous throughout, free of visible cracks, discoloration, 
pitting, varying wall thickness, holes, foreign material, bltsters, or other 
deleterious faults. 
High-Density Polyethylene (HOPE) 
2.1.1.2.1 Homogenous throughout, free of visible cracks, discoloration, 
pitting, varying wall thickness, holes, foreign material, blisters, or other 
deleterious faults. 

2.1.1.2.1.2 Defective areas of pipe shall be cut out and joint fused as 
stated herein. 

2.1.1.2.2 Assembled and joined at site using coupling, flanges, or butt-fusion 
method to provide leak proof joint. Follow manufacturer's instruction and ASTM D 
2657. 

2.1.1.2.2.2 Threaded or solvent joints and connections are not 
permitted. 

2.1.1.2.3 Fusing shall be conducted by a personal that has been at least three 
(3) years of experience as a certified fusion technician by the manufacturer of HOPE 
pipe and/or the fusing equipment. 
2.1.1.2.4 Butt-fused joint shall be done by True alignment and uniform roll-
back beads resulting from use of proper temperature and pressure. 

2.1.1.2.4.2 Allow adequate cooling time before removal of pressure. 
2.01.01.02.04.02 Watertight and have tensile strength equal to that of the 
pipe. 
2.01.01.02.04.03 Acceptance by WRC before insertion. 

2.1.1.2.5 Use in streams, storm water culverts and environmentally sensitive 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 59 

i=.;. 
,:--" 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office ] Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

2.1.1.3 

2.1.1.4 

2.1.1.5 

areas. 
Flexible Hoses and Associated Coupling and Connectors 
2.01.01.03.01 Abrasion resistant 
2.1.1.3.2 Suitablefor intended service 
2.1.1.3.3 Rated for external and internal loads anticipated, including test 
pressure. 

2.01.01.03.03.01 External loading design shall incorporate anticipated 
traffic loadings, including traffic impact loading. Use H-20 loading 
requirements. 

Valves and Fittings 
2.1.1.4.1 Determined according to flow calculations, pump sizes previously 
determined, and system operation pressures. 
Plugs 
2.1.1.5.1 Select and installed according to size of line to be plugged, pipe 
and manhole configurations, and based on specific site. 

2.1.1.5.1.2 Additional plugs shall be install in the event of a single 
failure. 
2.1.1.5.1.2 
failure. 
2.1.1.5.1.2 
lead to failure. 

Additional plugs shall be on-site in the event of a plug 

Plug will be inspected before use for defects which may 

2.1.1.6 Aluminum "irrigation type" piping or glued PVC piping will not be permitted. 
2.1.1.7 Discharge hose will only be allowed in short sections when approved by WRC. 
2.1.1.8 All discharges shall have a 901illlelbow on the end directing the flow into the 
channel/pipe of the discharge manhole. 

2.1.1.9 The total rental cost of the by-pass pumping pipe shall not exceed the 
total cost of the pipe. 

2.2 EQUIPMENT 
2.2.1 Pumps 

2.1.1.9.1 When the rental cost of the pipe equals the total cost of the pipe WRC will have the option 
to keep the pipe in their possession after the operation is completed or negotiate a buy back price 
with the AWARDED VENDOR($). 

Rev 11/26/2019 

2.2.1.1 Fully automatic self-priming units that do not require the use of foot-
valves or vacuum pumps in priming system. 
2.2.1.2 Electric or diesel powered 
2.2.1.3 Constructed to allow dry running for long periods of time to 
accommodate cyclical nature of effluent flows. 
2.2.1.4 Necessary stop/start controls for each pump 
2.2.1.5 One standby pump for each on-site pump shall be 

maintained on site. 2.2.1.5.1 On-line, isolated from primary 
system by a valve. 

2.2.1.6 Sound suppression with a maximum of 55 decibels is desired by WRC. 

OAKLAND COUN1Y COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 60 

.,: 

;: 
I 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

3.1 PREPARATION 
3.1.1 Determining location of by-pass pumps and pipelines. 

3.1.1.1 Minimal disturbance to-existing utilities. 
3.1.1.1.1 Field locate existing utilities in proposed by-pass area. 

3.1.2 Obtain approval for placement within public or private property. 
3.1.3 Obtain WRC approval of locations. 

3.2 INSTALLATION AND REMOVAL 
3.2.1 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall remove manhole sections or make 
connection to existing sewer and construct temporary by-pass pumping structures at 
access location indicated on the approved drawings and required to provide adequate 
suction conduit. 
3.2.2 Plugging or blocking of sewage flows shall incorporate a primary and secondary 
plugging device. When plugging or blocking is no longer needed for performance and 
acceptance of work, remove in a manner that permits the sewage flow to slowly return 
to normal without surge, to prevent surcharging or causing other major disturbances 
downstream. 
3.2.3 When working inside manhole or force main, exercise caution. Follow OSHA, 
Federal, State, WRC, and local requirements. Take required measures to protect 
workforce against sewer gases and/or oxygen deficient atmosphere. Take required 
measures to insure the public's safety and access to the work site. 
3.2.4 During by-pass pumping operation, protect the piping from damage 
inflicted by equipment and all construction or public crossings. 

3.3 EMERGENCIES AND LOW FLOWS 
3.3.1 In specific situations a Vactor Truck(s) can be utilized along with plugs to create 
by-pass pumping. 

3.3.1.1 There must be enough trucks on site to handle the flows and not 
adversely affect the upstream or downstream sewer flows and flooding of 
connections. 
3.3.1.2 Extra caution must use to prevent spillage when depositing the 
sewage in an appropriate downstream manhole. 

3.4 TRAFFIC CONTROL 
3.4.1 During the entire rehabilitation process, the AWARDED VENDOR($) shall 
provide all necessary barricades, signs, flagmen, minor traffic devices, etc., to maintain 
both vehicular and pedestrian traffic and if not possible all necessary barricades, signs, 
minor traffic devices, etc. for the road and sidewalk closure per the Michigan Manual 
of Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

3.5 CLEAN UP 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.10.01 Upon completion of the installation work and after the liner is acceptable, the 
AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall restore the project area affected by the operation. Any disturbed 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 61 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

areas shall be replaced with like materials and substantially match the original conditions. 

Rev 11 /2612019 

END OF SECTION 

OAKLAND COUN1Y COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 62 

;.· 

i 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858~0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Dewatering,... 5 pages 

PART 1 General 

Rev 11/26/2019 

1.1 SUMMARY 
1.1.1 Section includes Dewatering 

1.1.1.1 It is the intent of this specification to implement the removal of 
surface water and ground water as necessary to perform the construction 
required. 

1.1.2 Referenced Specifications: 
1.1.2.1 By-Pass Pumping 
1.1.2.2 CCTV Inspection Sewer 
1.1.2.3 Sewer Cleaning 
1.1.2.4 Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing 
1.1.2.5 Sewer Pipe Joint Testing 
1.1.2.6 Chemical Sealing (Grout} Material 
1.1.2.7 Thermal Cured in Place Pipe 
1.1.2.8 UV Cured in Place Pipe 
1.1.2.9 Manhole Rehabilitation and Spray Lining 
1.1.2.10 Trenching, backfilling, and compacting 
1.1.2.11 Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 

1.2 QUALITY CONTROL 
1.2.1 All work for this section shall conform to the applfcable portions of the latest 
Standard Specifications: 

1.2.1.1 ASTM D 7701-11 
1.2.1.2 ASTM D 5611-94(2008} 
1.2.1.3 ASTM D 5978-98(2005} 

1.2.2 However, where the requirements of ASTM D 7701-11, ASTM D5611-94(2008) 
and ASTM D 5978-98(2005} conflict with the requirements of this section, this section 
shall govern. 
1.2.3 Quality Assurance 

1.2.3.4 
1.2.3.5 

1.2.3.1 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall have at least 10 years of experience 
inn specializing in the design of dewatering systems and dewatering work. 
1.2.3.2 Comply with all governing local, county, state and EPA regulations. 
1.2.3.3 Well Points 

1.2.3.3.1 The AWARDED VENDOR($} shall engage a qualified surveyor, 
to perform all layouts and measurements. 
1.2.3.3.2 The surveyor shall layout the work to the lines and grades 
required before installation and shall determine the location of each well 
point, piezometer and other data as required. 
1.2.3.3.3 The surveyor shall record and maintain all information 
pertinent to each well point and piezometer. 

The operation will not commence without a WRC inspector on site. 
Maintain and inspect the pumping system once a day. A qualified and 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 63 

i_-

It 

1. 
1:: 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

certified operator from the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall be on-call the entire time 
when the pumps are operating. 
1.2.3.6 AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall have a redundant back-up system shall be on-
site, tested, and ready to be in operation the entire time when the pumps are operating 
if required by WRC. 
1.2.3.7 AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall keep and maintain standard typical spare 
parts for the pumps and piping on-site for emergen~y repairs if required by WRC. 
1.2.3.8 All pumps and generators shall have the maximum sound suppression 
units installed on them to minimize the disturbance to the surrounding area. 

1.3 SUBMITTALS 

Rev 11/26/2019 

1.3.1 AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall submit a detailed plan and description of the proposed 
dewatering system with the following: 

1.3.1.1 Shop Drawings of the proposed type of dewatering system and design shall 
including relief of hydrostatic head and maintenance of the work area in a dewatered 
and in a hydrostatically relieved condition. 
1.3.1.2 The temporary dewatering system as specified in these specifications shall 
be the minimum system required for controlling groundwater, regardless of source. 
1.3.1.3 The installed system shall be capable of lowering and maintaining the 
groundwater level or hydrostatic head to at least 3-feet below the bottom of the 
utilities that are being repaired or replace so to prevent seepage of water into the 
work area and permit installation of all utilities "in the dry". , 
1.3.1.4 Within these limits, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall be responsible for the 
design of the entire temporary dewatering system and shall make whatever modifications 
and additions to the system as may be required for the system to fulfill its requirements. 
1.3.1.5 Arrangement, location and depths of the components of the system. 
1.3.1.6 A complete description of equipment to be used with installation, 
operation, and maintenance procedures. 
1.3.1.7 Standby equipment and emergency power supply if required by WRC. 
1.3.1.8 Location and size of sumps and discharge lines, including their relation to 
water disposal sites, wetlands or body of water. 
1.3.1.9 Types and sizes of filters. 
1.3.1.10 Location, types and depths of wells, well points and/or observation wells. 
1.3.1.11 Design submittals with calculations demonstrating adequacy of the selected 
system, pump curves and equipment plus proof that this will be accomplished without 
damaging existing building, structures and site improvements adjacent to the work 
area. 

1.3.1.11.1 Design submittal must be signed and sealed by a 
qualified professional engineer responsible for their preparation. 

1.3.1.12 The periphery of the entire work area shall be suitably diked and the 
dikes maintained to prevent surface water from entering the work area. 
1.3.1.13 Coordination within the work area so the dewatering system does not 
interfere with the operations in and around the work area. 
1.3.1.14 Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control plan. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 
CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 

Page 64 

-,-_.-. 
fC 
i: 
,. 
! 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

1.3.1.15 Discharge permit and all other regulatory agencies of the Mi EGLE, WRC, 
or other agency jurisdiction permits. 

1.3.2 Review of dewatering and recharge system by the WRC shall not relieve the 
AWARDED VENDOR(S) from the responsibility for the adequacy of these systems to achieve 
the specified·results. 
1.3.3 Request for Deviation 

1.3.3.1 Any deviation in thi$ specification or reference specifications must have prior 
approval fromWRC. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

Rev 11/2612019 

2.1 MATERIALS 
2.1.1 All Discharge and Transmission Pipe material must be approved by WRC 

2.1.1.1 Polyethylene Plastic Pipe 
2.1.1.1.1 High density solid wall and following ASTM F 714 
Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Pipe (SDR-DR) based on Outside Diameter, ASTM 
D 1248 and ASTM D 3550. 
2.1.1.1.2 Homogenous throughout, free of visible cracks, 
discoloration, pitting, varying wall thickness, holes, foreign material, 
blisters, or other deleterious faults. 

2.1.1.2 High-Density Polyethylene (HOPE) 
2.1.1.2.1 Homogenous throughout, free of visible cracks, 
discoloration, pitting, varying wall thickness, holes, foreign material, 
blisters, or other deleterious faults. 

2.1.1.2.1.2 Defective areas of pipe shall be cut out and joint 
fused as stated herein. 

2.1.1.2.2 Assembled and joined at site using coupling, flanges, or butt
fusion method to provide leak proof joint. Follow manufacturer's 
instruction and ASTM D 2657. 

2.1.1.2.2.2 Threaded or solvent joints and 
connections are not permitted. 

2.1.1.2.3 Fusing shall be conducted by a personal that has at least three 
(3} years of experience as a certified fusion technician by the manufacturer 
of HOPE pipe and/or the fusing equipment. 
2.1.1.2.4 Butt-fused joint shall be done by True alignment and 
uniform roll- back beads resulting from use of proper temperature and 
pressure. 

2.1.1.2.4.2 Allow adequate cooling time before removal of 
·pressure. 2.1.1.2.4.2 Watertight and have tensile strength equal 
to that of the pipe. 
2.1.1.2.4.3 Acceptance by WRC before insertion. 

2.1.1.2.5 Use in streams, storm water culverts and environmentally 
sensitive areas. 

2.1.1.3 Wil-loc Pipe 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 65 



COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

2.1.1.4 Ductile Iron Pipe 
2.1.1.5 PVC Pipe 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office ] Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

2.1.1.5.1 Any mechanical locking joint will need to be approved by WRC. 
2.1.1.5.2 Glued joints will only be allowed on Wellpointing Dewatering. 

2.1.1.6 Flexible or Lay-Flat Hoses and Associated Coupling and 
Connectors. 2.1.1.6.1 Can only be used for short transitions, repairs 
and short discharge runs. 

2.1.1.6.1.1 Abrasion resistant 
2.1.1.6.1.2 Suitable for intended service 
2.1.1.6.1.3 Rated for external and internal loads anticipated, 
including test pressure. 

2.1.1.7 Valves and Fittings 
2.1.1.7.1 Determined according to flow calculations, pump sizes 
previously determined, and system operation pressures. 

2.1.1..8 Aluminum "irrigation type" piping or glued PVC piping will not be 
permitted unless approved by WRC. 

2.1.1.9 External loading design on all pipes must incorporate anticipated 
traffic loadings, including traffic impact loading unless otherwise directed by 
WRC. Use H-20 loading requirements. 

2.1.2 Pumps 

Rev 11/26/2019 

2.1.2.1 Types of Pumps 
2.1.2.1.1 Rotary 
2.1.2.1.2 Vacuum 
2.1.2.1.3 Piston 
2.1.2.1.4 Trash 
2.1.2.1.5 Submersible, Electric and Hydraulic 
2).2.1.6 other 

2.1.2.2 Fully automatic self-priming units that do not require the use of foot-
valves or vacuum pumps in priming system are preferred. 

2.1.2.2.1 For small or surface dewatering a trash pump or similar type 
of pump can be used. 

2.1.2.3 Electric, gas or diesel powered 
2.1.2.4 Constructed to allow dry running for long periods of time to 
accommodate cyclical nature of effluent flows. 
2.1.2.5 Necessary stop/start controls for each pump 
2.1.2.6 One standby pump for each on-site pump shall be maintained 
on site if required by WRC. 

i.i.2.6.1 On-line, isolated from primary system by a valve. 
2.1.2.7 Sound suppression with a maximum of 55 decibels is desired by WRC. 

2.1.3 Discharge Filters 
2.1.3.1 Dewatering Bag 
2.1.3.2 Dewatering Tubes 
2.1.3.3 Dewatering Socks 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLlANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 66 

;_, 

( 

i: 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

PART 3 EXECUTION 
3.1 TYPES OF DEWATERING 

3.1.1 Surface Water 
3.1.2 Wellpoint Dewatering 

3.1.3 Sock Dewatering 
3.1.4 Deep Well 
3.1.5 Slurry Walls 
3.1.6 Educator Dewatering 
3.1.7 Ground Freezing 

3.2 PREPARATION 
3.2.1 Determining location of dewatering pumps and pipelines. 

3.2.1.1 Minimal disturbance to existing utilities. 

3.2.2 Field locate existing utilities 1n proposed dewatering and work area. 
3.2.3 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall call Miss Dig at least 72 hours before 
any dewatering system and/or well is put in. 
3.2.4 Obtain approval for placement within publlc or private property. 
3.2.5 Obtain WRC approval of locations. 

3.3 INSTALLATION 
3.3.1 All water seeping, falling or running into the excavation as it is dug1 and until the 

temporary dewatering system is removed as specified, shall be promptly pumped out. 
3.4 PROTECTION AND DAMAGE 

3.4.1 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall be fully responsible for the failure of all 
components of the temporary dewatering work and for all damages to work in the 
work area caused by the failure to provide, maintain, and operate the temporary 

dewatering system, as specified. 
3.4.1.1 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall protect structures, utilities, sidewalks, 
pavements and other facilities from damage cause by settlement, lateral movement, 

undermining, washout and other hazards created by temporary dewatering system 
installation and operation. 
3.4.1.2 AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall restore all damaged work, including failed 
components of the work in this specification to a condition as good as or better than 
existed prior to failure of components. 

3.5 TRAFFIC CONTROL 
3.5.1 During the entire rehabilitation process, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall provide all 

necessary barricades, signs, flagmen, minor traffic devices, etc.1 to maintain both vehicular and 
pedestrian traffic and if not possible all necessary barricades, signs, minor traffic devices, etc. 
for the road and sidewalk closure per the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

3.6 CLEAN UP 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.6.1 Upon completion of the installation work within the work area, the AWARDED 

VENDOR(S) shall restore the project area affected by the operation shall be replaced with like 
materials and to match in thickness to its substantially the original conditions. 

END OF SECTION 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 67 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Sewer Cleaning - 4 pages 

PART 1 GENERAL 
1.01 SUMMARY 

1.01.01 Section includes sewer line cleaning, manhole cleaning and internal obstruction 
removal. 

1.01.01.01 The cleaning of small, moderate and large diameter sewers, complete 
with removal and disposal of debris resultant from the cleaning operation. 
Cleaning shall include, but not limited to, the removal of dirt, grease, rocks, roots, 
and all other foreign solid or semi-solid material and obstructions from the sewer 
lines and structures. 

1.01.02 Reference Specifications 
1.01.02.01 CCTV Inspection Sewer 
1.01.02.02 Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing 
1.01.02.03 Sewer Pipe Joint Testing 
1.01.02.04 Chemical Sealing {Grout) Material 
1.01.02.05 By-Pass Pumping 
1.01.02.06 Thermal Cured in Place Pipe 
1.01.02.07 UV Cured in P.lace Pipe 
1.01.02.08 Manhole Rehabilitation and Spray Lining 

1.01.03 Quality assurance 
1.01.03.01 The work of this section shall conform to the applicable portions of the 
National Association of Sewer Service Companies {NASSCO) guide lines. 

1.01.04 Request for Deviation 
1.01.04.01 Any deviation in this specification or reference specifications must have 
prior approval from WRC. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

2.01 EQUIPMENT 

Rev 11126/2019 

2.01,01 Hydraulically Propelled Equipment: 
2.01.01.01 The equipment used shall be of i'l movable dam type and be 
constructed in such a way that a portion of the dam may be collapsed at any time 
during the cleaning operation to protect against flooding of the sewer. 
2.01.01.02 The movable dam shall be equal in diameter to the pipe being cleaned 
and shall provide a flexible scraper around the outer periphery to insure removal 
of grease. 
2.01.01.03 If sewer cleaning balls or other equipment which cannot be collapsed is 
used, special precautions to prevent flooding of the sewers and public or private 
property shall be taken. 

2.01.02 High-Velocity Jet (Hydro-cleaning) Equipment: 
2.01.02.01 All high-velocity sewer cleaning equipment shall be constructed for 
ease and safety of operation. 
2.01.02.02 The equipment shall have a selection of two or more high-velocity 
nozzles. 
2.01.02.03 The nozzles shall be capable of producing a scouring action from 15 to 
45 degrees in all size lines designated to be cleaned. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page68 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE Compliance Office I Purchasing 
PURCHASING 248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

2.01.02.04 Equipment shall also include a high-velocity gun for washing and 
scouring manhole walls and floor. The gun shall be capable of producing flows 
from a fine spray to a solid stream. 
2.0:)..02.05 Combination Unit Pump should be capable of pumping at least 80 
gallons per minute (300 liters per minute) at 2,000 psi (13.8 MPa), measured at 
beginning of hose reel. 
2.01.02.06 Water Pumps should be able to run at 2,000 psi (13.8 MPa) while 
pulling full vacuum, completely independent from vacuum system, with ability to 
vary vacuum without affecting water pressure. 
2.01.02.07 The equipment shall carry it own water tank, auxiliary engines, pumps 
and hydraulically driven hose reel. 

2.01.03 Mechanically Powered Equipment 

2.02 WATER 

2.01.03.01 Bucket machines shall be in pairs with sufficient power to perform the 
work in an efficient manner. 
2.01.03.02 Machines shall be belt operated or have an overload device. Machines 
with direct drive that could cause damage to the pipe will not be allowed. 
2.01.03.03 A power rodding machine shall be either a sectional or continuous rod 
type capable of holding a minimum of 750 feet of rod. 
2.01.03.04 The rod shall be specifically heat-treated steel. 
2.01.03.05 To insure safe operation, the machine shall be fully enclosed and have 
an automatic safety clutch or relief valve. 

:: 
I 

I 
I._ 

2.02.01 When water from fire hydrants is used as additional source of water during the 
cleaning operation all proper permits must be pulled. 
2.02.02 Provide temporary piping, valves, certified reduced pressure backflow preventors, I 
equipment, and other items form handing portable water and wastewater. 
2.02.03 Do not utilize water source unit it has been approved by WRC. 

PART 3 EXECUTION 
3.01 EXAMINATION 

3.01.01 Perform CCTV inspection if necessary and will be performed in accordance with 
the TV Inspection Sewer Specification. 

3.02 The WRC shall provide full time inspection. 
3.02.01 No work shall commence without the designated WRC inspector present on site. 
The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall supply a person to assist the inspector when the inspector 
visually checks the cleanliness of the sewer lines. 

3.03 APPLICATION 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.03.01 Clean the designated sewer lines, manhole, and associated struc~u_res using 
approved methods and equipment. 

3.03.01.01 The cleaning shall be in an orderly manner beginning at the high point 
in the line and proceeding to the low point. 
3.03.01.02 The equipment selected for cleaning shall be capable of removing dirt, 
grease, rocks, roots, sludge buildup1 sand and any other deleterious materials and 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 69 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE Compliance Office I Purchasing 
PURCHASING 248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Rev 11/26/2019 

obstructions for the sewer lines, manholes, diversion chambers, drop connections 
and other associated structures. 

3.03.02 Line Obstruction 
3.03.02.01 It shall be the responsibility of the AWARDED VENDOR(S) to clear the 
line of any obstructions such as solids, dropped joints, protruding branches, roots, 
or broken pipe that will prevent proper insertion of the liner. If inspection reveals 
an obstruction that cannot be removed by conventional cleaning equipment, then 
the obstruction shall be removed by equipment operating with the pipeline. 
3.03.02.02 Services 

3.03.02.02.01 Services shall not protrude more than¼ inch on any size 
sewer line. Anything protruding more than that shall be ground down 
as flush as possible with the wall of the sanitary sewer. Grinding shall 
be done with equipment operation inside of the sewer and shall not 
cause damage to the sewer or the service being ground. 
3.03.02.02.02 If the protruding service is in such condition that grinding 
is not possible or in condition that such a repair cannot be done from 
the inside then the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall inform WRC that a spot 
repair is necessary and provide all the details. Once WRC gives its 
approval the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall make a spot repair excavation, 
to uncover, remove, and repair the obstruction. The use of a flail type 
reamer to remove protruding services is not allowed. 

3.03.02.03 Roots 

3.03.03 Blockage 

3.03.02.03.01 Roots shall be removed where root intrusion is found by 
the use of mechanical devices, hydraulic procedures, or chemical root 
treatment. 
3.03.02.03.02 Special precautions shall be used during the cleaning 
operation to assure removal of visible roots from the joint area, which 
could prevent the proper mechanical seal, or application of chemical 
sealants. 
3.03.02.03.03 Use of Chemical root treatment for removal shall be 
subject to approval from WRC. The handling and application of the 
herbicide shall be in strict accordance with the manufacturer's 
recommendation and in such a manner to preclude any damage to 
surrounding vegetation. Any damaged vegetation shall be replaced at 
the expense of the AWARDED VENDOR(S). 

3.03.03.01 In the case where the conditions of the pipe is such as it is badly broken 
or eroded pipe or major blockages which prevents the corY1pletion of the cleaning 
operation, or additional damage to the sewer line would be made if cleaning is 
attempted or continued. 

3.03.03.01.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall immediately notify the 
WRC inspector. 
3.03.03.01.02 The equipment shall be reset on the other structure of 
the line and cleaning of the segment is to resume. If again the 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 70 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE 1 DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office [ Purchasing 
248-858,05111 purchasing@oakgov.com 

equipment fails to transverse the entire segment the AWARDED 
VENDOR(S} shall immediately notify the WRC inspector and stop the 
cleaning operation. The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall note the exact 
location of the blockage. 

3.03.03.01.03 The AWARDED VENDOR{S) shall make suggestions to 
remedy the situation or to make repairs. Upon approval by WRC the 
AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall continue to remedy the situation or make 
the repairs performed in the accordance of those operations 
specifications. 

3.04 PRECAUTIONS 
3.04.01 Pressurized water or other cleaning tools that retard water flow shall be used in a 
manner to ensure that pressure within the sewer line does not cause flooding to public or 
private property served by the sewer being cleaned. 
3.04.02 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall immediately clean-up all resultant debris from 
sewer backups caused by said cleaning operation and shall not proceed with the cleaning 
operation until those clean-ups are resolved to the satisfaction of WRC. 
3.04.03 If sewer cleaning balls/plugs or other such equipment, which cannot be collapsed 
instantly, is used, special precautions against flooding of the sewers and public property 
shall be taken. 
3.04.04 The existing flow within the sewer line shall be utilized to provide the necessary 
pressures for hydraulic cleaning devices whenever possible. Passing of debris between 
sewer line segments, which could cause line stoppages, accumulations of sand in wet 
wells, or damage to pumping equipment will not be permitted. 

3.05 DEBRIS DISPOSAL AND CLEAN-UP 

Rev 1 i/26/2019 

3.05.01 All debris resultant of the cleaning operation shall be removed at the downstream 
structure of the sewer line segment and removed from the system. 
3.05.02 Debris shall be removed from the sewer system and placed directly into 
containers for disposal and/or containers suitable for hauling to the designated disposal 
site. 
3.05.03 For all work done under this contract the designated disposal site shall be the 
Oakland County Septage Unloading Facility located at 1235 Cesar E. Chavez, Pontiac, 
Michigan. 
3.05.04 Once all work is completed the area were the work occurred shall be restored and 
replace with like materials and to matching thickness as substantially as possible to 
preexisting conditions. 

END OF SECTION 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 71 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchaslng@oakgov.com 

Sewer Pipe Joint Testing - 4 pages 

General 

1.1 SUMMARY 
1.1.1 Section includes sewer pipe joint testing. 

1.1.1.1 Sewer pipe joint testing is used to test the integrity (tightness or 
leakage) of individual pipe joints. Testing cannot be performed and will not be 
required on cracked or broken pipe, building sewers, or sections of pipe 

between joints. 
1.1.1.2 · The intent of pipe joint testing is to identify those sewer pipe joints 
that are defective (allowing groundwater to enter the sewer system) and that 
can be successfully sealed by the internal pipe joint sealing process. 

1.1.2 Reference Specifications: 
1.1.2.1 CCTV Inspection Sewer 
1.1.2.2 Sewer Cleaning 
1.1.2.3 Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing 

1.1.2.4 Chemical Sealing {Grout) Material 
1.1.2.5 Thermal Cured in Place Pipe 
1.1.2.6 UV Cured in Place Pipe 
1.1.2.7 By-Pass Pumping 
1.1.2.8 Manhole and Pipe Rehabilitation and Spray Lining 

1.2 SUBMITTALS 
1.2.1 Joint Test Records: During the joint testing work, records shall be kept which 

include: 
1.2.1.1 
1.2.1.2 

Calibration test results including PSI & time duration. 
Identification of the manhole section tested. 

1.2.1.3 The test pressure used and duration of test. 
1.2.1.4 Location (footage} of each joint tested and location of any joints 

not tested and reason for not testing. 
1.2.1.5 An indication of pass/fail on all joints. 
1.2.1.6 Test pressure achieved and maintained for each joint passing the air 

test. 
1.2.1. 7 Depth of pipe to surface. 
1.2.1.8 Amount of grout per joint used. (Can be based on levels measured 
for tank or stroke count.} 

1.2.2 Request for Deviation 
1.2.2.1 Any deviation in this specification or reference specifications must 

have prior approval from WRC. 

PRODUCTS 

Rev 11 /2612019 

1.3 EQUIPMENT 
1.3.1 The basic equipment used shall consist of a television camera, joint testing device 
(known as a packer}, and test monitoring equipment. The equipment shall be constructed 
in such a way to provide means for introducing a controlled test medium, under pressure, 

into the VOID area created by the expanded ends of the joint-testing device. The packer 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 72 



·•-----· ·-------- ------------------------------------------ --··-------------

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

will simultaneously permit the flow of sewage. The equipment will also provide a means 
for continuously measuring the actual static pressure of the test medium within the VOID 

area created by the inflation of the packer. All pressure measurements shall be made at 
the void area. 

EXECUTION 

Rev 11/26/2019 

1:4 GENERAL 
3.01.00 All pipe joints within a manhole run will be tested unless otherwise noted 
within this specification section. 

1.04.01.01 Testing of joints which are visibly leaking (infiltrating} is unnecessary 
because the intent of testing is obviously attained. 

1.4.2 Application: Sewer pipe joint testing is used to test the integrity of individual 
pipe joint. Testing should not be performed and will not be required on longitudinally 
cracked or broken pipe. Testing of structurally sound sections of pipe barrel between 
joints in, however, used as a control test to simulate a good joint. 
1.4.3 After entering each manhole section with the test equipment, but prior to the 
commencement of joint air testing, the test equipment shall be positioned on a section 
of sound sewer pipe between pipe joints, and a demonstration performed as described 
in Section 3.02.This procedure will demonstrate the accuracy and dependability of the 
Packer Bladders and Void Sensing Devices, as no joint will test in excess of the pipe 
capability. If such a test is not positive, leakage from the testing device may be 
indicated, and may make joint testing invalid. Re-cleaning may be required. In concrete 
pipe, leakage may also be caused by erosion/ roughness at the crown or p·orosity of the 
pipe itself. Should it be found that the barrel of the sewer pipe will meet the joint test 
requirements, then the requirements will be modified to within the pipe integrity 
limits. In some cases, joint testing (and sealing) cannot be performed. 

1.4.3.1 Void pressure data shall be transmitted electronically from the VOID 
to the monitoring equipment or video picture of a pressure gauge mounted on 
the packer and connected to the void area. Example: via an electrical pressure 
transducer located at the VOID. 
1.4.3.2 . All test monitoring shall be above ground and in a location to allow 
for simultaneous and continuous observation of the television monitor and 
test monitoring equipment by the WRC Inspector. 

1.4.4 Test Pressure: Joint test pressure shall be 3 PSI greater than the 
groundwater pressure outside the pipe or a minimum of 5 PSI, whichever is greater. 
1.4.5 Groundwater pressure may be determined by positioning the testing device on 
a visibly infiltrating joint and measuring the resulting VOID pressure with the VOID 
pressure monitoring equipment. 

1.5 CONTROL TEST PROCEDURE 
1.5.1 Before any testing commences, an equipment verification test of Packer 
Bladders and Void Sensing Devices should take place. See Figure 1 for a graphical 
representation of the testing equipment. This procedure will demonstrate that the 
equipment is functioning properly, the packer is capable of developing a proper seal 
against the pipe walls, and the packer is capable of isolation a joint. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 73 

:-:~ 

, .. 
k 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

1.5.2 To insure the accuracy, integrity, and performance capabilities of the testing 
equipment, a demonstration test will be performed in a aboveground test cylinder 
constructed in such a manner that a minimum of two know leak sizes can be simulated 
(see Figure 1). This technique will apply to pipe sized of 12-inches and smaller to 
leakage of the test medium from the system or other equipment defects that could 
affect the joint testing results. For pipe greater than 72" inside testing should be 
performed in a representation pipe section. If this test cannot be performed 
successfully, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall be instructed to repair or otherwise 
modify this equipment and perform the test again until the results are satisfactory to 
the WRC Engineer. This test may be required at any other time during the joint testing 
work if requested by the WRC Inspector to verify the testing equipment is not 
functioning properly. 

1.5.3 After entering each manhole section with the test equipment, but prior to 
commencement of joint testing, the test equipment shall be positioned on a section 
of sound sewer pipe between pipe joints, and pipe barrel test shall be performed as 
specified, above. Should it be found that the barrel of the sewer pipe will not meet 
the joint test requirements,. the requirements will be modified to within the pipe 
integrity limits. 

Figure 1: PIPE JOINT TESTING EQUIPMENT & CONTROL TEST SETUP 

1. JointTesting Device void 
2. Test Cylinder (PVC pipe of 

appropriate diameter) Liquid supply 
3. Void between expanded ends of testing device. 
4. 1/4-Turn Stopcock 
5. Simulated Leak (.062, .094, .125 inch diameter holes) 
6. Air/Water/ Sealant hoses & electrical transmission line. 
7. Electrical transmission of void pressure from the 
8. Transmission of void pressure from void test 
9. Test liquid regulation valve 
10. Test liquid flow meter(¼ GPM to 1 GPM} 
11. Air supply 
12. Air shut-off valve 

****Note: Void Pressure Reading on Test Cylinder gage must be the same as that observed on the void 
pressure monitoring equipment at all times during control test. 

Rev 11/2612019 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 74 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Rev 11/26/2019 

VOio PRESSURE IVIONIT'OR · 

.~® 
® 

1.6 AIR TEST PROCEDURE 

1.6.1 The testing devices shall be positioned within the line in such a manner as to 
straddle the pipe joint to be tested. It should be noted that a specrfic cable or change 
length is designed for the packer size. This specific cable length, between the packer and 
TV camera is what allows each size to be positioned with the TV camera onto a joint. 
1.6.2 The testing device end elements {bladders) shall be expanded so as to isolate 
the joint from the remainder of the line and create a VOID area between the testing 
device and the pipe joint. The ends of the testing device shall be expanded against the 
pipe with sufficient pressure to contain the air within tin VOID without leakage past the 
expanded ends. 
1.6.3 Air shall then be introduced into the VOID area until a pressure equal to or 
greater than the required test pressure (3 PSI greater than the groundwater pressure 
outside the pipe or 5 PSI, whichever is greater) is observed with the VOID pressure 
monitoring equipment. If the required test pressure cannot be developed (due to joint 
leakage), the joint will have failed the test and shall be sealed as specified {see Sewer 
Pipe Joint Sealing). 

1.6.4 After the VOID pressure is observed to be equal to or great than the required test 
pressure, the airflow shall be stopped and the air test line & device vented. If the VOID 
pressure begins to drop within 30 seconds (due to joint leakage), the joint will have failed the 
test and shall be sealed as specified (see Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing). 
1.6.5 Upon completing the testing of each individual joint, the packer shall be deflated with 
the void pressure meter drop±½ PSI of initial zero pressure. Should the void pressure meter 
fail to drop to zero{±½ PSI), the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall be instructed to clean his 
equipment of residual grout material or make the necessary equipment repairs to provide for 
an accurate Void Pressure reading. All joints that fail to meet the specified test criteria shall be 
re- tested and/ or sealed until the test criteria can be met in order to receive payment. 
1.6.6 Any joint failing the air test prior to grouting shall be sealed as specified herein and 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 75 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

retested by the same void pressure method and procedures following sealing to verify the 
effectives ofthe sealing. This procedure will be repeated until the joint passes the test. 
Additional sealing after the initial sealing and retesting shall be at no cost to the WRC. 

1.7 LIQUID (WATER) TEST PROCEDURE 

Rev 11/26/2019 

1.7.1 The testing device shall be positioned within the line in such a manner as to straddle 
the pipe joint to be tested. 

1.7.1.1 The testing device and elements (sleeves) shall be expanded so as to isolate 
the joint from the remainder of the line and create a VOID area between the testing 
device and the pipe joint. The ends of the testing device shall be expanded against the 
pipe with sufficient inflation pressure to contain the test liquid within the VOID 
without leakage past the expanded ends. 
1.7.1.2 Water or an equivalent liquid shall then be introduced into the VOID area 
until a pressure equal to or great than the required test pressure is observed with the 
VOID pressure monitoring equipment. If the required test pressure cannot be 
developed (due to join leakage), the joint will have failed the test and shall be sealed 
as specified (see Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing Specification). 
1.7.1.3 The flow rate of the test liquid shall then be regulated to a rate at which the 
VOID pressure is observed to be the required test pressure. A reading of the test liquid 
flow meter shall then be ta ken if the flow rate exceeds ¼-gallon per minute (due to 
joint leakage); the joint will have failed the test and shall be sealed as specified (see 
Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing Specification). 

END OF SECTION 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 76 



• ·.,.-., ~ •.· r.·.·.·.-.-.· .·.·.·.• • '· ··.• - ··. •.'. ~- • •. ·.·.: "'.; . - .··•· .·.--;-·,· .• ·:., • • • • - • • • - - ··-. -_ ----•••-• ~-• .• ·.•.c.• •. -: ~.- .--;;--.-.•,• :- .• •. · •• ;· .=. .. ; ;. ·.•.-.-.-.. -.,-.·,·;.·.c.-,--.-.~----~--_._._, _,_-.:;.:;". :_•_ •-•~. ·.:;.::.:.;::_.-.7.-.-.-.-,--;.~.,--.•,··•···••·•····c,r. 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Joint Sealing- 4 pages 

PART 1 GENERAL 

Rev 11/26/2019 

1.1 DESCRIPTION 

1.1.1 Referenced Sections: 
1.1.1.1 CCTV Inspection Sewer 
1.1.1.2 Sewer Cleaning 
1.1.1.3 Sewer Pipe Joint Testing 
1.1.1.4 Chemical Sealing (Grout) Material 
1.1.1.5 By-Pass Pumping 
1.1.1.6 Manhole and Pipe Rehabilitation and Spray Lining 
1.1.1.7 UV Cured inPlace Pipe 

1.1.1.8 Thermal Cured in Place Pipe 
1.2 SUBMITTAL$ 

1.2.1 Joint Sealing Records: Included in the records for join sealing shall be: 
1.2.1.1 The test pressure before and after sealing and the duration of 

the testper the Sewer Pipe Join Testing specification. 
1.2.1.2 Location/Footage of each join sealed. 

1.2.1.3 The volume of grout material used to seal each joint. 
1.2.1.4 The volume of grout placed per section. 
1.2.1.5 The gel time verified every two hours and noted. 
1.2.1.6 The calibration test results in PSI and time duration. 

1.3 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
1.3.1 Prior to commencement of work the WRC inspector and personnel will be 

given the opportunity to inspect the equipment to be used. Specifically, the WRC 
inspector may measure the internal dimensions of the tanks from which the 
sealing materials will be pumped and witness the technique for measuring the 
volume of sealing materials pumped. 
1.3.2 Prior to the Contract startup, the Contractor shall perform test 
demonstration to verify accuracy of calibrations of pump pressures and liquid 
amounts injected per pump revolution or per pump stroke prior to commencing 
sealing operations. If this test demonstration fails to show that readings are 

consistent and acc_urate, the Contractor shall be required to make the required 
repair or adjustments to the equipment and gauges, and retest until the results are 
satisfactory to WRC. This test demonstration may be required at any time during 
the sealing operation. 

1.3.2.1 See equipment test criteria and pressure reactions after seal 
(see Sewer Pipe Joint Testing Main Sewers Specification). 

1.3.3 Request for Deviation 

1.3.3.1 Any deviation in this specification or reference specifications 
must have prior approval from WRC. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 77 



:,.·.·-~.-.. -.·--:--.-.· .. -.:.:., ::.•.·-·-·.·~ ••. :..·· -~ • , •• --,-

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-05111 purchasing@oakgov.com 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

,.,, 

2.1 MATERIALS 
2.1.1 Grouting materials shall be specified in Chemical Sealing 
(Grouting) Materials Specification. 

2.2 EQUIPMENT 
2.2.1 Equipment: The following basic equipment is necessary for 
completion of the work described in this section: 

2.2.1.1 A closed-circuit television system (CCTV) 
2.2.1.2 
2.2.1.3 
2.2.1.4 
2.2.1.5 

Necessary chemical sealant container 
Pumps 
Regulators 
Valves1 hoes1 etc. 

2.2.1.6 Joint sealing packers for the various sizes of sewer pipes 
2.2.1.7 Packer Pipes: The packer shall be cylindrical, have a diameter 
less than the pipe size, and have cables attached at each end to pull it 
through the line in conjunction with a CCTV. 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

Rev 11126/2019 

3.1 JOINT SEALING 
3.1.1 Joint Sealing Procedures: Joint showing visible leakage or joints that have 
failed the joint test specified (see Sewer Pipe Joint Testing Main Sewers 
Specification) shall be sealed as specified. When bell cracks or chips are evident 
from pipe section joint offsets, sealing may be undertaken where the offset is small 
enough to allow proper seating of the sealing packers on both sides of the joint to 
be sealed. Joint sealing shall be accomplished by forcing chemical sealing 
materials into or through faulty joints by a system of pumps, hoses1 and sealing 
packers. The grout must be injected beyond the joint interface into the soil 
surrounding the pipe Joint. The Core shall be taken when grouting from surface to 
pipe so that dames or undermining of the pipeline does not occur. The packer shall 
be positioned over the failed joint by means of a measuring device and the CCTV in 
the line. It is important that the procedure used by the Contractor for positioning 
the packer be accurate to avoid overpulling the packer and thus not effectively 
isolating the intended joint. The packer ends (end element sleeves) shall be 
expanded (as per packer manufacturer recommendations} using controlled 
pressure. Expansion shall be regulated by precise pressure gauges and controls. 
The expanded ends shall seal against the inside periphery of the pipe to form a 
void area around the failed joint and is completely isolated from the remainder of 
the pipeline. A tight seal shall be obtained before the grouting process begins. If a 
tight seal is not obtained, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall remove the equipment 
and make such adjustments as are required to obtain a tight seal. Into this 
isolated area, through hose lines leading from a.bove ground, the chemical sealant 
materials shall be pumped through the hose system with instant reading, metered 
flow controlled proportioning pumps at controlled pressures, which are in excess 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 78 

--·-~ ,_. 
/.f" 

f-'. 
l~~ ~-::, 



--.·--•~-'. ---;-·,·:~ - • • • ••-. ---· , , .. •"• :.,.7 ' • · .·.:.·.:;·." -~ .=.·.. ~ ,-. · •·•-•• ·•.•• •·" '·· · ·'·'•• • • •'• •.· ·•: -- -• ·.--.-.-.-.-.·:c······• ,_. ·.·,r.=.•,-.,,-,·.--·.·.•·•···· · .. , .. - · ,'•·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·•,e"•·--,-.-=-.---.-.·.:--::-c·····:.::.·•·•·: -- ·• • ., ... ,., 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858,0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

of 3 PSI greater than the groundwater pressure outside the pipe or 5 PSI, 

whichever is greater or by one of the following two methods: 
3.1.1.1 No joint shall be considered sealed unless, while under continual 
pressure, an attempt is made to pump a minimum of ¼•gallon per inch of 

pipe diameter has been applied (i.e. 2 gallons for 8" pipe). This is to insure 
that sufficient chemical has been dispersed into the soil surrounding the 
joint and that temporary seal has not been made by applying a minimum 

amount of chemical to the void and joint areas inside the pipe. 
3.1.1.2 Refusal shall be defined as the point of blow-by on the packer 
bladders or by continuous spikes in the void pressure. 
3.1.1.3 At WRC discretion it may direct the AWARDED VENDOR(S) to 

seal non- failed joints as a preventive measure. 
3.1.2 Gel Times: Gel times shall not be less than 20 sec. unless approved by the 
Owner Representative. The chemical mixing ratios shall be adjusted and set as 
determined by the Owners Representative. But, in general, the 'gelatin," or gel 
set time shall never be less than 20 seconds. The following factors must be taken 

into account when determining an appropriate gel time: void volume (volume 
between packer and pipe), pumping rate, during the sealing operations. The 
television, grout pumping, and air pressure monitoring equipment shall be 
integrated so that proportions, quantities, and void pressures for materials and 

sealing can be instantly monltored and regulated in accordance with type and 
size of the leak being sealed. 

3.1.3 It is intended that no rehabilrtation be chemical grouting shall be performed on 
any sanitary sewer line that has been schedule.d for point repair, replacement or other 
work involving excavation or new connections until the scheduled work has been 
completed, or as otherwise authorized by the WRC Engineer. 
3.1.4 The WRC Inspector and Engineer shall ha.ve access to observe the television 
screen and all other operations at all times. 

3.2 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Rev 1112612019 

3.2.1 JointTesting Verification Procedure: Upon achieving a seal at each joint, the packer shall 
be deflated to break away the doughnut of gel informed by the packer VOID. The contractor shall 
clean the gel rlng sufficiently enough to facilitate a retest by moving the grouting device one 
packer length. If necessary, the injectlon port on the packer shall be cleared with a quick burst of 
pressure test medium, such that the VOID pressure meter reads zero pressure ±0.5 psi. Should the 
VOID pressure meter not read zero ±0.5 psi, the Contractor shall clean his equipment of residual 

grout material or make the necessary equipment repairs/adjustments to produce accurate VOID 
pressure readings. The packer should then be re-inflated and the joint retested (at a pressure 1.5 
time greater than the initial test pressure) as specified in the Sewer Pipe Joint Testing 
Specification. Joints that fail to meet the specified test criteria shall be resealed and retested until 
the test criteria can be met in order to receive payment. 
3.2.2 Residual Sealing Material: Residual sealing materials that extend into the pipe, 

reduce the pipe diameter, or restrict the flow shall be removed from the joint. The 
OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 79 

:·. 

" 
I: 
I~ 

,: 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I. Purchasing 
248-858-0511 ] purchasing@oakgov.com 

sealed joints shall be left reasonably "flush" with the existing pipe surface. If excessive 
residual sealing materials accumulate in the line {and/or directed by the WRC Inspector) 
the manhole section shall be cleaned to remove the residual materials. In no case shall 
excess grout material from a succeeding section be allowed to accumulate and be 
flushed down the sewer. 

3.3 WARRANTY 
3.3.1 Terms: All sewer pipe joint sealing work performed shall be guaranteed against faulty 
workmanship and/or materials for a period of 5 years after the completion of the work. 

3.3.1.1 Prior to the expiration of the guaranty period, the Owner shall select 
initial retest are consisting of specific manhole sections. Manhole sections to be 
warranty tested shall be randomly selected throughout the project area and shall be 
representative of the majority of the sealing work originally performed. The initia I 
test area shall consist of 5% of the sealed joints contained in the original project. 
3.3.1.2 Within the initial warranty test area, the Contractor shall retest all 
previously sealed joint as specified (see Sewer Pipe Joint Testing Main Sewers 
Specification). Any joints failing the warranty test shall the resealed. lf the failure 
rate of the retested joints is less than 5 % of the joints retested, the work shall be 
considered satisfactory and no further warranty testing will be required. 
3.3.1.3 If, in the initial warranty test area, the failure rate of the retested joints 
exceeds 5% of the joint retested, an additional retest area of equivalent size shall 
be selected and all previously sealed joints shall be retested. This additional 
warranty testing and sealing, if necessary, will continue until a failure rate of less 
than 5% is met for each additional warranty test area. If a joint fails the initial re
test it will not be paid for under the testing item. 
3.3.1.4 Any additions testing/ sealing required beyond the initial warranty 
test area shall be accomplished at no cost to the Owner. The initial warranty 
testing shall be paid for under the unit bid items for cleaning and testing. 
3.3.1.5 Should as much as 25% of the original project be warranty tested and 
fail to meet the 5% requirement; the Contractor will be required to provide the 
same number of crews as utilized in the original project so that the warranty 
testing will proceed at a more rapid rate. 

3.4 FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.4.1 Upon completion, the installer will deliver the digital recordings and report to the 
owners. The WRC will review the documentation and the site to determine that the scope 
of work is complete and the work is satisfactory. 

ENO OF SECTION 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 80 

.. 

1

,,-, 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Chemical Sealing (Grouting) - 3 pages 
PART 1 General 

1.1 SUMMARY 
1.1.1 Section includes Chemical Sealing {Grouting) Materials 

1.1.1.1 Material properties of grout used in internal joint sealing of sewer pipe 
joints {See Sewer Joint Sealing Main Sewers Specification) which have failed the joint 
test criteria described in Sewer Pipe Joint Testing Specification. 

1.1.2 Referenced Sections: 
1.1.2.1 CCTV Inspection Sewer 
1.1.2.2 Sewer Cleaning 
1.1.2.3 ·sewer PipeJointTesting 
1.1.2.4 Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing 
1.1.2.5 
1.1.2.6 
1.1.2.7 
1.1.2.8 

By-Pass Pumping 
Manhole and Pipe Rehabilitation and Spray Lining 
UV Cured in Place Pipe 
Thermal Cured in Place 

1.1.3 Request for Deviation 
1.1.3.1 Any deviation in this specification or reference specifications must have 
prior approval from WRC. 

1.2 QUALITY CONTROL 
1.2.1 All chemical sealing materials used in the performance of the work specified should 
possess properties as described in American Public Works Associates (APWA} publication 
"Assessment of Sewer Sealants" (September 1980, office of R & D, U.S. EPA, Cincinnati, OH 
45268). 
1.2.2 Request for Deviation 

1.2.2.1 Any deviation in thls specification or reference specifications must 
have prior approval from WRC. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

2.1 CHEMICAL SEALING MATERIALS 

Rev 11/26/2019 

2.1.1 Chemical Sealing Materials: The following is a generic listing of chemical sealing 
materials currently in use and the basic requirements, properties and characteristics of each. It 
is recognized that new chemical sealing materials may become available from time to time. 
Sources, manufacturers, and product names of chemical sealing materials may also change. 
Each chemical sealing material listed in Paragraph 3 has discrete properties and may or may 
not be interchangeable with another material for a particular application or purpose. Since 
each application of those material may be present differing ambient conditions (i.e., 
temperature, soil type and condition, presence of water, etc.) it is important that the 
engineer/ applicator carefully considers the properties of each material to choose the 
appropriate chemical sealing material to be used to produce the desired results. In every case, 
mixing and handling of chemical sealing materials shall be in accordance with the 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 81 



·.•.;-_·_: .--::::· -----.------·-·-----:.'.:.· ,.,_ .. ~ ~-.· -.-.•--.-.-.,.,. ,,- - ' ... -· ... ·.·.-.,.•.·-·-·..:-.· -.-.-.~-•.c-.-.-.:-~:.~---·-·--.-.,._ . ...,._ . .,_:--~ -·. 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

manufacturer's recommendations. 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248·858•0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

2.1.2 Acrylamide base gel sealing material: 
2.1.2.1 A minimum of 10% acrylamlde base material b weight in the total sealant mix. A 
higher concentration(%) of acrylamide base material may be used to increase strength or offset 
dilution injection. 

2.1.2.2 
2.1.2.3 
2.1.2.4 
2.1.2.5 

The ability to tolerate some dilution and react in moving water during injection. 
A viscosity of approximately 2 centipoise which can be increased with additives. 
A constant viscosity during reaction period. 
A controllable reaction time from 10 seconds to 1 hour. 

2.1.2.6 A reaction {curing) which produces a homogeneous, chemically stable, non-
biodegradable, firm flexible gel. 
2.1.2.7 The ability to increase mix viscosity, density and gel strength by the use of additives. 

2.1.3 Acrylic base gel chemical sealing material: 
2.1.3.1 A minimum of 10 % acrylic base material by volume in the total sealant mix. A higher 
concentration(%) of acrylic base material may be used to increase strength or offset dilution 
during injection. 
2.1.3.2 The ability to tolerate some dilution and react in moving water during injection. 
2.1.3.3 A viscosity of approximately 2 centipoise which can be increased with additives. 
2.1.3.4 A constant viscosity during the reaction period. 
2.1.3.5 A controllable reaction time from 5 seconds to 6 hours. 
2.1.3.6 A reaction (curing) which procedures a homogeneous, chemically stable, non-
biodegradable, flexible gel. 
2.1;3.7 The ability to increase mix viscosity, density and gel strength by the use of additives. 

2.1.4 Acrylic base gel chemical sealing material: 
2.1.4.1 A minimum of 12% * acrylate base material by weight in the total sealant mix. A higher 
concentration(%) of acrylate base material may be used to increase strength or offset dilution 
during injection. (*Note: if the acrylate base material is in a 40% solution, it must comprise 30% by 
weight of the total sealant mix to have 12% base material. The total mix gallons shall not exceed 
57 gallons.) 
2.1.4.2 The ability to tolerate some dilution and react in moving water during injection using a low 
void packer. 
2.1.4.3 A viscosity of approximately 2 centipoise which can be increased with additives. 
2.1.4.4 A constant viscosity during the reaction period. 
2.1.4.5 A controllable reaction time from 10 seconds to 1 hour. A reaction (curing) which 
procedures a homogeneous, chemically stable, non-biodegradable, flexible gel. 
2.1.4.6 The ability to increase mix viscosity, density and gel strength by the use of additives. 

2.1.5 Urethane base gel chemical sealing material: 
2.1.5.1 1 part urethane pre-polymer thoroughly mixed with between 5 and 10 parts of water 
by weight. The recommended mix ration is 1 part urethane per polymer to 8 parts water (11% pre
polymer). 
2.1.5.2 A liquid pre-polymer having a solids content of 77% to 83%, specific gravity of 1.04 
(8.65 pounds per gallon), and a flash point of 20 F. 
2.1.5.3 A liquid pre-polymer having a viscosity of 600-1200 centipoise at 702 F that can be 

Rev 11/26/2019 
OAKlAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 82 



.·.c-·.-·.-•.· ·.·.,:• .. - .. •····..;.•.·•·•·.c.·.-.·.·••··•-=-=-.,·•··•;:-.· .·.·.··.·.·-·: .,_.•;-,c._;;.·.·.:.:•. 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COM PUANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

pumped through 500 feet of ½-inch hose with a 1000n psi head at a flow rate of 1 ounce per 
second. 
2.1.5.4 The water used to re-act the pre-polymer should have a pH of 5 to 9. 
2.1.5.5 A cure of 80 seconds at 40Q F, 55 seconds at 60Q F, and 30 seconds at SQQ F when 1 
part pre-polymer is reacted with 8 pars of water only. Higher water ratios give longer cure times. 

2.1.5.6 A cure time that can be reduced to 10 seconds for water temperatures of 
402 F to 802 F when 1 part pre polymer is reacted with 8 parts of water containing a 
sufficient amount of gel controls agent additive. 
2.1.5.7 A relatively rapid viscosity increase of the pre-polymer/water mix. Viscosity 
increases from about 10-60 centipoise in the first minute for 1 to 8 pre-polymer/ water 
ration at 50 F. 
2.1.5.8 A reaction (curing) which produces a chemically stable and non-
biodegradable, tough, flexible gel. 
2.1.5.9 The ability to increase mix viscosity, density, gel strength and resistance 
to shrinkage by the use of additives to the water. 

2.1.6 Urethane base foam chemical sealing material: 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

2.1.6.1 Approximately 1 party of urethane pre-polymer thoroughly mixed the 1 
part of water by weight (50% pre-polymer). 
2.1.6.2 A liquid per-polymer having a solids content of 82% to 88%, specific gravity 
of 1.1 (9.15 pounds per gallon), and a flash point of 202 F. 
2.1.6.3 A liquid pre polymer having a viscosity of 300-500 centipoise at 722 F that 
can be pumped through 500 feet of½- inched house with a 500 psi head at flow rate of 
1 ounce per second. 
2.1.6.4 A cure time of 15 minutes at 40Q F, 8.2 minutes at 702 F and 4.6 minutes 
at lOOQ F when the pre-polymer is reacted with water containing 0.4% accelerator. 
2.1.6.5 A cure time of 5.5 minutes at 402 F, 8.2 minutes at 70Q F and 2.6 minutes 
at 1002 F when the pre-polymer is reacted with water containing 0.4% accelerator. 
2.1.6.6 During injection; foaming, expansion, and viscosity increase occur. 
2.1.6.7 Physical properties of the cured foam of approximately: 14 pounds per cubic 
foot density, 80-90 psi tensile strength, and 700% to 800% elongation when a mixture of 
50% pre-polymer and 50% water undergoes a confined expansion to five times its initial 
liquid volume. 

See Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing Specification 

Rev 11126/2019 

END OF SECTION 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 83 

1--

I ,. 
I 

! 

I·. 
; 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858..0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

CCTV - 4 Pages 
Part 1 GENERAL 

Rev 11/26/2019 

1.01 SUMMARY 
1.01.01 Section includes internal dose-circuit television (CCTV) inspection of sewers. 

1.01.01.01 Inspect sewer interior using color CCTV camera, and 
document inspection on a WRC approved storage device{s)/area with 
location and date information, title information, and continuous footage 
counter in a NASSCO PACP database. Provide a hard copy of summary 
inspection log{s). 

1.01.02 Related Sections: Refer to the following sections for related work: 
1.01.02.01 Sewer Pipe Joint Testing 
1.01.02.02 Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing 
1.01.02.03 Chemical Sealing (Grout) Material 
1.01.02.04 Sewer Cleaning 
1.01.02.05 Thermal Cured in Place Pipe 
1.01.02.06 UV Cured in Place Pipe 
1.01.02.07 Manhole and Pipe Rehabilitation and Spray Lining 
1.01.02.08 By-Pass Pumping 

1.02 SUBMITTALS 
1.02.01 Quality Assurance: Submit one sample NASSCO PACP database of 
previous sewer inspection work that shows operational and structural defects in 
sewers and summary inspection log{s). 

1.02.01.01 NASSCO PACP database and summary inspection log(s) will be 
reviewed to determine if quality of CCTV image is acceptable and if 
defects were properly identified and documented according to NASSCO 
and WRC requirements. 
1.02.01.02 Modify equipment and/or inspection procedures to achieve 
report material of acceptable quality. 
1.02.01.03 Do not commence Work prior to approval of report material 
quality by WRC Representative. Upon acceptance, report material shall 
serve as standard for remaining Work. 
1.02.01.04 Request for Deviation 

1.02.01.04.01 Any deviation in this specification or reference 
· specifications must have prior approval from WRC. 

1.02.02 Summary Inspection Log{s): Unless otherwise indicated, submit 
inspection log{s) that include .the following as a minimum: 

1.02.02.01 Header Containing 
1.02.02.01.01 Project Title 
1.02.02.01.02 Contractors Name 
1.02.02.01.03 Operator name(s) 
1.02.02.01.04 Locale(s) 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 84 

i 
I 

' ! 



••••'•••• ••• • •••••••J-, .r.r.;,. :.:~.•.:;:_c-_-_'";, .:=-· .. -,•.•-•••••-•,•••,•;- .•.•.,.•,,r.•c.,·., •••.• •, ~I •. •- .-., •• - :.'••••• .• •.•..r.•.•.:••=•--•, •• ••~• •- --•-••----•••=- • •·•--- "••-- --••••••••••.• 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

1.02.02.01.05 City and Street(s) 
1.02.02.02 Table of Pipe Run Summary 

1.02.02.02.01 Columns Required 
1.02.02.02.01.01 Date 
1.02.02.02.01.02 WRC CAMS pipe asset id number 
1.02.02.02.01.03 WRC CAMS standard Work Order number 
1.02.02.02.01.04 WRC CAMS heavy cleaning Work Order number 
1.02.02.02.01.05 WRC Upstream Legacy Manhole numbers 
1.02.02.02.01.06 WRC Downstream Legacy Manhole numbers 
1.02.02.02.01.07 Pipe segment length surveyed 
1.02.02.02.01.08 WRC CAMS pipe segment length 
1.02.02.02.01.09 Check box if there was a reversal done or 

the survey was abandoned. 
1.02.03 NASSCO PACP database must include all of the minimum required fields 

per NASSCO PACP. 
1.02.04 Maintain copy of all inspection documentation (media/area, databases, 

and summary logs) for duration of Work and one (1) year period after 
WRC accepts the invoice. 

Part 2 PRODUCTS 

Rev 11/26/2019 

2.01 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 
2.01.01 WRC Storage Device/area 

2.01.01.01 Storage shall be in the manufactures recommendations for 
position, temperature range and in an appropriate case to prevent 
damage. 
2.01.01.02 Identify each storage device/area with proper labeling/folders 
showing: 

2.01.01.02.01 Project Title 
2.01.01.02.02 Contractor Name 
2.01.01.02.03 Operator name(s) 
2.01.01.02.04 Locale(s) 
2.01.01.02.05 City and Street(s) 

2.01.02 Television Inspection Camera(s) (TIC): Equipped with rotating head, 
capable of 90-degree rotation from horizontal and 360-degree rotation about its 
centerline and should be suitable for viewing the full perimeter of the proposed 
pipe diameter. · 

2.01.02.01 Minimum Camera Resolution: 400 vertical lines and 460 
horizontal lines. 
2.01.02.02 Camera Lens: Not less than 140 degree viewing angle, with 
automatic or remote focus and iris controls. 
2.01.02.03 Focal Distance: Adjustable through range of 6 inches (152 
mm) to infinity. 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 85 



. -- -· ·--·- •··- ···- .. ----. ··--. ·-•'-:r·. ·.· ··.• .• _. · .. ::-· .. ·.-.C".-.·--·.:.-~.----•.-

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I PUrchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchaslng@oakgov.com 

2.01.02.04 Camera(s) shall be intrinsically safe and operative in 100 
percent humidity conditions. 
2.01.02.05 Lighting Intensity: Remote-controlled and adjusted to 
minimize reflective glare. · 
2.01.02.06 Lighting and Camera Quality: Provide clear, in-focus picture of 
entire inside periphery of sewer. 

2.01.03 A winch and cable through the pipeline shall tow the TIC or it shall be 
mounted on a crawler. All winches shall be stable during the entire TIC 
inspection. All TIC cables and lines used to measure the camera's location within 
the pipeline shall be maintained in a taut manner and set at right angles, where 
possible to run through or over the measuring equipment. 
2.01.04 The inspection .shall be conducted at such a speed as to allow proper 
analysis of the pipes condition. The camera shall stop at each house lead for a 
minimum of 5 seconds. 
2.01.05 Footage Counter: Measures distance traveled by camera in sewer, 
accurate to plus or minus 2 feet (0.6 m) in 1,000 feet (305 m). Lighting and Camera 
Quality: Provide clear, in-focus picture of entire inside periphery of sewer. 

2.01:05.01 Accuracy cif the distance meter shall be checked by use of a 
walking meter, roll-a-tape, or other suitable device, and the accuracy 
shall be satisfactory to the WRC Inspector. 

Part 3 EXECUTION 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.01 SEWER FLOW REQUIREMENTS 
3.01.01 Do not exceed depth of flow shown in Table 1 for respective pipe sizes as 
measured in manhole when performing TV inspection. 
3.01.02 When depth of flow at upstream manhole of sewer line section being 
worked is above maximum allowable for TV inspection, reduce flow to level 
shown in Table 1, by plugging or blocking offlow, or by pumping and bypassing of 
flow as specified. 

TABLE 1 
Maximum Depth of Flow for TV Inspection 

Nominal Pipe Diameter Maximum Depth of Flow 

6" -10" 20 percent of pipe diameter 
12" ~ 24" 25 percent of pipe diameter 

3.01.03 If the camera is submersed under water in the pipe (bullied pipe) then 
every attempt must be made to clear the water from that section. If the water 
cannot be cleared and proper camera inspection cannot be made then the WRC 
inspector shall be notified, the segment reported, and the Contractor shall wait 
for further directions on that section. 

3.02 SEQUENCE OF WORK 
3.02.01 Perform Work in the following sequence: 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 86 

I 



>.·. --,-.•... •a - • - •· .. -- ..... - .. - .. -,· .. -. ~ ··-. 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 [ purchasing@oakgov.com 

Rev 1 i/26/2019 

3.02.01.01 Clean sewer lines and manholes in accordance with 
requirements of Sewer Cleaning Specification. 
3.02.01.02 Perform TV inspection to comply with requirements of this 
specification. 

3.03 INSPECTION REQUIREMENTS 
3.03.01 Access: The WRC shall provide full time inspection. WRC inspector shall 
have access to observe monitor and other operations at all times. No inspections 
shall commence without the designated WRC inspector present at the site of the 
inspection operations. 
3.03.02 AWARDED VENDOR(S) personnel viewing the live video feed in the 
televising van must be NASSCO certified and have at least three years of certified 
NASSCO grading experience. 
3.03.03 Sewer Identification: WRC approved storage device(s)/area and 
inspection documentation shall include sewer line and manhole identifiers shown 
on Drawings provided by WRC. 
3.03.04 Image Perspective: Camera image shall be down center axis of pipe when 
camera is in motion. 

3.03.04.01 Provide 360-degree sweep of pipe interior at points of 
interest, to more fully document existing condition of sewer. 
3.03.04.02 Points of interest may include, but are not limited to the 
following: defects, cracks, voids, connections, encrustations, mineral 
deposits, debris, sediment; and any location determined not to be clean or 
part of an improper previous liner installation, and defects in liner that 
include, but are not limited to bumps, folds, tears, dips, bellies, and dimples. 
3.03.04.03 Manual winches, power winches, TV cable and powered 
rewinds or other devices should not obstruct the camera view or 
interfere with proper documentation of the pipe or its movement within 
the pipe. 

3.03.05 Sewer Reach Length: Physically measure and record length of each sewer 
reach from centerline of its terminal manholes. 
3.03.06 Inspection Rate: Camera shall be pulled through sewer in either 
direction, but both inspections are to be in same direction. Maximum rate of 
travel shall be 15 feet per minute when recording. 

3.04 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL 
3.04.01 WRC will review video and summary inspections log(s) to ensure 
compliance with requirements listed in this specification and Sewer Cleaning 
specification. 
3.04.02 If sewer line, in sole opinion of WRC, is not adequately clean, it shall be 
re-cleaned and CCTV-inspected by Contractor at no additional cost. 

- END OF SECTION -

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 87 



,-.-_,-.-.------•.- C.a r.-,.-.•.~.-,--.•-•-•.• '••·' ••• •·' ,o-•- -•••••.•.•••-•.-•-•·••,•---•.-.-c-:,>•;c.•.•.•.o.•.•-•.•• :• -.- _ ~.q·--~7,~- ••• ~.'.,•-•,•,:, .. : .. :,• . ." .7.• ,7 :.•~,.•,-,:~:. ~• • · •••. • • • ••.•.:.-:.:::-:.•".".:."..;-• . !, 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Manhole and pipe rehabilitation- 8 Pages 

PART 1 General 

Rev 11/26/2019 

1.01 SUMMARY 
1.01.01 Section includes manhole rehabilitation and spray lining. 

1.01.01.01 It is the intent of this specification to provide for the 
reconstruction of manholes and sewer pipes by the use of the Spray 
Lining Rehabilitation process utilizing spaying a cementitious lining, 
epoxy lining or another WRC approved material into an existing host 
manhole and/or pipe. 

1.01.02 Referenced Specifications: 
1.01.02.01 CCTV Inspection Sewer 
1.01.02.02 Sewer Cleaning 
1.01.02.03 Sewer Pipe Joint Testing 
1.01.02.04 Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing 
1.01.02.05 Chemical Sealing (Grout) Material 
1.01.02.06 By Pass Pumping 

1.02 QUALITY CONTROL 
1.02.01 All work for this section shall conform to the applicable portions of the 
latest Standard Specifications: 

1.02.01.01 ASTM F2251 
1.02.01.02 ASTM 02584 
1.02.01.03 ASTM 0695 
1.02.01.04 ASTM 04541 
1.02.01.05 ASTM 0543 
1.02.01.06 ASTM G20 
1.02.01.07 ASTM 04787 
1.02.01.08 ASTM 0638-03 
1.02.01.09 ASTM D790 
1.02.01.10 ASTM D3039 
1.02.01.11 ASTM F635 
1.02.01.12 APS Water Porosity Standard 

1.02.02 However, where the requirements of ASTM F2251, ASTM 02584, ASTM 
0695, ASTM D4541, ASTM 0543, ASTM G20, ASTM D4787, ASTM 0638-03, 
ASTM D790, ASTM D3039, ASTM D635 or APS Water Porosity Standard conflict 
with the requirements of this section, this section shall govern. 
1.02.03 Submittals 

1.02.03.01 CCTV Inspection Sewer. 
1.02.03.01.0l A CCTV inspection of the sewer before conditions 
and after conditions including the restore connections shall be 
completed per the CCTV Inspection Sewer specifications and 
turned over to the Owner and become their property. 

1.02.03.02 Material Test 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 88 



--------_-_,:.-..: _-.; _-.:;_- ... ·----.-,- -- -.-.--~.-.-.-•;.-_~-:;' .. .:.,.,-.,.~.--•---·--..:--.--:.: -----·-:,;.:,:·: 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

1.02.03.02.01 Material test shall be furnished to WRC for review 
and approval prior to beginning the rehabilitation work, 
satisfactory written guarantee of compliance with the standards 
specifications for all materials, techniques, and installation 
methods being used in the rehabilitation process. 

1.02.03.03 By-Pass Pumping Plan 
1.02.03.03.01 Submit a detailed sewer by-pass pumping plan to 
WRC for review fifteen (15) days prior to the beginning of work 
per the By-Pass Pumping specifications. 

1.02.03.04 Request for Deviation 
1.02.03.04.01 Any deviation in this specification or reference 
specifications must have prior approval from WRC. 

1.02.03.05 Certification: Applicators to perform coating installation 
work, including spray operators as applicable, shall be certified by the 
manufacturer and submitted to WRC. 

1.02.04 Design considerations 
1.02.04.01 Follow the manufacturer's specifications for the materials 
design and applications. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

Rev 11126/2019 

2.01 GENERAL 
2.01.01 The materials used shall be designed, manufactured, and intended for 
sewer systems, manholes and pipe rehabilitation and the specific application in 
which they are used. 

2.02 CEMENTITIOUS RESTORATION 
2.02.01 Spray applied or centrifugally cast lightweight structural reinforced 
cement material applied to the surface of the manhole or pipe shall be a blend 
of acid resistant binders, siliceous aggregates, non-metallic fibers and other 
additives for construction a line that is impervious to the flow of water, is 
resistant to sulfide attack and restores structural integrity to existing manhole or 
pipe walls. 

2.03 CEMENTITIOUS COATING MATERIALS 
2.03.01 AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall install cementitious coating materials that 
shall be specifically designed for the rehabilitation of manholes, pipes, and 
related structures. Liner materials shall be mixed with water per manufacturer's 
specifications and applied using equipment specifically designed for either low
pressure spray> or centrifugal spin casting application of cement mortars. All 
cement liner materials must be capable of a placement thickness of½" to 2" in 
one pass monolithic applications. 
2.03.02 Cementitious coating materials shall have the following 28-day 
minimum characteristics 

2.03.02.01 Compressive Strength: 8000 psi 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 89 

j-• 

I' 



• · .. -.. •.•.-.·.-.·.·.- •: --.·~.·-- .·· ... ,, ... , ,-.•-•-•.-.•----~·.::-..:;_..:.:;.':_•_;;_·_-,;~-.· ••-, ___ ,.-.·.·--.·.•.·•·= c.r ,-.-.r.•.-..-.- r.·.•.·.-.,·. ,.,.,.,.- ._, 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

. COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-05111 purchasing@oakgov.com 

Rev 11/26/2019 

2.03.02.02 Flexural Strength: 1000 psi 
2.03.02.03 Bonding Strength: Substrate failure 
2.03.02.04 Permeability: Not to exceed 400 coulombs 
2.03.02.05 Freeze-Thaw: No damage in 3000 cycles (min) 
2.03.02.06 Material Wet Density: 130 lbs/ft3 

2.03.03 Material Design: Cementitious coating materials shall be designed based 
upon the following conditions: 

2.03.03.01 Extremely Harsh Hydrogen Sulfide Environment {pH<2.0): 
2.03.03.01.01 Cementitious coating r:naterials shall be 
manufactured form 100% calcium aluminates based cements, 
shrinkage compensated, and enhanced with high-density 
chemically stable aggregates. 
2.03.03.01.02 Materials shall contain poly fiber reinforcement 
and chemical admixtures. 
2.03.03.01.03 The coating manufacture should be contacted for a 
recommendation of specific project applications. 

2.03.04 Subject to meeting the above requirements, manufactures with 
acceptable products may include the following: 

2.03.04.01 Strong Seal Systems 
2.03.04.02 Permacast Mortars 
2.03.04.03 Mainstay 
2.03.04.04 Sauereisen 
2.03.04.05 Fosroc 
2.03.04.06 LaFarge 

2.04 SPRAY-ON EPOXY LINER 
2.04.01 Repair and Resurfacing Products: 

2.04.01.01 Repair products shall be used to fill voids, bug holes, and/or 
smooth transitions between components prior to the installation of the 
coating product(s). Repair materials must be compatible with the 
specified coating product(s} and shall be used and applied in accordance 
with the manufacturer's recommendations. 
2.04.01.02 Resurfacing products shall be used to fill large voids, lost 
mortar in masonry structures, smooth deteriorated surfaces and rebuild 
severely deteriorated structures. 
2.04.01.03 The following products may be accepted and approved as 
compatible repair and resurfacing products for use within the 
specifications: 

2.04.01.03.01 100% solids, solvent-free epoxy grout specifically 
formulated for epoxy top-coating compatibility. 
2.04.01.03.02 Factory blended, rapid setting, high early strength, 
fiber reinforced, non-shrink repair mortar that can be troweled or 
pneumatically spray applied may be approved if specifically 
formulated to be suitable for epoxy top-coating with the specified 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 90 



• .•. •.• .. "';." •. • .. • .. • -.-.-.·,-,: ,·.-·,-; . .=_ .. . -.-,:c:.---:.r~-.--·'""·····:- ,.-.·-""-~ • ·,, •....• ,_ • - -,·. . - • - - - - - -. - .-.-.- c-.-.•.·---:7·.•"•"· ·.-.r., .-.-,. ··----·-----··-····--··---~.--_·._-___ . __ ... ______________ _ 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Cornpliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 [ purchasing@oakgov.com 

product. The length of resurfacing material cure required before 
epoxy top-coating shall be as recommended byJhe manufacturer. 

2.04.01.04 Coating Products: · · 

2.05 MANHOLE STEP 

2.04.01.04.01 One-hundred percent solids, solvent-free ultra 
high-build epoxy system exhibiting the fellowing characteristics: 

2.04.01.04.01.01 Product Type: Amine-cured Epoxy 
2.04.01.04.01.02 VOC Content (ASTM D2584}: 0% 
2.04.01.04.01.03 Compressive Strength (ASTM D695): 
13,000 psi (min) · 

2.04.01.04.01.04 Tensile Strength (ASTM D638}: 6,500 psi 
(min} · 

2.04.01.04.01.05 Flexural Strength (ASTM D790}: 12,500 
psi (min) · 

2.04.01.04.01.06 Adhesion to Concrete, mode of failure 
(ASTM D4541}: Substrate (concrete) failure 
2.04.01.04.01.07 Chemical Resistance (ASTM D543/G20) 
all types of service for: 

2.04.01.04.01.07.00 Municipal sanitary sewer 
environment 
2.04.01.04.01.07.01 Sulfuric acid, 30% 
2.04.01.04.01.07.02 Sodium hydroxide, 5% 

2.05.01 All existing steps will be removed and replaced with steel reinforced co
polymer polyethylene coated manhole steps conforming to the minimum 
requirements of ASTM D2146, Type II, Grade 49108; M.A. Industries P.S.I. or 
WRC approved equal. 
2.05.02 Steps to be re-installed after lining operation is completed at 16" center 
to center. 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.01 SAFETY 
3.01.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall carry out'this operation in strict 
accordance with all OSHA, MIOSHA, traffic and manufacturer's safety 
requirements. 

3.02 MANHOLE PREPARATION 
3.02.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) is advised that the manholes are affected by 
severe hydrogen sulfide corrosion and are considered permit required confined 
spaces. The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall comply with all federal, state, local, and 
WRC requirements applicable to the work. 
3.02.02 Flow Control 

3.02.02.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(~) sliall follow WR.c"s By-Pass 
Pumping specification. 

3.02.03 Cleaning of Pipelines 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 91 

[: 



·.-.---.c-.. --~----.--------,---.:-------·. - --- - .. =:·.·:,--.-- -·-·: ••• • •• , ---.-•.,_, ___________ -----· •• ----- ,.:.-.-.-:-; __ + - - ~------------·----~ .:.:...:---------------·- ____ _. _________ -
.-.• •• •.> .•.•.r.-.•.•.•.•••• .,-.,,•~••·•: • •• 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.02.03.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall follow WRC's Sewer Cleaning 
specification. 

3.02.04 Pre-rehabilitation inspection of pipeline 
3.02.04.01 The AWARDED VENDOR{S) shall follow WRC's CCTV 
Inspection Sewer specification. The location of any conditions which 
may prevent proper installation of the lining materials into the pipelines 
shall be noted and reported immediately to WRC and corrected by 
section 3.05. 

3.02.05 Line obstructions 

3.02.05.01 It shall be the responsibility of the AWARDED VENDOR{S) to 
clear the line of any obstructions such as solids, dropped joints, 
protruding branches, roots, or broken pipe that will prevent proper 
insertion of the liner. If inspection reveals an obstruction that cannot be 
removed by conventional cleaning equipment, then the obstruction shall 
be removed by equipment operating with the pipeline. 
3.02.05.02 Services shall not protrude more than¼ inch on any size 
sewer line. Anything protruding more than that shall be ground down as 
flush as possible with the wall of the sanitary sewer. Grinding shall be 
done with equipment operation inside of the sewer and shall not cause 
damage to the sewer or the service being ground. 
3.02.05.03 If the protruding service is in such condition that grinding is 
not possible or in condition that such a repair cannot be done· from the 
inside, then the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall inform WRC that a spot 
repair is necessary and provide all the details. Once WRC gives its 
approval the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall make a spot repair excavation, 
to uncover, remove, and repair the obstruction. The use of a flail type 
reamer to remove protruding services is not allowed. 

3.02.06 Patching and Sealing of Active Leaks 
3.02.06.01 The AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall follow WRC's Sewer Pipe 
Joint Testing, Sewer Pipe Sealing, and Chemical Sealing {Grouting 
Materials). 

3.02.06.01.01 Larger Diameter Pipe 
3.02.06.01.01.01 Large holes or voids round step, joints or 
pipe, spalled areas and holes caused by missing or cracked 
brick shall be patched and missing mortar repointed using 
a non-shrink patching mortar. 
3.02.06.01.01.02 Cracked or disintegrated material shall 
be removed from the area to be patched or repointed, 
exposing a sound sub-base. Cracks not subject to 
movement and greater than 1/15 inch in width shall be 
routed out to a minimum width and depth of½ inch and 
patched with non-shrink patching mortar. 

3.03 STRUCTURAL REINFORCED CEMENTITIOUS RESTORATION 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 92 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.03.01 Preparation 
3.03.01.01 The lining system shall be installed in accordance with the 
manufacturer's recommendation to withstand groundwater pressure. 
For Manhole less than 12 feet in depth, the lining shall withstand the 
pressures associated with a groundwater depth equal to 12 feet of 
depth. Measure the groundwater depth from the manhole bench to the 
top of the ground surface. 
3.03.01.02 Before starting any patch work or liner application a perforated 
device, catch bucket or other straining device must be installed to prevent 
construction debris from entering the downstream system. 

3.03.01.03 If ambient temperatures are in excess of 95° Fahrenheit, 
precautions shall be taken to keep the mix temperature at the time of 

application below 90° Fahrenheit. 
3.03.01.04 No application shall be made to frozen surfaces. Material 
shall not be applied during freezing weather conditions. Material shall 

not be placed when the ambient temperature is 37° Fahrenheit and 

falling or when the temperature is anticipated to fall below 32° 
Fahrenheit within 24 hours. 
3.03.01.05 Material shall be applied to a specified uniform minimum 
thickness of½ inch, or½ inch over exposed reinforcing bars, whichever is 
greater. Material shall be applied to the bench area in such a manner as to 
provide for proper drainage without ponding of the flow in the manhole. 
3.03.01.06 Troweling of materials shall begin immediately following the 
application. Initial troweling shall be in an upward motion, to compress 
the material into voids and solidify manhole wall. Precautions should be 
taken no to over-trowel. 
3.03.01.07 Curing will take place once the manhole cover has been 
replaced. It is important that the manhole cover is replaced no more 
that 10-20 minutes after troweling is completed to avoid moisture loss in 
the material due to sunlight and winds .. 

3.03.02 Spray Application 
3.03.02.01 Material specified herein shall be applied and finished, by the 
AWARDED VENDOR(S), using equipment recommended by the 
manufacturer. 

3.03.02.01.01 Material hose shall be coupled to a low-velocity 
spray application nozzle. Pumping of the mate.rial shall 
commence and the material shall be atomized by the 
introduction of air at the nozzle, creating a low-velocity spray 
pattern for material application. 
3.03.02.01.02 Spaying shall be performed by starting at the manhole 
invert and progressing up the wall to the corbel and chimney areas 
or from the downstream pipe up to the upstream pipe. 

3.03.03 Spin Casting Application 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE - PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 93 



.- _ ... _. ·-------.., ....•. ···-·--· - ---------------•---_: ...... ~., ...... ···-·. ··--·-· .. --· ·. - .. ·.----·-·------.--·--..:--·--..:.r..,-_-.,=..,-., ____ .• - ••.• , .. __ ~c=..---. -------·-'-=-C.C~.·--- ...... .,., -- .. --·· . ··~-- ·-· ·- ---------·--··-- ·.::..c~.~ .. .C.~",-• 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

3.03.03.01 Material specified herein shall be applied and finished, by the 
AWARDED VENDOR(S), using equipment recommended by the manufacturer. 

3.03.03.01.01 Material hose shall be coupled to a high-speed 
rotation applicator device. 

3.03.03.01.01.01 The rotating casting applicator shall then 
be positioned within the center of the manhole at either 
the top of the manhole chimney or the lowest point 
elevation corresponding to the junction of the manhole 
bench and walls. 
3:03.03.01.01.02 The rotating casting applicator shall then 
be positioned at the center of the pipe on the 
downstream end. 

3.03.03.01.02 The high-speed rotation applicator shall then be 
initialized arid pumping of the material shall commence. As the 
mortar begins to be centrifugally cast evening around the interior 
of the manhole or pipe, the rotating applicator head shall be 
moved at a controlled retrieval speed conducive to providing a 
uniform material thickness on the manhole or pipe walls. 
3.03.03.01.03 Controlled multiple passes are then made until the 
specified minimum finished thickness is attained. If the 
procedure is interrupted for any reason, simply stop the retrieval 
of the applicator head until flows are recommended. 

3.03.03.01.03.01 Material thickness may be verified at any 
point with a depth gauge. If additional material is 
required at any level, the rotation applicator head shall be 
placed at that point and application shall recommence 
until that area is thickened. 

3.03.03.01.04 Material shall be applied only when the manhole or 
pipe is in a damp state, with no visible water dripping or running 
over the manhole or pipe walls. 
3.03.03.01.05 The low-velocity spry nozzle and the centrifugal 
spin casting head may be used in conjunction to facilitate uniform 
application of the mortar material to irregularities in the counters 
of the manhole walls and bench areas. 

3.04 EPOXY LINING 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.04.01 Preparation 
3.04.01.01 Standard Portland cement or new concrete (not quick setting 
high strength cement) must cure a minimum of 28 days prior to 
application of the epoxy coating product(s}. 
3.04.01.02 Remove existing coatings prior to application of the coating 
product(s) which may affect the performance and adhesion of the 
coating product(s). 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 94 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858--0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Rev 11/26/2019 

3.04.01.03 Thoroughly clean and prepare products to not to effect a seal 
with the coating product(s). 
3.04.01.04 Place covers over all pipe openings to prevent extraneous 
material from entering the sewer system. 
3.04.01.05 The use of acid for cleaning purposes, no matter how diluted, 
will not be allowed. 
3.04.01.06 No application shall be made when the ambient 

temperatures are less than 40° Fahrenheit and when freezing is expected 
within 24 hours unless specific recommendations are made by the 
manufacturer. Ambient temperatures of the mixture shall not exceed 

90° Fahrenheit. 
3.04.02 Spray-on Epoxy Liner 

3.05 FINISH 

3.04.02.01 The epoxy liner shall be manually sprayed on to all surfaces 
by a trained technician who is experienced in the application of a spray 
applied liner and has been certified by the manufacturer. 
3.04.02.02 Appropriate personal protection equipment shall be utilized in 
every case when applying the liner, the sprayer and personnel in direct 
contract with the spray atmosphere, will always be protected by supplied air. 
3.04.02.03 Material shall be spray applied to a minimum uniform 
thickness to ensure that all voids and crevices are filled and a smooth 
surface remains. Minimum thickness of the material applied is 125 mils. 
3.04.02.04 Application of the spray applied material shall be completed 
in one mobilization in order to minimize the flow disruption and cost of 
excessive by-pass pumping, pipeline plugging, traffic control and all other 
support services. 

3.05.01 The cured liner shall be continuous over the entire length of the run or 
manhole and be as free as commercially practicable from visual defects such as 
foreign inclusions, dry spots, pinholes and delamination. The lining shall be 
impervious and free of any leakage. 
3.05.02 Any defects which will affect the integrity of the liner, or any deficiencies 
in required strengths or thicknesses, shall be repaired or removed and replaced at 
the AWARDED VENDOR(S)'S expense, in a manner acceptable to WRC. 
3.05.03 Manhole steps shall be driven into pre-cast or drilled holes. Steps shall 
be installed no more than 16 inches apart vertically on the interior of the 
manhole wall at a point 4 inches below the base flange of the manhole casting. 

3.06 SEALING LINER AT THE ENDS 
3.06.01 If due to broken or misaligned pipe at the access point, the lining fails to 
make a tight seal, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall apply a seal at that point. 

3.07 BRANCH OR SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
3.07.01 After the liner has been cured, the AWARDED VENDOR(S} shall 
reconnect the existing service connections. This shall generally be dorie without 
excavation and in the case of non-man entry pipes, from the interior of the 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 95 

i 
I· 
1: 



--- ----------------------------~ 

OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE, DAVID COULTER 

COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
PURCHASING 

Compliance Office I Purchasing 
248-858-0511 I purchasing@oakgov.com 

Rev 11/26/2019 

pipeline by means of a television camera and cutting device that re-establishes 

them to operational capacity. After cutting open the service connections, the 
AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall use a brushing device from the interior of the 
pipeline by means of a television camera or by hand that touches-up the full 

circumference of the service connection to eliminate any rough or jagged edges. 
3.07.02 Reconnection of services shall begin immediately after curing of the 
liner has been completed. No service shall be interrupted for more than 12 

hours unless otherwise approved by WRC. 
3.08 POST REHABILITATION TELEVISION INSPECTION 

3.08.01 The completed sewer shall be television inspected per the WRC's CCTV 
Inspection Sewer specification by the AWARDED VENDOR($) after completion of 

the service connections. 

3.09 TRAFFIC CONTROL 
3.09.01 During the entire rehabilitation process, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall 
provide all necessary barricades, signs, flagmen, minor traffic devices, etc., to 
maintain both vehicular and pedestrian traffic and if not possible all necessary 

barricades, signs, minor traffic devices, etc. for the road and sidewalk closure 
per the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

3.10 CLEAN UP 
3.10.01 Upon completion of the installation work and after the liner is 
acceptable, the AWARDED VENDOR(S) shall restore the project area affected by 
the operation shall be replaced with like materials and to match in thickness to 
its substantially the original conditions. 

END OF SECTION 

OAKLAND COUNTY COMPLIANCE OFFICE- PURCHASING 

CONTRACT NUMBER 005947 
Page 96 



) 

) 

J 
) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

\ 
F 

,l 

) 

) 

' ). 

~~- ·~~----"--------------------------------------, 

PIPEJ_,JINE J\;JANAGEJ\ilJNT co.J INO. 
Michig;;;.n Department of Transportation Pmqualfffed Contractor 

Pfpelfne lnspecNon, Maintenance, Repair and Rehabilitation 

Oaliland County Purchasing Division 
Solicitation Event ID 004793 

Sewage Disposal System Maintenance & Trel!chless 
Technology 

2673 E. Mapfo Rriad 

Due.: December 12, 2019 

Compensation 

Fll"l~l:i:Nt! Mf.\N/\Gt.:l\1riNT COMP/l,NY, INC .. 
Milford, ~1l 48J10 

97 
248.GBS.1500 

--·-·- -·-·--- .... ·--··--------



J 

} 

Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 
Event No. 004793 - Bid Date December 12, 2019 
Equipment Rate Payment Schedule 

Descri tion 

,., 

r 
I 

98 



Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 
Event No. 004793 - Bid Date December 12, 2019 
Equipment Rate Payment Schedule 

Description 

Mobile Grout Reel 
:wirkHl~llil'ii1P[~~;d,t.etoillBN6i.t!~irii&imrriillerJ1~i':liili~ii::iugi\wi;ns~Eii!:ii:~t:~rttmHii~L~g:~1~~5lID,Qi1 
Joint Grouting Packer (8"-1 0") 
~~~nrJ~~QJmiilf§f~fil~~K~~M1t~~~»t~t)~~~~Y,gk1ii~1§f~f{~~JB~~.;~1J~l~1llliB§f~11J~m~i~~ljnJ~ F1~!l~Oli~KD.O~ ~m~l!}~fill~Hill\~W 
Joint Grouting Packer (18"-21") 300.00 
~riJtfil~l~tJf[jff~;·:;:~~W:~tl\~4~½~21~~lii~1!§lil!mili-1ilfuill~~i:t~~~~~~~~~1~H~~m;mlll~ll~l~~ ftl~i~~j1rn~j~ ~r~!!~1~~~~f!!l'.!~~ 
Lateral Grouting Packer (8"-12") 400.00 

Lateral Inspection Equipment From The Main 
!fm@tij(~f;l~ljirill~?\gqmffiID~U\WTTHB~m1™1mg}~i~lli~tjfJi1~lffiil!IBll]#~~mu~mt~~i~m~~ 
Reinstatement Cutter 



) 

) 

Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 
Event No. 004793 - Bid Date December 12, 2019 
labor Rate Payment Schedule 

Proposed 2020/21 Prices 
Std. 1.5 O.T. Double 

Description Rate Rate Time Rate 
81.00 106.00 136.00 

Proposed 2021/22 Prices 
Std. 1.5 O.T. Double 

Description 

Laborer 

Proposed 2022/23 Prices 
Std. 1.5 O.T. Double 

Time Rate 
140.00 

NOTES: 
1) Standard Rates: First 45 Hours per week (Monday Thru Friday) 
2) 1.5 O.T. Rates: Over 45 Hours per week and between the hours of 10 P.M. 

& 8 A.M. when part of the same shift. Saturday work at 1.5 O.T. Rate. 
3) Double Time Rates: Sunday and legal holidays. 
4) Mobile equipment and one driver per unit will charge actual time up to a 

maximum of 45 minutes for each daily mob and again for each demob 
from the jobsite daily. 

5) No travel time w!II be billed for job labor not specifically driving equipment 
to and from the worksite. Includes fueling time. 

6) A minimum showup time of two hours will be pald for crews that have 
mobilized but are unable to work for conditions outside of their control. 

7) If the Vactor is moblllzed and not used but required to recirculate due to cold weather conditions, 
the Vactor shall be charged at full time due to need to keep water on the truck from freezing. 

99 



) 

} 

i 
J 

) 

J 

' ./ 

) 

i 
) .. 

Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 
Event No, 004793 - Bid Date December 12, 2019 
Project Specific Materials, Equipment Rentals and Subcontract Payment Schedule 

MATERIALS 
Proposed Rates 

Description 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

SUBCONTRACT 

EQUIPMENT RENTAL 

Payment Terms: Net 30 
Note: Permits (not including water usage and inspection fees) will be a pass 
through billing item with no markups. 

100 

1 
I:. 
! 





TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor, at the request of 
Matthew Gibb, Special Counsel for Community and 
Economic Development on behalf of Dan Ringo, 
Interim Director of Public Works 

February 26, 2020 

Renewed Request for Res~l,ution to Adopt Recommendation and Award 

Integrated Design Solutions (IDS) Architectural and Engineering Services 

for the Phoenix Center Parking Garage in the amount of $659,000 with not 

to Exceed Cost of Reimbursable Expense of $13,000 

Background 
The City, through confirming action of Council, contracted with AUCH Construction to facilitate 
a sealed bid process to secure proposals for professional architect and engineering services 
for the next step in meeting the terms and requirements compelling rehabilitation of the Phoenix 
Center. AUCH completed the RFP process in full accord with City's rules and procedures and 
its recommendation is contained in the Resolution under this renewed consideration. 

The City's RFP resulted in eight separate proposals, each being opened and read in accord 
with policy, and through an industry based scoring and review system, the bids were reduced 
to two viable options coming from IDS and Desman. AUCH, having significant experience and 
knowledge of the best interests of the City, weighed t>oth remaining bids and has recommended 
the proposal from IDS. 

DISTINCTION BETWEEN IDS AND DESMAN BIDS 
It is the objective of the Administration and Public Works to facilitate the City's obligation to 
restore the Phoenix Garage in a manner that is the most cost effective. As such, the two finalist 
bids are actually quite different and the IDS proposal the most likely to create expected and 
planned cost savings. 

DESMAN - Did not closely follow the RFP and instead submitted a proposal that 
appeared to fit more in a Design/ Bid/ Build model and did not have any early bid 
packages to expedite ordering of long lead materials. The Selection Committee was 
concerned that the hours included in their proposal were not adequate for the service that 
will be required to complete the entire project. The approach of DESMAN is likely to result 
in an extended schedule, change orders and higher costs. So while their bid price was 
slightly loser, the bid is likely to increase costs of the project substantially. 

IDS - Utilized Bid Packages to meet the schedule deadline. They recognized the need to 
tackle the structural issues (teamed with Walker), getting the elevators on order and 
ordering long lead electrical gear. Their recent knowledge of the deck, and their approach 



allows for individualized bid packages and a stronger structure to cost projections. The 
time commitment is consistent with industry standards and the offered process allows for 
flexibility in bidding, all projected to contain total costs. 

SUPPORT FOR IMMEDIATE ACTION 
The Administration and Council are aware of the time and deadline requirements contained 
within the Settlement Agreement compelling the City's obligation to rehabilitate the garage . 

. However, the deadlines in the agreement are not the sole reason for requesting immediate 
action as the manner in which that City's obligations are met or resolved has no effect on the 
need for contracting architectural and engineering services. 

• If the City seeks to complete the improvements as agreed, services are needed to 
complete specifications for cost. 

• If the City elects to default on the agreement, it is without ability to defend the penalties 
that will be imposed as the City would be without cost analysis and at the sole argument 
of Ottawa. 

• If the City seeks to buy out Ottawa or meet the obligation through a public private 
invested partnership, there cannot be appraisals or financial documentation and a cost 
analysis cannot be completed without these services. . 

• If the City elects to bond for the improvements, the bonds cannot be properly or lawfully 
written as the City cannot complete cost estimates without engineering specifications. 

The City is in a position that architectural and engineering services are required regardless of 
how this may be financed or completed. Without the services, the City will be in a severely 
weakened position to argue for extension, defend a default penalty, or realize the most cost
effective plan. Delaying the award of the services will only weaken the city's position further. 

As such, the attached resolution is recommended for your consideration and approval. 



RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, The City of Pontiac Financial Services - Purchasing Division was supported 

by AUCH Construction in Requesting Proposals from qualified firms for Professional 

Engineering & Architectural services related to the Phoenix Garage. The process 

included public advertising the Request for Proposals on BidNet Direct and individual 

invitations sent to known qualified firms. 

WHEREAS, On December 6th a Public Bid Opening was conducted at the City of Pontiac 

and (8) Proposals were received, the "As Read" Results being attached for reference. 

The proposals were reviewed and ranked by the Selection Committee consisting of 

Jessica Massey, Dan Ringo and Gerry McClelland (AUCH) to generate a list of 3 firms 

to be interviewed, and from those interviews and other considerations a recommendation 

was made. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, in acknowledgment of the Phoenix 

Center Parking Garage A/E Selection Committee, which satisfied the City's RFP 

process, completed comprehensive bid reviews, interviews, and detailed scoring, the 

committee's recommendation is accepted; that the Professional Engineering and 

Architectural Services contract for the Phoenix Center be awarded to IDS in the amount 

of $659,000 (5.68%), with a Not to Exceed Cost of Reimbursable Expenses of $13,000. 



AUCH 
AUCH Construction 
Innovative Planners & Construction Managers 
Builders Since 1908 

December 13, 2019 

Mr. Dan Ringo 

Deputy Director DPW 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

65 Universi1y Drive 
Pontiac, Mrchrgan 48342 
P (248) 334-2000 
F (248) 334-3404 
www.auchconstruction.com 

RE: Professional Engineering & Architectural Services - Phoenix Center Parking Garage & 

Amphitheater 
Recommendation for Award 

Mr. Ringo, 

AUCH Construction looks forward to working with the City of Pontiac on the next steps for revitalizing 

the Phoenix Center_ Working together with your team, we have completed the RFP process. Based on 

proposal review, interviews, and scoring we are confirming the recommendation to award iDS the 

Professional Engineering and Architectural Services for the Phoenix Center in the amount of $659,000 

(5.68%) with Not to Exceed Cost of Reimbursable Expenses of $13,000. 

Attached you will find: 

-A synopsis of the RFP process 

-A copy of the RFP 

-The Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meetrng with sign in sheet 

-Proposal Opening Sign in Sheet 

-A copy of the As Read Proposal Price Recap 

-The initial Score Sheet for the Proposal 

-Recap of the Short List Process and Items considered by the selection team 

-A recap of the Interview Process & Final Recommendation 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the City of Pontiac and are excited to get this process 

to its next stage. 

Regards, 

$fl 
Gerry McClelland 

Project Director 

-

A Second Century of Building Trust 



AUCH 
AUCH Construction 
Innovative Planners & Construction Managers 
Builders Since 1908 

65 University Drive 

~~~~1e9s~J~iJooi 48342 
F (248) 334-3404 
www.auchconstruction.com 

RE: Professional Engineering & Architectural Services - Phoenix Center Parking Garage & 

Amphitheater 

Synopsis of RFP Process 

The City of Financial Services - Purchasing Division was supported by AUCH Construction in Requesting 

Proposal from qualified Professional Engineering & Architectural. The process included publicly 

advertising on Bid Net Direct and individual invitations sent to known qualified firms. 

All responding firms were required to notify Jessica Massey of the Financial Services - Purchasing 

Division via e-mail of their intent to bid. This allows for the City to distribute any updates on the RFP to 

all responding firms. 

Notices of Intent to Propose were received from the following firms (11 Firms): 

-SME 

-Wiss, Janney, Elstner Engineer~ & Architects, P.C. 

-DESMAN 

-Albert Kahn 

-Hamilton Anderson 

-Yamasaki 

-WGI 

-CORE Design Group 

-HRC 

-IDS 

-! MEG/Desai Nasr 

All 11 firms plus specialty consultants attended the Mandatory Pre-Proposal meeting on November 12th 

(see attached sign in sheet). Immediately following the meeting a brief walk of the site was conducted 

for all interested parties. 

A deadline of November 15th was set for questions {RFl's) and 7 questions were received and responded 

to by the November 2Qt h response deadline. 

On December 6th a Public Bid Opening was conducted at the City of Pontiac and (8) Proposals were 

received. The As Read Results are attached for reference. The proposal were reviewed and ranked by 

the Selection Committee consisting of Jessica Massey, Dan Ringo and Gerry McClelland (AUCH) to 

generate the shortlist of 3 firms to be interviewed. 

A Second Century of Building Trust 



AUCH 
AUCH Construction 
Innovative Planners & Construction Managers 
Builders Since 1908 

65 University Drive 

is~~War~Jf-~i§l%148342 
F (248) 334-3404 
www_auchconstruction.com 

RE: Professional Engineering & Architectural Services - Phoenix Center Parking Garage & 
Amphitheater 

Synopsis of RFP Process 

After the review the following firms were notified on Friday December 6th that they made the shortlist: 

IDS, HRC and DESMAN. Each firm was asked to come prepared to explain in detail how their proposed 

approach will get the City of Pontiac's Phoenix Center Parking Garage and Amphitheater to where it 

needs to be by the November 2020 deadline. 

A Second Century of Building Trust 



AUCH 
AUCH Construction 
Innovative Planners & Construction Managers 
Builders Since 1908 

65 University Drive 

ls~~u~1,:MJf-~i%t5148342 
F (248) 334-3404 
www.aucl 1 construction .com 

RE: Professional Engineering & Architectural Servic_es - Phoenix Center Parking Garage & 

Amphitheater 

Recap of the Shortlist Process and Items Considered by the Selection Team 

Each proposal was received and cost proposals read aloud at the City of Pontiac Municipal Center. Costs. 

were tallied and the proposals were then reviewed by the Selection Committee. All firms that 

submitted proposals were.highly qualified and capable of preforming the requested services. The RFP 

highlighted the following areas that would be scored including Recent Experience, Experience with 

Parking Structures, Experience with Similar Size Projects, Insurance Coverage, Experience with 

Construction Manager Approach, Project Approach, Staff, Readiness, Urban Site Experience, and 

Innovations. Finally cost was considered. 

All the responding firms had perfect scores in experience. The firms proposals started to separate 

themselves in the Experience with CM Approach, overall approach, innovations and cost. 

The five firms that did not make the short list are as follows: 

-Hamilton Anderson. Their costs were not in line with the rest of the proposals. 

-!MEG. Their first clarification requested accurate d·rawings of all the systems in order for them to 

complete the design. This is a major scope item that is expected of the design team as part of their 

services. 

-SME- Quote was not complete. They did not have the Construction Administration quoted properly. 

-WJE- Cost was not in line with the rest of the proposals. 

-WGI- Approach was not compatible with CM delivery. 

IDS, HRC and DESMAN were selected to proceed to the interview process. 

A Second Century of Building Trust 





Department of Building Safety & Planning 
PLANNING DIVISION 

47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: 248.758.2800 I FAX: 248.758.2827 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR JANE BAIS DISESSA 

ZMA 19-11 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT WITH CONDITIONS 

BAM INVESTMENT GROUP lLC 
585 W. KENNETT ROAD I PIN 64-14-18-351-012 

C-4 SUBURBAN COMMERCIAL TO M-1 UGHT MANUFACTURING 

PROPOSED MEDICAL MARIHUANA PROVISIONING CENTER, GROWING & 
PROCESSING FACILITY 

DATE: FEBRUARY 18, 2020 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application ZMA 19-11 for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] with 
conditions per Section 6.807 of the Zoning Ordinance for parcel Number 64-14-18-351-012. The 
approximate 3.8 acre site is located on the south side of W. Kennett Road, east of West Road. BAM 
Investment Group LLC, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-4 Suburban Commercial to M-1 Light 
Manufacturing. The rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana growing and 
processing facilities are properly zoned. At the Planning Commission meeting on February 5, 2020, the 
Commission recommended the City Council to approve the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions at 
585 W Kennett Road, Parcel No. 64-14-18-351-012. 

Summary 
1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-4 Suburban Commercial to M-1 Light 

Manufacturing zoning district. 
2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 
3. The subject property is compatible with M-1 zoning standards. 
4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Rev:iew ofthe Pontiac Zonin~ Ordinance, In 
addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 
are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license for each Medical Marihuana facility from the 
City of Pontiac and the state. 

1 



5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 
the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and/or not open 
to the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval ofZoning Map 
Amendment with Conditions. 

Master Plan 
According to the City's 2014 Master Plan Update any new economic prospects on which to build a 
sustainable destiny with new commercial and industrial development is a major land use objective. It is 
with this spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneuri@I: Industrial, Commercial & Green mixed-use land use 
category that allows flexibility in use to encourage the reuse of property in locations around the City. 
These areas have been identified with the potential to be catalysts for other positive re-investment in 
corridors by entrepreneurs to start businesses and create jobs in the process. 

Areas surrounding the subject site are also planned as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. 
The Zoning Map Amendment request complies with the requirements found within the Master Plan's 
Entrepreneurial District classification, which is to spur regional commercial and industrial economic 
development, community development, social justice and protects residential neighborhoods in areas 
that allows flexibility to attract, motivated entrepreneurs and locate in the Medical Marihuana Overlay 
District described in Ordinance 2363 - Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance. 

Medical Marihuana Overlay District 
Based on our technical review of the proposed rezoning, the subject site is located in the Cesar Chavez 
Medical Marihuana Overlay District. In consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-4 Suburban 
Commercial to M-1 Light Manufacturing zoning district, the following Medical Marihuana uses; 
Provisioning Center, Safety Compliance, Secure Transporter, Grower and Processor facilities may be 
located on this site, if all requirement of the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] are 
met. 

Existing Zoning Districts 
Properties to the west and east are zoned C-4 Suburban Commercial. North of subject site is zoned M-1 
Light Manufacturing and R-1 One Family dwelling [former Kennett Road landfill], while to the south of the 
parcel is zoned M-1 and C-3 Corridor Commercial. The proposed Zoning Map Amendment provides a mix 
of commercial and industrial intensity uses, which implements the mix-use land use classification strategy 
found in the Pontiac Master Plan, Future Land Use Map. 

Rezoning Criteria 
The Pontiac City Council must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J] that apply to the 
rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the Official Zoning 
Map [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates that the City Council may also consider 
other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed among the ten criteria. To assist in 
the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following findings of fact for your consideration. 
The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

2 



The subject site wiil conform to the goals and objectives included in the City's Master Plan. 
The Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to redevelop and encourage adaptive re
use of properties to allow various intensity of commercial and industrial uses located within 
specific areas and foster redevelopment of the Cesar Chavez Corridor. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The north half of the site is developed while the south half is vacant with mature trees with a 
sma II creek traversing the south corner of the site. We request the applicant preserve these 
natural features if development expands into the south section of the parcel. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The existing site itself is not conducive to develop as a regional scale shopping center use. 
The parcel size could not provide a reasonable return on investment. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land su,tability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The development of a Medical Marihuana grower and processor facility is compatible with 
uses allowed within the M-1 zoning district and should not negatively impact density, traffic 
or property values. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities does have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the 
proposed Medical Marihuana facilities and not compromise the City's health, safety, and 
welfare. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Kennett Road is a Major Road owned by the City. The proposed development will not impact 
the ability of this Road and adjoining roads to handle potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

8. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed M-1 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

3 



It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text in C-4 Suburban Commercial zoning 
district with its primary goal to create settings for regional Shopping Centers and automobile 
oriented businesses. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an incompatible zone within the area and it proposes 
reasonable continuation of corridor commercial and industrial zoning to the north and south 
of the Cesar Chavez Corridor. 

ZMA 19-11 - Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions 
Parcel: 64-14-18-351-012 

RESOLUTION 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions for 585 
W. Kennett Road, identified as PIN 64-14-18-351-012 from BAM Investment Group LLC for the rezoning 
of the aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the City's 
Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division reviewed the requirements set forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Planning Division has determined the aforementioned request and proposed intended 
use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 and 6.807 
as it relates to Zoning Map Amendments with Conditions, the request has undergone the required: 
Technical Review, Public Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On February 5, 2020, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 585 
W. Kennett Road, approving the change from the current C-4 Suburban Commercial zoning district to 
M-1 Light Manufacturing zoning district; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 19-11) request for 585 W. Kennett 
Road, also known as Parcel No. 64-14-18-351-012 to amend the current site zoning from C-4 Suburban 
Commercial to M-1 Light Manufacturing zoning district. 

4 



Application for Zoning Map 

Amendment 
City of Pontiac 

Office of Land Use and Strategic Planning 
47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 

T: 248.758.2800 F: 248.758!2827 

Property/Project Address: 585 w. KENNETT RD. Office Use Only 

Sidwell Number: 64-14-18-351-012 PF Number: ·211t1 iq-11 

Date: 07/24/2019 

Instructions: Completed applications with appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days prior to the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications must be.complete in 
all respects with supporting documents such as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schedule. Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process. 

AQ1;1licant ((:!lease 11rint or tv~e) 

Name BAM INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC ·- cf-1) JA/(_p fLP f'.rv!A.,,,1;.• v:/k/~ -
Address 

~· I 585 W. KENNETT RD., 

City PONTIAC 

State Ml 

ZIP Code 

Telephone Main: 3137220208 I Cell: 917-753-6000 J Fax: 

E-Mail B@POLC.COM 

Project and Pro~e!tll Information (if) 
Name of Proposed Development: CLEAN ROOTS 

The subject property is location at 585 w. Kennett on the N r:~y E I w side of Kennett Pike 

between West Blvd and Sarasota Ave 

The property is zoned: Business Commercial . iJf/ ~4 Afl; Ji /fw ;:: 4Cu/i t I . -fto 
-I 

. M-it/1C ( I ,-
Special UseMMF=- fie_, &,ezo~ fo ;n,-J_ ..._"' "' .• 

Proposed Zoning District: -
It is proposed that the property will be used as: MEDICAL MARIHUANA FACILITIES 

The subject property is legally described as follows (include sidwell numbers): 
T3N, Rl0E, SEC 18 PART OF SW 1/4 BEG AT PT DISTN 01-52-03 W 1272.24 FT & S 85-00-47 E 879.21 
FT FR.GM '?,W g:gG GGR:, +H g g§: QQ 4+ :g 2~Q F+, ms Ql 4'.7 §:Q :g 222.gJ F+, m 1c\±,G GlJRVl~ +O 
RIGHT, RAD 883.50 FT, CHORD BEARS S 14-37-20 W 499.47 FT, DIST OF 506.37 FT, THN 46-29-40 W 
267.37 FT, THN 36-11-40 E 31.78 FT, THN 04-59-13 E 520 FT TO BEG 3.93 A 



Property Owner Information 

Name BAM INVESTMETNS GROUP, LLC 

Address 585 W. KENNETT RD. 

City PONTIAC 

State Ml 

ZIP Code 

Telephone Main: 313722020 j Cell: 917-753-6000 j Fax: 

E-Mail B@POLC.COM 

Are you the X Owner __ Agent/rep. of the owner __ Other _________ _ 

The proposed will be used for the following purpose (provide as much detail as possible with 
photographs, sketches, site plans, written documents, etc.). -
MEDICAL MARIHUANA CLASS C GROW; MEDICAL MARIHUANA PROCESSING CENTER; MEDICAL MARIHUANA PROVISIONING CENTER 

Sate the reason for the Zoning Map Amendment, particularly the manner in which the City will 
benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be detrimental to the public 
welfare and/or the property rights of other persons located in the vicinity of the site. 

The City will benefit by increased annual revenue through tax and licensing . Moreover, the 
chantable, donative and volunteermg functions proposed to be conducted by the applicant m 1ts1 

uperatiug entity's licensing application with the City will have great benefit to the Cullllllw:rity and city. 
Such a change 'Nill not be detrimental to the public welfare and/or property rights of other persons 
located in the vicinity in light in light of the controls, muted nature and, other procedures more 
fonua11y explained in the operating entity's licensing application with the City 

State of Michigan 
County of Oakland 

Signature of Applicant 

On this_ day of _____ , A.D., 20_, before me personally appeared the above named person, who being duly swam, stated he/she has read 
the foregoing applicatio11, by him/her signed, and /a,ow the contents thereof and that the same is true of his/her own !awwledge, except as to the matters 
therein stated to be upon infonnation and belief and so as to those matters he/she believes it to be true. 

Notary Public, Oakland County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires: __ 

.I 

:! 
:! 



,· ,-.,.,. ·,_. 

~ 

I I 

111 == == - -- -- -

01!111!,Gt>.lDTO 
(t~IAJl!(l'rl'! 

r,:,,111Jr;.,1,c~:, 

""" 

r.u .. vci::,1,Tli,r, 
~l~Ot5~::...•1.UAJ~ 

""""'"""""r/g/10 ···:-:-:-.• @ •. -:-:,:,,., 

I/= = """'"""O'-i I=:- = \ ·1 · lOJ.D..-Cc>iT 10 10 :q •="'- I:- = -:-:::::::: I I w 

~'""~"" I I~ " " - I I 
l~~~Otm")- -r~ ·.•.:,;,:.: .-~-- I 

I I 

O / I n-n-,-,,.-~ I I 
~ I I 
, 1 1 1' 

1
1 I 
I _'4£/,'h I 

I I I I 

I I ~= I I 
I I I I 

I I ,,,-=------- i /1 
I I ';' 

~

I I 
I I I I 

0 ~ / / 

" I I 

' " 1 / 
"' '- I 

"' " I I 

~,>,::.>, // 
' " I I 

~ "" 1/ 
' '- I 
~I 1r ;!?,:_~~ED SITE PLAN 

GENERAL NOTES 
1. ML,ITT,=111,I11cu;:iiuc,v1uoi:uwrco1our1u11i:.s, 

rV.ITT1!/G,llOHTII.-C:,,10r,,.,J.\};!l,(TC.AU().!5Tll/C:TD 
UIMl>l\.l)!i.tlllllMOIQ..TI:OA!>llrn'W:M!:Ul::., 

l. llr>JI:. tll1)11110 ::,m: ~ow.l-'& i:la,ll'tttl, 

PARKING CALCULATIONS 
11.:ov,..e.o~=, 
lfO:.l'Q1111.-.:.t0,i,tJr;owm-uco 

G'-"'"leo,,.,.<n:101,"<f 
~•l>~!nln t>u~I""""''""' 

WA-/S.,00:lr/1000:,!' .. /S.l 
?.!>~r .. =~ 1,..?i -,11.z:>-,i,!lr.-.ce 

~ ,r.,.<•'""""'" '"" 
l.}•~•«>"'n/-1,r•="'" 

fo•lco:>.,/L//A 

TOTJ.l.!',rACt51:toL/IIILD•!l51'.-.:t!> +l.)llr"=•;\l~ri..:t::i 

~ 

rr.oro:m,,r.-.:eu 
tf.oro~ni i,r ~,,.c:o, 
lOf>-lrlWl"O'JtO:,r.-.ce, 

C!l~J:ll'TIONlllGtc;,.,t 
rurur.:: zo~111c, ro ,t Wot<to..., M-1 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
1".1JCri.u;uuo,M•lll,,,!l!I/.OJ2 

.51)5 wi:c11um l!ll. c;ITYorroml.<(;. covurror D/14A>jD, Wt;HtC.o.N 

llll, ~,o~!liC !II ,.,~ror !IW 1/• DCG',frfDl!>fu Dl-!it-OJ YI t21l.l• 
n ,,.,_~--00--47 tl)7g.21 n rr.01.1 ~w,iccor.., '111!10~-•ftt ~on, 
111,01--17.:,oe U:Z.l>3 rr, 111,llll [:JJ,C,/~TDl:.1~HT, ,V.O.»).!ID rr. 
CIIOr.D M.O.r.5 ~ l•'37~0W -1~~.•7 rr. O,!,TOT ~o,;.37 rT, TH II 1,.i, ... o 
w2,7,J7 n, ltl~ J'-1 l,'10 ~J).7lll'T, Tri l•O.i4~.JJ ~ ~20rr10 ~rn.. 

l<MC--Y group' 
--------mcloa.lgi1g1oop@e1110~,com 

phone:2~8.390.2243 

25280 Ryon Rood 
Warren, Ml 46091 

CLIENT; 

Cleon Roots 

PROJECT; 

Medlcol Morijuona 
facility 
• Conceplvol Sile Study 

LOCATION: 
585 W Kennel I Rd 
Ponlloc, Ml 

SHEET TITLE: 

Conceplvol 
Sile Study 

ISSUED: 

• 12,30,19 Prellmlncry 
• 01.07.20 Proposed 
~ 0L 14.20 Revised 

OONOf}CAU!PRltfflVl( 
flCUltEO OIMEIIJIONS ONl~ 

JOBI-JO. 

1902G 
SHEET NO. 

SF, I 

•••--•..,•..:.~,:1...:'!~C...,<.-,',,r..-,, .'.'.',,), .. r ;~_,~.'..!:..,~,'..!,.(' ;-,-~~!-;i;•-.S'.....l..'.·-• • -• • .. -..::~•;-_7".:-.Z~"'T,'5l 



From The Desk of Yohannes Bolds 

7/24/19 

To: City of Pontiac Office of land Use and Strategic Planning 

The Take One Community Program is requesting our 
properly at 585 Kennett be rezoned from a C4 zoning to be 
rezoned to MMF mixed special use of commercial and 
manufacturing Mm1 & C-3 and as a condition to the rezoning, 
the rezoned parcel or properly will revert back to the current 
zoning district of a properly licensed cannabis facility is not 
operating and not open to the public within three years from 
date of Pontiac City Council approval Zoning Map 
Amendment" 

Respectfully your:~~. , ,,.. 4---
. ~t( ,f' 

j:f1tt'llfnet?.,/J;,~ c(I · '~ 

Yohannes Bolds-CEO Take One Community Program 

i. 



..: 

\'areal lb, _ 16-R-_l __ 

R , G II ~• Of-' n P. Y 

f'lJOH A.l.f, HEil SY 7J'!;SE c'Rt:~Ell~S, t:llaL Debru K. Reena 

fl. K• l!H, Col.'..;;ty Dt"ain Con.':lissione, [ot" the County of 0akland, 
:, 

<\ State of !lichi<Jan, docs hereby grant and convey to thn PONTIAC 
1, 

ji CRF.C~ EXTr:IISIOII DR!Ull DRA!!lAGF. DISTRICT, whose <1ddress is !lo. 1 

I Public Works Drive_, Pontiac, /lichi1Jan 48054, PARTY OF THE SP.Co:m 

PART, the right-of-way for the -purposn of relcca tinq, construct

inq, operating, naintaining, re.p~Lcinq a.nd/or rcplacinq a portlrn 

of the POllTIAC cm:EK f:XTr,tlS!Oll DP.Art! and r12la toil appurtenances, 

across and thcough the fol lowing ocscribcd parcel of land, 

i\ parcel of lar,d in the SH \ of Sectiori 18, TJII, 
RlOE, City of Ponti~c, Oakland County, Michigan, 
described as, Beginning at a point an the south 
R.O.H. line of Kennett Road (86.0 ft ~idc) distant 
¼ 1"52'03" W, 1272,24 ft, and S 85°00 1 47" c, 879.21 
ft fron the southwest corner of said Section 13 anQ 
prcceedinq thence along said oouth line of Kennctl 
Rd., S 85°-00 1 47" E, 250.00 ft; thence S 1"47 1 50" E, 
222.83 ft; thence on a curve to the right having a 
radius of 883.50 ft, arc 506.37 ft, central an~le 
32°50'19°, chord hearing and distance S 14°37 1 20° W, 
4q9,47 ft; thence II 46°29'40" ff, 267.37 ft; thence 
N 36 111'40• E, 31.78 ft; thence N 4°5Q'lJ" E, 520,00 
ft to the point of bcginr..i.ng. 
Sidwell llo. 14-18-351-012. 

A PER!!AflEHT El\5f.'1r.11T llE£CIUtlEO AS FOLLOWS, 

ConMencinq at the oost southerly corner of the above 
describad par~e1r thence along a curve to the left 

bears N 30•.{o·•(o• E, 12.01 ft) an arc distance Qf 

I 
:· 
! 

(radiU3 = 883.50, central angle.~ 0·0°46'4 •", chord ~-

12.01 ft to the point .:,£ i,,,ginni.ng on the east parcel i) 
lir.e1 thence along a curve to the left (radius - 0 . 

I. 883. 50 t"C, central anqlu = 06°02 1 02~, chore: bears I! } J 
1 27°14'35" E, 93,0 ft) an arc distance of qJ.04 ft; 1 ' //-; ·1 t:.honce s B5°so•o7• w, 136.61 ft to a point on the ~ 
! southerly parcel lineJ thence 5 46°29 1 40~ E, 107.)6 i ) .. ,. i ft; thence lT 85'51 '42" R, 15.84 ft c.o the point of o)r 

,1'-"t-t_ ~1 
beginning. (,-,i! _1.::,

1
• • 

V ,,:, ' , C(Jl'oO 1'n IJ{'Jf, , /• • 
;" ,'/ · 1(..IJL.., Dr \!~ • (JqJl i{,.J., I. AU .c:nsq D1;;nt..zss:i ,ay IJLl/l.. _CoAJ£;.7fi!..I.JC7,0N_j /,(;/LL oc. l\) . . t Pt/\Je G>r.l.AD5V SeE,DEO t9N0 f.--lUI..CJJFJO. /H,L- l>~&lS 

N{:!v ~"f , i'?fvD 8R.VSH ;,_,,u .. £s HIJtll.SO R"-lAY. · 

i'--016't z. n-/-l=JJ!.G W/t..L. e,e IVO :E,(<la,//l/., A <;_sg5,4&.JT P(:/Z w).s 
1[ Pt2.o.JF=C..1 re, THI s PR.aP£R-N. ] 

ll I . ::,thi: .. ,:jf TJ':F"?"" :cr;~r ... . • .1 
J 

.·, 
;_:-; 

., .. 

· .. 
~: 



~ 'i'E/!fO,U,RY f./\SEl\ffl"!' llESCRl!\lD /1..'i FOLLOW:1: 

A at.rip ol land 40,0 ft wide parallel to and 
acljoining t!ie llocth ed</e of the "hove nc,ncdbed 
?Crr.ldnent ease~ent. 

A TFJ1POlU\fW f;ASllllF:IJT 11fSCR!llf:f) A'> F(JT,LO!>iB, 

';'hat part of the ahove <'icscriberl parcel •shich ii; 
directly south of th" ubovc descdbecl pernanc,nt 
eaGe."lont. 

\: Said ter.pordr:y easenent (s J ,:;ha 11 terninat.:, npon the 

llconpletion d,ite of construction Gr no later than /•3o·8'j 

Ii !t is understood thaL the POll'!'!AC CRECK CXTEtlSIO!f 11RAIN 

i: 
DRAHIAGE DIS7R!CT shall have the riqht to sell, assign, transfer 

.

1

, othr-~ ctonvcy this riqht-of-way l:o ,rny other qovern:'1cntal nnit and 

= the sain Drainaqe Di~trict or its ~uccesso~ in title nay 

:: enter upon the above ileacribed prel'liseG for the purpose of re, 

II 

pai~inq, in~tal linq, and naintaininq drainage facilities, 

The PARTY OF THE FIRST PART herewith 4qrees not to build 
I , 

!j or co,1vey to others petnission to build an7 permanent structures 
·1 
j

11

,

1 

on the above described right-of-way. 

This instrunent shall he binding upon and inure to the 

I: benefit oE the parties hereto, their heirs, t'cprcnentatives, 

1: successors and assigns. 

II a 

i\. nap of the above property is ;.,ttached hereto Rnd nade 

p<irt hereof. 

~hall be binding upon and inure to the 

their heirs, representatives,. 

the undersi~ned has hereunto affixed 

of , A. fl. 1~88, 

/ 
. ,,r:,./,-C (L.5.) 

Reese ._ 

____________ tL.S. l 

i 

I 
I 
! 

,:··-:•:·ii;~~~~-~-t·· .. ;-~~-::·:~.:~~~~~:·~·~?::-~·-;"2.--.-; .... ~~~-~--":······· .. ,. . ..l .... 
~-~-, t • 

. -~·-: .. .:::-~ ·, ~• ,.n .: 

n 
,1 
j 

, . 



On t.:iio Z(p • d day of 

;,b.,f".ln, ric, a notary Public in and fo:- ,ani,l county, peraonal l y 

Ii appearer:\ De.bra V. .. Reese to nc knowrt t'J he the s~ne person descrihei 

11 in and who executed thP. within instrur..Ent, who then aclmow1edqed tr 
1lsam, to he her fcee act 

·i 
I• 

and need. ~ 

~/'. i 

1! 

ii 
Uc,tary Public, 6A/C.I..I//VD County.I. Michigan 

1
1 

l!y Cormiss-ion t!>:pires_ / - 2 • '1 D 

·I 
l1This instrument draf1;ce'1 by: 

I 
Jar,es 11. Is3acs, Office of 
Oakland County Drain Comnissioner 

ltla. l Public Horb; Drive 
. Pontiac, llichiqan 48054 
I 

II 

ii 
11 
II 

·1 I, 
I! 
·I 
Ji 

11 

r ,I 

I 
Ii 

II 
!i 
l, 
.j 
11 

j: ,, 
fl 
:: 
I: 

ij 
:I 
!I 
!1 

FE8.:: · ,. 

I 
i 
! 

.j 

I 
\ 
I 
I 
l 
I 
i 
' 

l 
I 

I' 
.. L_ 'f"'1('ff;_;Z-::?J:!~10;;;":~''''"""""~-. ... ··-·· ... _I .. , 

1: 

, .. 



l 
I 

--...____ ___ 

------I ---ha.G~1 __ 
- I I 

I I 
I 

T 

OAXL.,tNO COU 1ltl' OJJJUN: COLU.USS10 .. FnGHT•OF• .... A/ OEPARTMEttT 

ilRJ\WING ... L. OF ....L 

S't-¢~2=-. .. ~.~;,~•-----~~~,,~f~~~J;~.~~M:~~~~~~~~~~~:t~;m•~.~,_.:~,_::~.~,:•_ .. •:~-~~~_:,.••;::~f:'~.:_~.~,~.•.:,p.:!_~:_,:•.:~~,•:~a./a_:_,~.~~:_:~ ..... ~~,;~~.;~!~~~-.~~~.~~:_:~;;~:-;~~~r-:_'~_:~.~~-~~ .. R~~;~~~~~~J?=~,~.~-~-
.: ( ·:~);f{(~}' . - '., -. 

-.,.,...-,,...... ___ ,_....,, ..... _,q,;i(&, 

'1• 



n;,.rc:::."'1 Uo. 16-R-l 

'l I G II 'T OF 11 A Y 

!l 
Xllf)l'f ,'\LL 'l>-~11 BY -:m::sc PRf.!;f.l\TS, that Kennet-:Ji" P1azn, a 

l~tticld.11{ln Co-Partnur!!hip, 266'i'1 w. 12 >1ilc ~a ... , Soathfic,lr!, III. 4!H)]~ 

i: 
?/\R:'Ir.S Or TH£ P'IRS'.:' PAI\T, £or rtnd ln consideration oft•~ auM 

C'o/Jc,o (~t.oo) ,;ot o-,£: boLL,</.1:, ,i:JNO 

' :receiDt of which is herehv acknowl~oq2d, pain to then hy r.co~~E 
J'. , 
,,\/. ROHN, County Drain ConMissionsr for the County of Oakland, 

State of llichigan, do hereby qrant and convey to the POJITIAC 

!,cRECii'. EXrCllSIOII DRAIII DRJ\Itll\GI! DISTRICT, whose a,Mrcss is ?lo. l 

::Public ::arks Drive, Ponti;,c, Hichlqan 4R054, PARTY OP THC SECQl!D 

j'I PaR'.'..', the ;:-igh t-of-Har for the puq,ose of relocating, construct-'-

j in'], operatinq, r.iaintaininq, rcna irinq and /or rcplacinq "l. portion 

l!of the POll'.'..'IllC CR£I:K E1.1•£1lSLOll DP.Alli and related appurtenanc«s, 

1!acroag and through the fol!owinq ifescribed pated of lane!: 

A parcel of land in the Sf/~ of Section 10, T3n, 
P.lOE, City 0£ Pontiac, Oakland County, llichiqan, 
dPscribod as, Bsqlnning at a point on the south 
R.O.W. linn of Kennett Road (86.0 ft wide) dintant 
11 1°52'flJ" 11 1 1272.24 ft, and S 85°00 1 4,., F: 1 B?q.21 r ft fr= the southwest corner of said ~ection 18 and 
preceeding thanes alonq said south line of Kennett 
Ri!., s ss•oo•47• r., 250.00 ft; thence 'l 1°47'50" f:, 
222,81 ft; thance-on a curve to the right having a 
radius of 883.50 ft, arc 506.37 ft, central anqle 
3:zc50 1 19", chord bearing and distance S l 4°37' 20" t7, 
,tg?.-l'J ft; thence l! 46°?.9'40" W, 267.J'J ft; thence 
H 36"11 1 41'" r:, Ji.78 ft; thence ll 4°59'13~ !:, 520.00 
ft to the point of beginning, 
Sidwell !lo. 14-lll-JSl-012. 

A PER!!!U!EllT li/\SEJ!CNT DESCRlllP.D /IS FOLLOWS: 

Comnencing at the niost southerly corner or the aha~~ 
dencrlbed parcel; thence along a curve to the left 
(radius= 883,50, cent~al-~ngle = 00°46'44", chord 
bears n 30•40•~0• E, 12.01 ft) <1n arc distance of 
12.01 ft to the poLnt of beginning on the east parcel 
line; thence along a curve to the left [radiua = 
aaJ.50 ft, central angle = 06"02 1 02", chorn Mars l1 
2, 0 14•35n E, 93,0 ft) an arc diatance of 93.04 ft; 
tnence S 85°S0'07• tl, 136,61 ft to a JY.)int on t',ie 
300t.~erly parcel linei thence~ 46 9 29 1 40• E, 107.36 
ft1 thance a 95°31'42" E, 15,:14 ft to the poL1t of 
beqinninq. 

j 

I r 
I 

, .. _ .. l. 

n ,_ 

I 
:-1 ,, 

1: 



l\ 'fE!'!POP.ARY F:J\SE!-H'.tll' DE:SCRiBED AS E'OLLOWS: 

A strip of land 40.0 ft ~id~ parallel to and 
a<l]oinlng the l!or':.h ndge of the above desc,ribed 
p,.1rr.-.a nant ease:r.:ie nt ~ 

I\ '1'£~PORA,ri EASE/leNT DESCRIOEfl i\S FOLLOWS: 

Thal part of the above descri.bcd parcel which i,; 
directly So'-lth c,f the ,ib:,ve <lescrll:ed pen,annnt: 
easenent .. 

ji Said tcpporacy casement ( s) shal 1 terr.,inate upon the 

1~or.ipletion date of construction or no later than 1-3/- t1'1 
i, 
1: It ii; understood that the POHTH,C CREEK EXTENSIO!! DRAIN 

;t>RAINAGE DlS'IIHCT shall have. the right to sel I, assign, transfer 

or convey this right-of-way to any other goverruoental unit and 

\that the said Drainage District or its successor in title nay 
I 
1entcr upon the above- described premises for ~he purpose of re-

}pairing, installing, and r:1aintaining drai1aage facilitie.so 

i'1: The PARTY OF 'l'RE! FlllST PART her:edth agrees not to build 

l9r co~vey to others permission to build any permanent structures 

·ion the above des<Jribed right-of-way. 

This instrument shall hP. binding upon and inure to the 

!
benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, representatives, 

l
i5uccessors and assigns. 

I A nap of the above property is attached hereto and nadc 

I Ila pact hereof. 

11 

1! 
Ill HlTHESS 1/llE:REOF, the PARTY OF T!lE FIRST PART has 

iicaus'.:! its signature to be affixed hereto this 

11°£ ~f:sPLll's,;i"f , 19_EY_, 

-:, 7 cf:... 
-~{_.~--- d:,y 

Iii~;;,:· ·' /// 
. :, ,yJ. /I /;ZU,{ 
lJb.,,'· .JO,;./AJ R. HIJ'!f!jel'!-

_,;:ri ~4••'y> £Ji'__,,___~ 
'"""""' .,/,J, .. 

KENNET-DIX PLAZA 

Ii E:t).wr,k.D .,._ i½•coc 

it 
~ 
ii 
'I 

~ 
\! 
# 
:I 

By. ______ , ____ _ l 
i 
I 

I 
l 
I 
I 

I i 
--,iJ~~---=--- •••--~ ,_.,_t,WWAO 

• ·. •J·~· 



1! 
i: 
!; 
;,5,1\TE Of' 
,;CO!!H1'Y O!' 

1, 
i' On this dJ:,' of , II ,D, 19 'i.·, 

:j 
11bcfore r:w., a Notary Public ii\ ar:d for said co:,nty, pars<>nal ly ,, 

~-jiappear~d ,;-,~n~· .• t. ..· '"•'L.;., 

l
!to mo per,,onally knmm, who being by me sevarally duly sworn, 

,.le;,1,s 

:l(id say thnt _tiucy::ata ::,~:~• ~:::t:::ix :~:~·~·:,··~ :~~:a•~~na:ip 

,;created and existing urder the la tis of the State- of , .. \, t.1'• • ·•;- ·, 

i'.nr.d that the said Easement Grant was siqned and sealed in behalf 

llof said co-partnership by authority of its Board of Directors; 

1'and the said ,H,o,)J1D ~DZ.;9 .;;;,;,g;:._ 

llackr.owledgcd the said instrument to be the tree act and deed of 

\:the said r.annet-Dlx Plaza. 

ti 

li 
j; 

Notary Public, \.~.h.~ ~r:. County 1 

Hy coF.ll'lission expires ,- - l, '\ I 

ll 
11 . 

I
This instrurnent draftlcld by: 
JaJ:1es W. Isaacs, Office of 
rakland County Drain CO!llf.lissioner 
NO. 1 PuhliC" Works Ddve 
l!'ontiac, Michigan 48054 

I 

!l 
I! 
I 
! 
I 
i1 

!I 
j 
I. 
•I 
ii 
!1 
1, 
~ 

i! 
I' 
11 

. l -,;:;'f ~i\i; ·,):;:,:)i,l' ,,/'•:'• "" '•C,f' 

~---=....,.....-·------~~ 

I 
!IT.I 

I 

I 
J ·--~-- • 

r_,1 
, . 

. I 



\@ 10,302 '"•f4GS 

0A1<t.Al·GU C.OIJ,V,TY OfiAJN COU\ll~SION 

OltAl'<lttG ___L Or _!__ 

i 
I 
1
,-: 

. ,.' 

I 
I 
I· 
I 
!•: 



~--,~.-r . _ .. -

1 

I 
'I 

OP W I'. "t 

ti,). 16-P.-l 

I 
l 

~1-:0l, ALI. Hl::tl lll:' ~11£8F. PRESEllTS, -.:;hl!t: Gerald H. Hande,l:. 

I& oeatrice Hand.ell. his '1l.£e, 1'1220 ..i. 12 Hile Rel.., Sot1tl1i:i.(!l,;l 1 

l(H!.chigan 48076 

l[
Pli.R'l.'lES Or THI:: FIRST P/1.R!:, for and in ~onsiderat:'.,on of che SU!J! 

o'f.ef( _c,o 

lireceipt of which is hereby acknO>clledged, paiid to them by GEORGE 

Ii. KUHN, county Drain C=issioner for the Councy of Oakland, 

State of Michigan, do hereby grant and convey to tha PONTIAC 

CREEK EXTENSION DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT, whose address is No. 

Public Works Drive, Pontiac, Michigan 48054, PARfi OF THE SECOND 

PAnT, the right-of-way for the pui::pose of relocating, construct

ing, operating, maintaining, repairing and/or replacing a portion 

of the PONTIAC CREEK EXTENSIOR ORA.IN and related appurtenGnces, 

across and through the following described parcel of la~d! 

A parcrl of land in the SW~ of Section 18, T3N, 
RlOe, ~ity of Pontiac, 0$Rland County, Michigan, 
described as; Beginning at a point on the south 
R.O.W, line of Kennett Road (86.0 ft wide) distant 
N 1a52•03~ w, 1272.24 ft, and S ss•oo•-47• E, 879.21 
ft fro~ the southwest corner of said Section 18 and 
preceeding thence along said south line of Kennett 
Rd., s as•oo•47• e, 250.0D ftr thence s 1•47•50• e, 
222.83 ft; thence on a curve to the right having a 
radius of 883.50 ft, arc 506.37 ft, central angle 
32*50'19", chord bearing and di.stance S 14•37•20~ Ii', 
499_47 ft1 thence N 46•29•40• W, 267.37 ft; thence 
N J6"11'40~ B, 3l.7B ft; thence N 4"59'13" E, 520.00 
ft to the point of b<:lginning. 
SidwelJ No. 14-18-351-012. 

J\. PEJUUINEHT EASEMENT DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

Cot11Mncin9 at the most southarly corner of the above 
described parcel; thence along a curve to the left 
(radius• 883.SO, central angle a oo•~6'44", chord 
bears N 30°40'4ow e, 12.01 ft) an arc distance of 
12.01 ft to the paint of beginning on the east parcel 
line; thence along a curve to the left (radius.~ 
883.50 ft, cen~ral angle• 06•02 1 02a, chord bears N 
27&14'35" E, 93.0 ft) an arc distance of 93.04 ft; 
thence s 85Q50 107° w, 136.61 ft to~ point on the 
southerly par~el llne; thence s 46 6 29'40" r., 107.36 
ft1 thence N ss~s1•4zu E, 15.84 ft to the f>Oint of 
beglnnin9. 

.Rf:¼ RffilD££llS PIUD 
001).1, ~:10'00 !213::w. 
Nit ruse 1.1.00 



r,=~-~. --~- - -------·--

I 

I . : 

l 

i 

11 

ll 

l 
i ,, 
'1 

:1 

I 
I 

/\. •J.'~MP0!U\R'f l::1',SE!IEH'l' ~~lBF;D ~.S FO(,/,QWS: 

~ strip of land 40,0 ft wid~ paralla1 to and 
aujoining ·the •Uc>rth «age of the abovn daoci;i.bed 
peDnanent eauement. 

'l'hat p.u:t o: the abovo dua.:::i;i'.:md parcel "hlch is 
d~ro.;:tly Sonth of the above de:cicribeil permanent 
easeme.nt. 

:I Said ter.ipo.cacy easement ( s) 5)1al1 termLnatr., upon ,;:he 

ilcompleticn date of consti:uct.!,on o:: nu later than / - 3 I - '<: '/ 

' It is understood that the l?ON'l'IAC CR£EI< EXTENSION tJRA.tN 

~

RJUNAGE DISTRICT shall have the right to sell, assign, transfer 

· r convey this rig!\1,:-0£-way to any other governr,,.ental uni.t and 

hat the said Drainage District or its successor in title may 

[

enter upon the above described prClllises for the pui;-pose of re

airing, installing, and maintaining drainage facilities. 

The PARTY OF THE l'IRST PART here~ith agrees not to build 

r: conv,;,y to others permission. to build any P"'rr.:lanent structures 

[

,. the <'hove described right-o.f-way. 

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the 

enefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, cepresentatives, 

successors and assigns. 

A map of the above property is attached hereto and m.-:.d~ 

a, part hereof. 

I III WI'.l'Ness WHEREOF, the PARTY O!." TBE FIRST PART has 

caused its signature to be affixed hereto this 

of -----@-=..§=...•-----' l9t3t3 • 

WITNESSES: 

____________ {t.$,) 

iL.S.) 

j 

'·:;".'~~~'-·, 
\' • • • , ..... ;; I I 

'· .,., . 

p 
11 

i! 

1-

·, .1_: 



j 
I 
1.-

~ ... ~ /- ·. 

5Tl\'1'E Ol' :uc111G,rn 
ji COUtlTY OF OAKl.MID 

/I On this 29th day of Ft,bruar7 , 11.D. 1983 

II before ir.e, " NlJtary l'•;blic in and for silid r.o,.mty, personal i.y 

\ 11ppeareci Gerald 11. 1:1.andell and Beatrice Mandell, t...J--0 l,~ 

I 
to me ltncwn t::> be the same person(sl described in aflG who 

, executed the within instxuF-1ent, who then acknowledged the same 

to be their free act and deed. 

l 
I 
ij 
i 
l 
I 

MARY SANDERSON 
Notary Pablic, Oakland County, HI. 
My coaroi.ssion expires _________ _ 

This instrument drafted by: 
James w. Isaacs, Office of 
Oakland County Drain COl!lmissioner 
No. 1 !?@lie Works O;:-ive 
Pontiacr Michigan ,8054 

~-- ....... ----....-.-·. 

~ 
:· 
f 
l 
l 

r l. 
!-

• I ~ J '';. • .' • • • • •• • '~ ••, • 

,· ... ,. 
•• ~- "f -

+,,,._:;•£:.~\· ... ~. 

·'-
~ 



. ,. '. 
-~ . 
I; 

• ·---,..._1 

£,Ta.a· 

I 
.I 

I ~ 
~ ., 
>, 

; ' 

! i 

o(LJ.t-10 COU!ITY 001.Jli C\lll'rl•l>SION 

l'il!OJl;;C.'f P.c,,/r;,,ro/C ~c.c:7.::; E°xT; 

' ':'" .... ~ ••• ' .*-¾ • 

\t ·,, :ii.>G11i&.oa·=r~~;~~zrth1J~;t:-::?i<. --·~ 



.i 

• I 
I '\.'1:--• 

J-.f..,.:_;. • ----

!! 
11 

~areal Ho .. 

!I I! An~ Rfi!/Yi:ES mro 
a R ! G H '.i' Ol' W II l¥-)C1 i'lAR.l0'P.8 i2:3-lf'n 

! 
I tl!SG ii)jl) 

f KHCT>l ALL MEN ll~ TH5Si, PReS:lN7S, that; se,roour II, V.andc l 1 

J & Marleni, Manrir.11, hls wif", l 744 S. Louise, Soat.:ifleld, fll. 480'/5 

~PAR~ES 01.i' TP.F, F'IRST l'Af<T I for .enn in ccnsi.d<c'ratlon oE the '"'"' 

liof J .oo -6AfC Z)ol,{.fle 

ll
receipt of which is hereby acknm,ledged, paid to them by GEORGE: 

I
W. KUHN, County Drain Cotnoissioner for the County of Oakland, 

· State of Michi'gan, do hereby grant and convey to the PONTIAC 

CREBK EXTENSION DRAIN DRA.INAGF. DISTRJCT, whose address is No, 1 

PUDlic Works Drive, Pontiac, Michigan 480$4, PARTY OF THE SECO~~ 

PART, the right-of-way for t..½e purpose of relocating, construct-

irg, operating, mai~taining, repairing and/or replacing a portion 

of tne PONTIAC CREEK EXTENSION DAAIN and related appurtenances, 

across and through the following described parcel of land: 

. A parcel of land in the Sli.i...QL sect ion, 18, T 3N, 
RlOE, City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, 
described as: Beginning at a point on the south 
R.o.w. line of Kennett Road (86.0 ft wide) distant 
N 1°52'03" W, 1272.24 rt, and S 85°00'47" E, 979.21 
f.t from the southwest corner of said Section 18 and 
preceeding thence along said south line ot Kennett 
Rd,, S 95•00 '47• E, 250.00 ft, thence S l 0 47' 50" E, 
222,83 ft; thence on a curve ro the right having a 
radius of 883.50 ft, arc 506.37 ft, central angle 

0 
32°50'19", chord bearing and distances 14°37'2.0° w, 
499.•7 ft; thence N 46°29 •-10• W, 267. 37 ft, thence 
N 36°11'40" E, 31.78 ft; thence N 4°59'13" E, 520,00 
ft to the point of beginning. 
Sidwell No. 14-10-351-012, 

A PEllMMEN'r EAS~MBNT DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COTI>n>e:icing at the r.t0st southerly corner of the above 
described parcel; thence along a cui:ve to the left 
(radius~ 383.50, central angle; 00°46'44", chord 
bears~ 30•40•40• E, 12.01 ft) an arc distance of 
12,0l ft to the point of beginning on the east parcel 
ljne; thence along a curve to the left (radius~ 
883.50 ft, central angle; 06°02'02", chord be~rs N 
27•14•35• E1 93.0 ft) an arc distance of 9).04 ft; 
thence s 115•50•07• W, 136.61 ft to a point on \:he 
s~utherly parcel line, th.enc€ S 46 9 29'40" E, 107.36 
£'~t thence ,I 65°51 •42• E, 15.84 ft to the po-:.nt of 
be<Jinning, 

r 
! 

I 
I 

! 
I. 

I 



'i 
i 
' 

j 
-I 
i 

'' ~ 

i.. 
ii 

/, TEHP0MflY EASCHP.!lT flESCRIBlfl_ .... !~2 . ..l~ 

A ~trip ,t fand 40.0 ft ttlde paral)ol to ~na 
adjoininq the NocLc ~dge of the above des~ribed 
pAz:manaat £~seoont. ii 

ii 
ii 
'I 
It 

II 
I 

\ 
I 

I\ 7f.HP0RARY llASEMEll't f'ilSCRIBllD Ag FOLL(MS: 

That Pl\l\'r .:,f Lhe iJbove deacribeo. parcc,l wnir.h is 
dirur::tly south of !:h<e a\:ove described pernanent 
e~sc,.r.---ant. 

Said temporary ,,,,sement(a) ,:,hall tenninat<> upon the 

C0'1lpletion date of construction or no later than /- 3/- 89 
It is Understood that the PONTIAC CREEK EXTENSION DRAIN 

DR.l\INAGE DISTRIC'l' shall have the right to se'u, assign, transfer 

or convey this right-of-way to any other governmental unit and 

that the said Drainage District or its successor in title may 

enter U\)On the above described pre111i:ies for the purpone of n,

pairing, installing, and r.mintaining drainage facilities. 

The Pl\R'l'Y OF TRE FIRST PART herewith agree$ not to build 

or convey to others permission to build any pennanent structures 

on the ~hove described right-of-way. 

This instrument shall he binding upon and inure to the 

~benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, representatives, 

~succe$sors and assigns~ 

jj A map of the above property is attached hereto and made 

I a pa-.:t hereat, 

JN WITNESS WHEREOF, th<:? PARTY OF TllE FIRS'!' PI\RT has 

to be affixed hereto this <,?'(Tlf: day 

________ (!..S,) 

(L.S.) 

I 
I 

I 



! 
f 
I 
\ 
l 
I 
I 

.:,,"l 
,• 

•I 

I 
~ 
ii 
~S'l'ATE OF /}11ul/,;lf/j 

rOUllTi 0!:' (}//k.t ,trJO . 

I 
en thio ,rrt/i day oi f <'. ·~1 ur,," ,, 

jl b<>fore 'Ile, a Nota.ty Publ.tc in and for said county, pernon-illy 

•I appeared Seymour H. Mandell and t1ar1ene F-landell 

_ Ito i:,e known to be the same person(s) described in and who 

executed the within instrUJ:lent, who then acknowledged the ·same 

to be their free act and deed. 

Vrcx1 ,::: , u;o~i-Y.'J-" ' 
Notary Public, (!)"-"-'""~ County, m:. 
My commission cxpircs~c~~~/~.;;i._&~/~s~1 ____ _ 

This instrUJl!ent drafted by: 
James Wo Isaacs, Office of 
Oakland County Drain Coinr.tisaioner 
No. 1 Public ttorks Drive 
Pontiac, Michigan 480S4 

I I 
! 

I, 
i 
i 



- .--- ,----- ____ _/ --~~ . i 

:;,·-~~· 

/"r/~~ 

1'Ak.l.AHO COUNrt DRAIN CU!:{J.1133_I_O_H _____________________ Fl.:.l..:~..:,n.:.··_O.:.F_•..:"'-·~-Y_o_E_F_A_R_T_ .. _li.,en~; 

~ROJEC"f ,Oa,,/T/r,J.,..-LJ.'".c.D.::: 6,r. 

n 
0 
11 .. , 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

PLANNING DIVISION 
47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, MICIDGAN 48342 

TELEPHONE: 248.758.2800 . 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR, JANE BAIS-DISESSA 

ZMA20-01 REVISED - ZONING MAP AMENDMENT WITH CONDITIONS 

WALLICK COMMUNITIES -

GLENWOOD SENIOR APARTMENTS 

191 N. GLENWOOD AVENUE I PIN 64-14-21-302-001 

R-1 ONE FAMILY DWELLING TO R-3 MULTIPLE FAMILY DWELLING 

FEBRUARY 18, 2020 
REVISED FEBRUARY 26, 2010 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application ZMA 20-01 for a Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions -
former Mccarroll Elementary School- triangle-shaped parcel Number 64-14-14-21-302-001, of 
approximately 6.6 acres is located south of E. Montcalm Street, east of Edison and Wolfe Streets and 
west of N. Glenwood Avenue. Wallick Communities, the Applicant requests a rezoning from R-1 One 
Family Dwelling to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling. At the Planning Commission meeting on February 5, 
2020, the Commission recommended the City Council to approve the Zoning Map Amendment request. 

Wallick Communities is partnering with the Pontiac Housing Commission to renovate and repurpose the 
former Mccarroll School into 20 apartments with a new 3-story 36 unit building to be constructed and 
attached to the existing school structure. The adaptive reuse of the school building will equal 
approximately 53,200 sq.ft encompassing 56 units [12 studios and 44 one-bedroom]. 

Also, a new 3-story SO-unit apartment building will be constructed north of the existing school building 
and will house 40 one-bedroom units and 10 two-bedroom units. The new apartment building will total 
approximately 45,500 sq.ft. In total, there will be 12 studio apartments, 84 one-bedroom and 10 two
bedroom apartments across the entire community. The studio apartments will have approximately 600 
sq.ft. of living space while the one-bedroom and two-bedroom units will have 619 and 825 sq.ft, 
respectively. The rezoning would ensure that the proposed use is properly zoned. In accordance with 
Section 6.802 of the City Zoning Ordinance, the request for Zoning Map Amendment requires a technical 
review, Public Hearing, recommendation by the Planning Commission, and a final decision by City 
Council. 

1 



Summary 
1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from R-1 One Family Dwelling to R-3 Multiple 

Family Dwelling. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial Residential Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with R-3 standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions is approved, the applicant would be required to 

comply with Article 6, Chapter 2, Section 6.204-Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance. 

5. The applicant submitted Conditions to the rezoning including: 

a. Property will be age restricted at Age 55+ for a 45-year period per the UHTC programmatic 
restrictions and will be listed in the land Use Restriction Agreement and recorded with the 
Property Deed. 

b. Property will be income and rent restricted based upon UHTC programmatic restrictions 
and will be listed in the land Use Restriction Agreement and recorded with the Property 
Deed. 

c. R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling zoning district will revert back to R-1 One Family Dwelling 
zoning district if the property acquisition is not completed with 36 months from the date of 
City Council approval of Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions. 

Existing land Uses 
The subject site is located on a single parcel with a planned vehicular access drive from Wolfe Street. A 
significant portion of the site will remain open space, while the school building and associated parking 
areas are positioned in the central section of the site. North of the subject site is the GM Powertrain 
World Headquarters com pie)(. Surrounding the parcel is Oakland Park/residential neighborhood and 
Perry Park/residential neighborhood, to the east and west, respectively. 

Master Plan 
According to the City's 2014 Master Plan Update, Pontiac is staking a claim to a new destiny. It is a City 
with e)(traordinary underutilized assets with bright economic prospects on which to build a revised 
destiny. It is with this spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green land use category. 
The goals of this category is to provide fle)(ibility that encourages adaptive reuse of properties in the City 
that provides diverse housing stock appealing to a population with a wide range of incomes and housing 
types. Areas to the north is planned as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. Areas east, west 
and south west of the subject site are planned as parks and traditional neighborhood residential. 

The Zoning Map Amendment request complies with the requirements found within the Master Plan's 
Entrepreneurial district classification. This district's goal is to provide fle)(ibility that encourages the 
positive reuse of vacant/underutilized properties in strategic locations around the City. The adaptive 
reuse of vacant school is clearly one of the goals of this land use classification. 

Existing Zoning Districts 

2 



Abutting properties to the north are zoned M-2 Heavy Manufacturing. Areas to the east, south and west 
are zoned R-1 One Family Dwelling. The proposed Zoning Map Amendment of the subject site to R-3 
provides a balanced, transition between residential and industrial zoned areas. 

Rezoning Criteria 
The Pontiac City Council must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J] that apply to the 
rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the Official Zoning 
Map [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates that the City Council may also consider 
other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed among the ten criteria. To assist in 
the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the City Council to utilize in making its findings, 
recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

The subject site will conform to the goals and objectives included in the ~ity's Master Plan. 
The Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts for additive reuse of vacant buildings. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The former school site was developed years ago, so it's geological, hydrological, and other 
environmental features are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one {1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The existing site itself is not conducive to redevelopment as a single family use. It is clear that 
demolition and development costs will not provide a reasonable return on investment. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The renovation of the vacant school building and new apartment buildings are compatible 
with uses allowed within the R-3 zoning district and will not negatively impact neighborhood 
density, traffic or property values. · 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

Without compromising the City's health, safety, and welfare; the City's utilities and services 
will be sufficient to accommodate the proposed 100 unit senior apartments. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Montcalm and Edison Streets on the north and west side of the site, respectively are City 
Major Roads. The proposed development will not impact the ability of these streets and 
other adjoining roads to handle potential traffic. 

3 



7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

8. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed R-3 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for R-1 One Family Dwelling district with 
its primary goal to improve single family residential neighborhoods to allow multiple family, 
large-scale apartment buildings within the zoning district. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an isolated zone within the area and ensures a 
reasonable transition between residential and industrial zoned areas. 

ZMA 20-01 - Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions 

RESOLUTION 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions for 191 N 
Glenwood, identified as PIN 64-14-21-302-001 from Wallick Communities for the rezoning of the 
aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the City's 
Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements set 
forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Division has determined the 
aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 
Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 and 6.807 
as it relates to Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions, the request has undergone the required: 
Technical Review, Public Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On February 5, 2020, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 191 
N. Glenwood Avenue, approving the change from the current R-1 One Family Dwelling zoning district to 
R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling zoning district; and 

4 



Whereas, the applicant submitted Conditions to the rezoning including: 
a. Property will be age restricted at Age 55+ for a 45-year period per the LIHTC programmatic 

restrictions and will be listed in the Land Use Restriction Agreement and recorded with the 

Property Deed. 

b. Property will be income and rent restricted based upon LIHTC programmatic restrictions and will 

be listed in the Land Use Restriction Agreement and recorded with the Property Deed. 

c. R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling zoning district will revert back to R-1 One Family Dwelling zoning 

district if the property acquisition is not completed with 36 months from the date of City Council 

approval of Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions. 

Now Therefore, Be It Reso/ved1 That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 20-01) request for 191 N. Glenwood 
Avenue, also known as Parcel No. 64-14-21-302-001 to amend the current site zoning from R-1 One Family 
Dwelling to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling zoning district. 

5 



City of Pontiac 
Office of Land Use 2nd Strategic P!am,1ng 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pmrtiac, Ml 48342 
T: 243.758.Zl"WO 

-.-- -~=-~-·=z, 
Office U,;-.e Only ij 
PFJ>Jun1bcr: ·7;.,1./~A· ·11::) -c) l 

fo~inictiono; Completed af)j)lirnlions wiih appropriate foe. s!:ialJ be submit!;ed to the Ofiice of Land UBe and Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days prit:>r !O [he rEgnfarJy scheduled Plirn:n~~ig Commission meeiing. Applicat1ons must be complei.e 1n · ij 
aJJ respects ·with supporting dtJc1.nncnts such as site plan, prope,ty snp;cy etc. Plam1l11g srnIT wi]! scheduLe the applicalio:1 for 
comideration by the Pfonning Commission in accordtince wi-!h the art.ached scheduic. lncompkte applications wi!I delay the l 
re>.tie\V1jrOGf:$S. 

Name 

Address 

City 

State 

ZIP Code 

Telephone Main: , 0 •• I F··x· 

E-Mail 

The subject proptny fa location at_<'-_')~/_-~i'-..c".....c.{=;,_""~··,~-:~,•-c.--~'-ocDI\ the N / S 

-,. r'- ,. • + f{ft:..,~j ;}./;~:a-J• t~ ~/'::,:,cc.:,,;,_};_-~· ~~~~T::_ >'-~7,;=7~-_.:_-~. }roposedi LffumgDrntnet: ~-,~-"~---~-~~,-~~--'~-~-·.c_.....c='-'-'=--'-~-~~~~~ 
- i:r~~ R~:3 

It is proposed that the proper('! win be used as: _>-'-\,_.:'"'"-"-=-""""·-~~-•-·"_,,--"' ______ ,_,._fr-'.-·----

the following described premises situated in the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of Michigan, to wit 

Lots 648 and 651, including the vacated street fonnerly known as Hammond Street lyihg between said Lots of Modern 
Housing Corporation .Addition, as recorded in Uber 20, Page 22 of Plats, Oakland County Records. 

also known as Property Address: ·191 N. Glenwood Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 48342-1507 

Parcel ID No. 14~21-302-00i 



r=•.s-•,,-,····c•"'=-•··--·-·~<S-,~--"-•c)-2½•• ---~-•-····· ··-····-·•"•--.-,.--- --·7•- .,.., ----··~·-·•""·• 

" ~ 
ti 
I 
i 
f 

~ 
I 
~ 
Ii 
n r, 

I 

I 
il 
ll 

~------~------·---------·---------~----·~----------------------·-·--------

' ------------~----------------- -
Address . ' 

City 

St.ate 

ZIP Code 

Telephone Cell: Fax~ 

E-Mail 

O"vner 

Th~ prnpos-ed ""rviH be used f0.r tfoe foikrvving pflxpose (pro,~de as. ·much d~t:rii as possible vvfth 
pbotogr~-rphs, sltetrhes, ;;it.e µhn~1;,. \Vritten cloe:1-tflltttls, etc .. ). 

Jc'i ,\.-. 

Sate the t£a;;<m for the Zoning Map Arnendment, particularly the manner'in which the City -,,yilj 
benefit if the amendment is appro;;etl and why :,ueh chmi.ge will nut he ch~trimentni to Hie pnblk 
wc!fan.: midlvr the ,rrnperty righi's of Htller pcn,m:is located iu tlrn vkiniry of the site. 

.Slate r.-:fAl!cfu~~an 

I 
I 
I 
~ I· 

! 
a 
" I' 
'l 

I 

::•~;,::~!~f~l~.':::'--'"'r.Y.lU <:..::l .• A.D .. 20JJJ i"fim, me /.>E,:w1;a/(vap11ew·,,.J JJ;e abm•,· named pErsrn, n,hp /oeing duly •~•·om{shiicd he!.\'hc' has read 
11:ej(JJ:_c.i;oiur{app! ict!iion,_ h.~: him!!f~r sig11i:if, ~1.11:J !.1ww th~ cv:11e_n/~· rherco1;· ~!rd 1/wlrrlu.! s~me is 11~1£ o_/ his1i1.:1{.~~:' l.:~!cfl;'d.~ii\~'-';ff' us w t{\t.' mrrUC:J'S 
fJH~','!l!I sJa!;~d l<'J- h:z upon ll[/<Jr/1Jrlf1w1 mid h,:lu?j uud xo ,,~~ !£.-: f1ws1 1 ;iwm-•r:: ur-:sl,~~ ,1wlt,:vr·.r: t! {(,1 l'!f! /rm .. ~ \'. H\ it\ I if..,,---\ '1:\ ;-, ; . .._ .... 

\f:,Ji?,~:'~r~~~j~\ff,~2£:~:t:~~~t~'Ji Zf~-

'"-.) 
VICKI J. HEAL')' 

NOTARYPUBUC, STA1EOF M! 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

t;,'i'( COMMISSIOM EA"PIRES C'>Cl_iJ,~~"'ifi 1 
/>,CT!t.S lN COLMTY OF ,-,-, 1{ / LL- () 
' . i..,;:.,,--'•,!'-...--l.... ' 

l 
'! 





Vi 
l-
u ~~ 

~ i!l!t 
fil 
Es 

1111111 <)<)<)<)<)<)<)<)<)<)<) 

~ 

C) 
I 

CL 
(fJ 

:i 
,) 



1- NORTH ELEVATION· BUILDING 'A' 
!CAl.t:J,-,. 

2 • NORTH ELEVATION· BUILDING 'B' 

. ~. 
''.\ 

\\'\, 

l<EY PLAN 

\ 
\\, 

,1: 

1.,' 

--~-~'--'~"-"--"-'-~-··•.· -·-------

ARCHITECT; 

i>.RCI--IIHCTS 
1010~1:~'"'°' nl,o.~.,,. 200 
~ ... ,,,.,,IJ.,u,o""' ••1:.0 

~:~~~~;~~Q 
.,,,.,,I\DL1tchll••l>.«•A> 

DEVELO/>ER: 

"'~'Al.l.lt!~ • 

WALL!C\( COMMUNITIES 
1~ow .. 1t.1,1<>s1,,.,1,s1.ioo 

:~:~\E~ft;;~J:•4 

DEVELOPMENT PLAJJ OF: 

GLEl,WOOD 
SENIOR 
\Sj >I.CLf.Nr/0001,~C.. 
PONTI~C, ~llCHll;;AII 

'1!1111!!'1•:01, 
!1ih'\I i1'1i 
111111111! 1~ 
1!1

1
1el!j!l11·'1U 

'I •!1fi!l 'ii '!"1 1111•11 hj,h:,,, ii! 
:1,mmM1, 

ISSUE 
6 """"' 

~======= ~----
~----
"'---"'----c,, ___ _ 
c,, ___ _ 

CONCEPT 
ELEVATIONS 
11~·•1•-o· 
.=-.=, 

A-3.01a 

--- . ,:•c,1 



GLENWOOD SENIOR APARTMENTS 
191 N GLENWOOD AVE I PONTIAC I OAKLAND COUNTY I MICHIGAN I 48342 

REQUEST FOR 4°/o 30-YEAR PILOT AGREEMENT 
(Payment in Lieu of Taxes) 

Located less than a mile from Downtown Pontiac, Glenwood Senior Apartments is a 106-unit 

independent senior living (age 55+) community located on the campus of Mccarroll School. As part of 

this development, the former school building will be renovated and re purposed to house 20 apartments. 

A new, 3-story 36-unit building will be constructed and attached to the existing school structure facing 

Wolfe Street. This adaptive reuse of the school building will equal approximately 53,284 square feet 

encompassing 56 total units (12 studios and 44 one-bedroom). Lastly, a new 3-story SO-unit building will 

be constructed north of the existing school buildings and will house 40 one-bedroom units and 10 two

bedroom units. This new construction will total approximately 45,543 square feet. In total, there will 

be 12 studio apartments, 84 one-bedroom, and 10 two-bedroom apartments across the entire 

comm.unity. The studio apartments will have approximately 600 square feet of living space while the 

one-bedroom and two-bedroom units will have 619 and 825 square feet, respectively. 

From an income perspective, 101 units will be affordable based upon income and rent 

restrictions while 5 units will be market rate. The market rate units will be in the 3-story new 

construction building and will equate to 4 one-bedroom units and 1 two-bedroom unit. Of the 101 

affordable units, 16 units will be subsidized with Pontiac Housing Commission rental vouchers. 8 rental 

vouchers will be placed in the school building portion of the development while the other 8 rental 

vouchers will be placed in the 3-story new construction. From an income restriction perspective, 10-

units will be set aside at 30% of area median income ("AMI"), 13 units will be set aside at 40% AMI, 15 

units set aside at 50% AMI and 63 units set aside at 60% AMI. Monthly affordable rents are expected to 

range anywhere between $340 to $850 per month·based upon corresponding affordable income and 

rent restrictions. 

No matter the building of residence, seniors will enjoy modern, in-unit amenities such as LVT 

flooring, garbage disposals, ceiling fans, and brand-new appliances. Residents will also have access to a 

fully equipped fitness center, community space for socialization, and a business center with computers. 

The building and site will be designed to offer seniors all the comforts of home. 

Not only will future residents enjoy resources within their buildings and units, neighborhood 

and location-based amenities are abundant in the immediate area as well. The development site is less 

than 1,300 feet from N Perry Street and the Bus 756 line, which offers a connection to most parts of the 

city. Glenwood Senior Apartments is also located directly across from the magnificent Oakland Park, 

which offers walking paths, a playground, outdoor exercise equipment, sports courts, and a picnic area. 

To the south and west of the site is Perry Park and Sports Fields, which again offers entertainment and 

recreational options for future residents. 

(@ -.~r.:~ - r,• 1'_~ .- . .. •. -\X _\LL IC K ~ 

1:-, 



From a financing perspective, multiple sources of funding will need to be secured to successfully 

re purpose the school building along with the objective to complete new construction at the site. The 

56-unit school building development is proposed to be financed with 4% low-income housing tax credits 

("LIHTC"), MSHDA HOME and Mortgage Restructuring Funds, MSHDA Permanent Loan and a MSHDA 

Construction Loan. The SO-unit new construction is proposed to be financed with 9% LIHTC, a Fannie 

Mae Permanent Loan and a conventional Construction Loan. 

The timeline for the total proposed Development reflects the following: 

., Submission of MSHDA Funding application on April 1, 2020 

" MSHDA Award Determination in June 2020 

® Construction start in June 2021 

., Construction completion in June 2022 

.. 100% Occupied in December 2022 

In order to achieve this proposed development in totality and maintain its sustainability, a 4% 

30-Year PILOT is being requested. With the Jack of available funds needed to adequately tackle this 

proposed development, a 4% PILOT will allow for greater loan proceeds to be available to properly 

finance the construction and keep its operation sustainable for the long-term. The 4% PILOT is 

estimated to generate approximately $30,000 annually to the City as a substitute for traditional real 

estate tax payments. Fortunately approximately $30,000 annually is a vast increase over the real 

estate taxes that are being paid currently for the existing blighted site. We greatly appreciate the 
City's consideration of this PILOT Agreement request. 

tW ·\\TAI_,LlCK ~ 





January 17, 2020 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Attention: Dr. Deirdre Waterman, Mayor 

Re: Additional Inspection Services -Amazon Project 

Dear Mayor Waterman: 

Wade Trim Associates, Inc. 

500 Griswold Street, Suite 2500 • Detroit, Ml 48226 
313.961.3650 • www.wadetrim.com 

Congratulations on landing the Amazon project for Pontiac! This is a tremendous win for the City and 
we are proud to be a part of the team that will oversee the construction of these facilities. 

Pursuant to the contract between the City of Pontiac and Wade Trim, Section 3.2.2 states: 

For all building projects in excess of $1 million in construction value, the 
Contractor will prepare a proposal of additional staff and resources needed to 
adequately service that project for approval of additional fees by the City 
Finance Director. 

The construction value of the Amazon project is approximately $271.6 million and will require 
significant additional inspection resources to meet the ambitious 18-month construction schedule 
proposed by Clayco. For this project, we will be required to add additional building, electrical, 
mechanical, and plumbing inspectors and additional administrative staff to our team so that we can 
provide timely on-demand inspections to the Amazon project while maintaining the current level of 
service for Pontiac residents and businesses for the duration of this project. 

The nature of the construction phasing will require our team to adjust to the ability of the Contractor 
to meet their schedule as has been provided to us. Knowing that construction planning is fluid, this 
means that some months there will be little effort and some months there will be considerable effort 
required. We have done our best to project inspection needs based on the schedule given to us by 
Clayco. Additionally, we have met with both their leadership and construction managers to make the 
project communication as clear as possible to streamline the inspection and approval process. 
Nevertheless, the projected inspection hours and costs are an estimate based on the proposed 
construction schedule and Clayco's key delivery dates. 

The building permit fees for the two buildings is $1,610,300 inclusive of plan review fees. In preparing 
a potential schedule for our team to meet Clayco's construction schedule~ we have developed a total 
estimate of what the potential cost of inspections may be. However, given the uncertain nature of 
large projects, we propose that we create a separate line item for the Amazon oversight and bill the 
required inspection work on an hourly basis. 

Based on our estimate of hours and the construction schedule and phasing plan submitted by 
Clayco, we estimate inspection, review and project administration fees of $965,000 for the Amazon 
project. Again, using the hourly approach described above, fees will only be billed to the City as the 
inspection work is performed. This approach allows only time spent on Amazon specific activities to 
be billed to this project and presents a significant opportunity for savings to the City should the 
anticipated level of staffing not be required for the project, but provides the flexibility for additional 
staffing should it be required. 



City of Pontiac 

January 17, 2020 
Page 2 

By way of comparison, the estimated cost of inspection, review and administrative services for the 
Amazon project represents 60% of the total permit fee. For the purposes of comparing value, Wade 
Trim captured 72% of the total St. Joseph's hospital permit fee in 2012 as a lump sum under the 
terms of our original agreement with Pontiac. Under the hourly approach outlined above, Wade Trim 
will bill the City only for the work performed, allowing the balance of the permit fee to be maintained 
in the Building Safety fund. This provides cost recovery for us, continued outstanding service for City 
residents and businesses, and improved service to the Amazon team. 

Proposed Staffing Plan 

• Project Director/Supervisor: David Moran - 12 hours per week 
• Project Administrative Support: Dan Kolbe - 8 hours per week 
• On-site Building Inspector/Official: Charlie Mcllhargey - 20 hours per week 
• Electrical Inspector: Time varies per month based on construction schedule 
• Mechanical Inspector; Time varies per month based on construction schedule 
• Plumbing Inspector: Time varies per month based on construction schedule 

Additional staff necessitated by shifting current staff onto the Amazon project: 

• Customer Service Technician: Full-time 40 hours per week 

Proposed Amazon Staffing Plan: 

Position Individual Billable Rate 
Project Director & QA/QC David Moran $110/Hr 
On-Site Building Inspector Charlie Mcllhargey $81/Hr 
Electrical Inspector TBD/Paul Cimeot $105/Hr 
Mechanical Inspector TBD $105/Hr 
Plumbinq Inspector TBD $105/Hr 
Project Administrative Suooort Dan Kolbe $75/Hr 
Customer Service Staff TBD $60/Hr 

We also discussed the possibility of creating an internship or job shadowing program as a part of this 
project. Technical inspection work typically requires considerable experience in the trades; however, 
we can work with the Jobs Pipeline to create job shadowing opportunities, particularly on this project. 
We will also work with the General Contractor and Subcontractors to encourage internships in 
partnership with the Pontiac Jobs Pipeline program. Additionally, Wade Trim has a summer internship 
program and we would welcome the opportunity to work with the Jobs Pipeline program to try and 
attract summer interns from Pontiac. 

We look forward to discussing our staffing proposal with you at your earliest convenience. 

Very truly yours, 

Wade Trim Associates, Inc. 

c:32?7 
Chip F. Smith, AICP 
Project Principal 

CFS:ka 
PON 7000-20D 
Amazon Staff Prop Ltr -Add'! Fees.docx 

cc: Deputy Mayor Jane Bais-DiSessa 



City of Pontiac 

January 17, 2020 

Page 3 

Wade Trim and the City of Pontiac agree to the proposed staffing plan for the Amazon construction 
project through June 30, 2021, pursuant to Section 3.2.2 of the Contract between the City and Wade 
Trim which states: 

For all building projects in excess of $1 million in construction value, the Contractor will 
prepare a proposal of additional staff and resources needed to adequately service that 
project for approval of additional fees by the City Finance Director. 

For the City of Pontiac: 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

For Wade Trim: 

/Shawt,W Keough, PE 
Senior Vice President 

Date 

January 17, 2020 
Date 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Cc: 

RE: 

Honorable Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

February 6, 2020 

Mayor Waterman, Anthony Chubb, City Attorney: Charles Smith, Wade Trim; 
and Irwin Williams, Interim Finance Director 

Resolution to authorize the Mayor to negotiate with and enter into an 
additional service agreement with Wade trirn as outlined in their letter 
dated January 16, 2020. 

The construction value of the Amazon project is approximately $271.6 million, and 
accordance with the City's current contract with Wade Trim, Section 3.2.2, "For all 
building projects in excess of $ 7 million in construction value, the Contractor will 
prepare a proposal of additional staff and resources needed to adequately service that 
project for approval of additional fees by the City Finance Director. 

Based on the construction schedule and phasing plan submitted by Clayco, the estimated 
cost for inspection, review and project administration fees is 965,000 for the Amazon 
project. Again, using the hourly approach described in the attached letter from Wade Trim, 
fees will only be billed to the City as the inspection work is performed. This approach allows 
only time spent on Amazon specific activities to be billed to this project and presents a 
significant opportunity for savings to the City should the anticipated level of staffing not be 
required for the project, but provides the flexibility for additional staffing should it be 
required. 

As such, for your consideration, the following resolution is recommended: 

Whereas, the construction of the two Amazon facilities is anticipated to be completed in 18 
months, and; 

Whereas, the simultaneous phasing of the two facilities (distribution and fulfillment), 
necessitates an accelerated inspection program to ensure safe construction and facilities that 
meet all building codes, and; 

Whereas, meeting the construction schedule will require on-site inspectors during much of 
the construction, and; 



Whereas, the City's contract with Wade Trim states that "for all building projects in excess of 
$ 7 million in construction value, Wade Trim will prepare a proposal of additional staff and 
resources needed to adequately service that project for approval of additional fees by the 
City Finance Director': and; 

Whereas, the Building Permit fees for the two facilities is $7,670,300, and; 

Whereas, State Law requires all building permit fees to cover the costs of performing 
inspections and administering the department, and; 

Whereas, the Building Safety Department needs to be able to respond to other inspection 
and permit requests a timely manner by providing trade inspections within 72 hours of a 
request and building inspections within 48 hours as best possible,· and; 

Whereas, the additional demands of the Amazon construction will necessitate the hiring of 
additional inspection staff to ensure that the both citizens of Pontiac and the Amazon 
construction team will continue to receive timely inspections and permits; 

Therefore, be it resolved that the Mayor is authorized to negotiate and enter into an 
additional service agreement with Wade time as outlined in their letter dated January 76, 
2020. 

JBD 

Attachment 



I 
r 



~ 
I 



01/28/2020 02:14 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date Check Vendor 

Bank BOND FIFTH THIRD BOND ACCOUNT 

Check Type: Paper Check 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

12666 
12667 
12668 
12669 
12670 

12671 

12672 
12673 

BOND TOTALS: 

Total of 8 Checks: 
Less O Void Checks: 

Total of 8 Disbursements: 

Bank CONS CONSOLIDATED 

10002889 
BOND 
BOND 
BOND 
BOND 

00002208 

BOND 
BOND 

Check Type:. EFT Transfer 

01/21/2020 684 (E) 10004301 

Check Type: Paper Check 

01/21/2020 526685 10003843 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/20/2020 - 01/24/2020 

Vendor Name 

50th District Court 
ALLESHA WALTON 
JULIOUS SMITH 
LEONARD MAURICE IRWIN 
MARTIN WHITE 

OAKLAND COUNTY CLERK 

RELIABLE AUTO FINANCE 
SILOS CHRISTIAN BELL 

PNC Bank 

Advanced Disposal Services 

Invoice Number 

190S34938B A 
191571SM R 
181478670N R 
181492250N R 
13166926LT E 

191350FY C 
191538FY C 
191363FY C 

191086GC R 
180S18572A R 

Total For 01/24/2020: 

Total Paper Check: 

20Winter50285 
251050-0901 
934700051232 
Guest# 12603 
Acct#51916427 
68226381407 
#68227852392 
Order 530373 
12/13/2020 
700096500 
44891 

Total For 01/21/2020: 

Total EFT Transfer: 

V20002248278 

Page: 

Amount 

100.00 
250.00 
560.00 
600.00 

65.00 

5,000.00 
500.00 

5,000.00 

10,500.00 

20.00 
60.00 

12,155.00 

12,155.00 

12,155.00 
0.00 

12,155.00 

950.00 
25.50 

207.41 
305.30 
199.80 

30.00 
30.00 

441. 96 
60.15 

214.96 
137.83 

2,602.91 

2,602.91 

2,602.91 

221,233.26 

1/7 

Status 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 



01/28/2020 02:14 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

01/21/2020 

01/21/2020 

01/21/2020 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

Check 

526686 

526687 

526688 

526689 
526690 

526691 

526692 
526693 
526694 
526695 

526696 

526697 

526698 
526699 

526700 

526701 

Vendor 

10000449 

10004381 

10004140 

10003879 
REFUND BD 

00000050 

00000050 
00000050 
00000050 
10002333 

00000119 

00001156 

10004200 
00001244 

00001244 

00000206 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/20/2020 - 01/24/2020 

Vendor Name 

Nichols Heating & Cooling 

Invoice Number 

9002 
9003 
9048 

North American Construction Ent.LLCApplication #5 
Application #6 

Techniserve Inc. 39650 

Total For 01/21/2020: 

Amazon.com LLC 19D9-R17V-77MM TaxEx 
Andy's Statewide Heating & Cooling R#210981 

AT & T 

AT & T 
AT & T 
AT & T 
Auto Value - APC Store 

Bostick Truck Center, LLC 

C&S Motors, Inc. 

Casar Management LC 
Comcast Cablevision 

Comcast Cablevision 

Consumers Energy 

8310007501007-0120 
8310007527298-0120 

248857561201-2020 
250472140-0120 
287269014755xll720 
642782-313 

122110 
122111 

FP189034 
FP189461 
FP189464 
FP189540 
FS82626 

20-0003 
825-903542484-0220 

825-946958-0120 
110-1037575-0120 
6180-214665-0120 
47450-862478-0120 

10-95261074-0120 
52-96422630-0120 
70-96511412-0120 
110-98711686-0120 
216-97012165-0120 
216-97012719-0120 
350-96873280-0120 
825-97397342-0120 
990-96288609-0120 
47450-96189951-0120 

Page: 

Amount 

34,490.00 
35,280.00 
2,893.00 

72, 663 .. 00 

190,757.85 
129,446.91 

320,204.76 

530.00 

614,631.02 

84 .11 
75.00 

1,294.90· 
221.00 

1,515.90 

3,541.04 
83.33 

985.19 
49.35 

5,276.00 
5,485.00 

10,761.00 

291.05 
442.47 

8.49 
735.02 

9,086.69 

10,563.72 

3,203.00 
327.53 

322.84 
174..35 
316.45 
125.79 

939.43 

14.00 
647.33 

1,982.43 
1,924.64 

133. 96 
142.04 

25 .. 81 
3,578.58 

911.44 
2,493.90 

2/7 

Status 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open. 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 



01/28/2020 02:14 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

Check 

526702 

526703 

526704 

526705 

526706 

526707 
526708 

526709 

526710 

526711 

526712 

Vendor 

10004156 

10004243 

00001299 

10004419 

00001310 

00013016 
10002659 

10004182 

10004085 

00001649 

10001885 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/20/2020 - 01/24/2~20 

Vendor Name 

Covenant Cemetery Services, Inc. 

Creative Schools Management, LLC 

Culligan of Ann Arbor/ Detroit 

Cygnus Systems, Inc. 

D/A Central, Inc. 

Des Moines Stamp Mfg. Co. 
George W. Auch Company 

Invoice Number 

50955R-50965R 
60309R 

February 2020 

577649 
584281 

361135 
361352 

64626 
64725 

1157249 
35957 

Great Lakes Power & Lighting, Inc 19643 
19660 
19661 
19662 
19663 
19664 
19665 
19666 
19668 
19669 
19670 
19671 
19672 
19684 
19685 

Harlan Electric Company 

Home Depot/Comm. Credit 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 

1109694 

2021529 
3971658 
6022174 

175677 
175678 
175 67 3 
175679 
175670 
175 671 
175676 

Page: 

. Amount 

11,854.13 

6,500.00 
388.80 

6,888.80 

26,000.00 

116.74 
15.50 

132.24 

5,306.50 
402.50 

5,709.00 

917.40 
442.50 

1,359.90 

71. 00 
27,181.80 

43,125.58 
1,127.39 

719. 65 
8,674.75 
9,936.69 
4,772.75 
1,862.45 
4,874.65 
3,737.55 

847.05 
819.76 

1,631.25 
683.76 

1,917.18 
4,389.10 

89,119.56 

1,806.90 

54.16 
108.54 

11. 40 

174.10 

748.50 
1,016.94 

667.74 
58.50 

655.50 
11,373.78 

589.95 

3/7 

Status 

Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 



01/28/2020 02:14 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

Check 

526713 

526714 
526715 
526716 
526717 

526718 

52 6719 
52 6720 
526721 
526722 

526723 

526724 

526725 
526726 

526727 

526728 
526729 
526730 
526731 
526732 
526733 

Vendor 

10000960 

00013185 
10003930 
REFUND DEP 
00012978 

00002044 

00002068 
10003957 
10003912 
10004048 

10001088 

00002197 

00002221 
00002217 

00002229 

10003730 
10000078 
REFUND DEP 
10003275 
00011236 
REFUND DEP 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/20/2020 - 01/24/2020 

Vendor Name 

Iron Mountain Incorporated 

Kristel Group, Inc. 
Leslie Tire Services, Inc. 
Loucresha Fair 
Meadowbrook,Inc. 

Michigan Municipal League 

Invoice Number 

202044119 
CHKY070 
CHKY213 
CHKY222 

7784 
3090110 
R#81806-226601 
3559 

20678 
20682 
20690 

Miller Canfield Paddock & Stone,PLC1459791 
Mona Storm - Storm Reporting January 19, 2020 
Monaghan, P.C. 32627 
Nation Home Improvement 0113 - 1/11-13/20 

Nelco Supply Co. 

Nowak & Fraus, PLLC 

10096526 
10096619 
10096623 
10096726 
10096727 
10096785 

101885 
101887 
101889 
102361 
102362 
102364 
102365 
102697 
102699 
102700 

Oakland County Executive Office 
Oakland County Legal News 

1/29/2019 
1705704 

Oakland County Road Commission 

Oakland Cty Assoc of Assesing 
Occupational HealthCenters of 
Pogoda Management Co. 
Power Plan - AIS Construction 
Precise MRM LLC 
R J Hoffman Management, Inc. 

110633 
110100 

OfficFebruary 11, 
MI PC 7130 64 05 7 

R#213388 
Y64459 
200-1023894 
R#222983 

2020 

Page: 

Amount 

15,110.91 

303.16 
293.08 
224.93 
313.57 

1,134.74 

4,675.00 
205.00 
100.00 

3,799.50 

160.92 
76.44 
69:36 

306.72 

38,815.02 
250.00 

1,876.68 
3,850.00 

27.20 
127.70 

67.40 
94_ 10 
16.80 

9.00 

342.20 

9,320.00 
22,880.0·0 
1,599.00 
2,542.00 

17,680.00 
2,076.00 
1,230.00 

12,948.00 
2,858.50 
1,886.00 

75,019.50. 

240.00 
93.80 

181.93 
110.12 

292.05 

40.00 
130.50 

6,116.22 
1,033.73 

150.00 
500.00 

4/7 

Status 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 



01/28/2020 02:14 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

Check 

526734 

526735 
526736 

526737 

526738 

526739 

Vendor 

10001111 

00012896 
REFUND DEP 

10004173 

10004173 

00012256 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/20/2020 - 01/24/2020 

Vendor Name 

R. J. Hoffman Mgmt. Inc. 

Inv0ice Number 

100955 
100956 
100971 

Rehmann Group, LLC RR558996 
Robert Schiedel R#81801-226393 

Seasonal Property Maintenance LLC 1754 
1815 
1817 
1818 
1820 
1821 
1822 
1823 
1825 
1826 
1827 
1828 
1829 
1830 
1831 
1832 
1834 
1836 
1837 
1838 
1839 
1840 
1842 
1843 
1851 
1852 
1853 
1854 
1855 
1856 
1857 
1858 
1859 
1860 
1861 
1862 
1863 
1864 
1865 
1866 
1867 
1835 

VOID 

Staples Business Advantage 8056806129-433791659 
8056806129-433791660 
8056806129-433791661 
8056806129-433791662 

Page: 

Amount 

2,990.00 
1,500.00 
3,200.00 

7,690.00 

9,000.00 
100.00 

300.00 
600.00 
750.00 
150.00 

75.00 
75.00 

900.00 
75.00 
75.00 
37.50 

600.00 
600.00 
249.00 

1,387.50 
61. 05 
46.25 

450.00 
750.00 

75.00 
300.00 

50.00 
416.25 
100.00 

75.00 
300.00 
222.00 
249.00 
277.50 
185.00 
249.00 

37.00 
355.00 
355.00 
249.00 
249.00 
355.00 
575.00 
249.00 
575.00 
575.00 
355.00 
450.00 

14,059.05 

846.40 
147.54 

67.98 
271.1 7 

1,333.09 

V 

5/7 

Stat;us 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open' 
Open 
Open 



01/28/2020 02:14 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

01/24/2020 
01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

01/24/2020 

Check 

526740 
526741 

526742 

526743 

CONS TOTALS: 

Total of 60 Checks: 
Less 1 Void Checks: 

Total of 59 Disbursements: 

Vendor 

00002682 
00002773 

10003813 

REFUND DEP 

Vendor Name 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/20/2020 - 01/24/2020 

Invoice Number 

TestAmerica Laboratories, Inc. 1900003954 
United States Conference Of Mayors 48154 Membership 

Water Resource Commissioner 

Wesley Cowart 

440-80918-08-1219 
990-78699-00-1219 

R#81799-225304 

Total For 01/24/2020: 

Total Paper Check: 

Bank COURT FIFTH THIRD-COURT OPERATING 

Check Type: Paper Check 

01/24/2020 7958 00000050 AT & T 248857950101 
01/24/2020 7959 10000593 Bromberg & Associates 14044 
01/24/2020 7960 10000511 DATA LEGAL 24804 
01/24/2020 7961 00010530 DELUXE SMALL BUSINESS SALES, INC. 02046587884 
01/24/2020 7962 10004110 Eric Adam Nissani 190S42712A I 
01/24/2020 7963 00013185 Kristel Group, Inc. 7783 
01/24/2020 7964 10003872 LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES 333114 
01/24/2020 7965 00002483 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS 30853691 
01/24/2020 7966 10004185 Shari Morton 112 
01/24/2020 7967 00010900 Shred-It USA LLC 8128946494 

01/24/2020 7968 10000944 Stella Reyes 180S00974A I 
200005FY I 
200005FY I 
1915570M I 

Total For 01/24/2020: 

Total Paper Check: 

COURT TOTALS: 

Total of 11 Checks: 
Less O Void Checks: 

Total of 11 Disbursements: 

REPORT TOTALS: 
Total of 79 Checks: 

Page: 

Amount 

6,098.50 
5,269.00 

345.60 
413. 36 

758.96 

100.00 

400,916.20 

-1,015,547.22 

1,018,150.13 
0.00 

1,018,150.13 

32 .13 
455.48 

1,081.54 
674.70 

91. 85 
2,936.00 

140.00 
49.00 

150.00 
953.32 

73.00 
70.00 
70.00 
73. 00, ---

286.00 

6,850.02 

6,850.02 

6,850.02 
0.00 

6,850.02 

1,037,155.15 

6/7 

Status 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 



01/28/2020 02:14 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date Check 

Less 1 Void Checks: 

Total of 78 Disbursements: 

Vendor Vendor Name 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/20/2020 - 01/24/2020 

Invoice Number 

Page: 

Amount 

0.00 

1,037,155.15 

7 /7 

Status 



- ~1-20 

h gister 



02/05/2020 02:55 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date Check Vendor 

Bank BOND FIFTH THIRD BOND ACCOUNT 

Check Type: Paper Check 

01/31/2020 12674 10002889 

01/31/2020 12675 BOND 

01/31/2020 12676 BOND 

01/31/2020 12677 BOND 

01/31/2020 12678 BOND 

01/31/2020 12679 BOND 

01/31/2020 12680 BOND 
01/31/2020 12681 BOND 

01/31/2020 12682 00002208 

01/31/2020 12683 BOND 
01/31/2020 12684 BOND 
01/31/2020 12685 BOND 

BOND TOTALS: 
Total of 12 Checks: 
Less O Void Checks: 

Total of 12 Disbursements: 

Bank CONS CONSOLIDATED 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/25/2020 - 01/31/2020 

Vendor Name Invoice Number 

50th District Court 190S40275B A 
161418760M 109, 
130S24338A 10% 
160S12722A 10% 
181466420M A 
171470380M A 
190S35534A A 

ANGELA CLARK 1918340M R 

CHRISTINA LEWIS 180Sl3034A R 
190S923SM R 
170Sl7337A R 

EARNESTINE SELLERS 161418760M R 
130S24338A R 
160Sl2722A R 

JASON KATZ 1/10/20 

JIMMY LEE WARD 190S40275A R 
190S40275B R 

KEIMOUIA RIKI-RASHON GOODE 171466700M R 
NICHOLE BURTON 170S27452A R 

OAKLAND COUNTY CLERK 191636FY C 
1873849FY C 

QUINSHUN DEMOND-MCKINLEY LEE 181466420M R 
ROSETA GUY 1919099SM R 
TAYLOR RAYMONDE WALKER 191630FY R 

Total For 01/31/2020: 

Total Paper Check: 

Page: 1/7 

Amount Status 

175.00 Open 
7.50 Open 
7.50 Open 
7.50 Open 

870.00 Open 
210.00 Open 

60.00 Open 

1,337.50 

100.00 Open 

100.00 Open 
250.00 Open 
100.00 Open 

450.00 

67.50 Open 
67.50 Open 
67.50 Open 

202.50 

20.00 Open 

100.00 Open 
20.00 Open 

120.00 

40.00 Open 
250.00 Open 

200.0D Open 
3,000.00 Open 

3,200.00 

131.00 Open 
500.00 Open 
250.00 Op~n 

6,601.00 

6,601.00 

6,601.00 
0.00 

6,601.00 



02/05/2020 02:55 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date Check Vendor 

Check Type: EFT Transfer 

01/28/2020 685(E) 10003750 

Check Type: Paper Check 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

526744 
526745 
526746 
526747 
526748 

526749 

526750 
526751 

526752 

526753 

526754 
526755 

526756 

526757 

526758 
526759 

526760 

10004307 
10004313 
10004050 
10004324 
10003879 

10004305 

10004326 
10004322 

00000050 

10004207 

00000113 
00000119 

10003919 

10003781 

JUROR 
10004416 

00010597 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/25/2020 - 01/31/2020 

Vendor Name Invoice Number 

WMHIP-W Michigan Health 8890 February 2020 

Total For 01/28/2020: 

Total EFT Transfer: 

A & D Animal Control 10999 
ADT-Protection One Alarm Monitorin,132585137-0120 
Alfred Benesch & Company 149654 
Amanda McBride 
Amazon.com LLC 

Arneena Razia Shei·kh 

Arny M. Hopp 
Animal Xtractors 

AT & T 

Belem Morales Law Office 

Bobbie Jean Yates 
Bostick Truck Center, LLC 

Brittany Anne Costello 

Bruce E. Crossman 

Calopisis, Sheliah 
Carie L Seib 

Charesa D. Johnson 

McBride,A. 1/17/20 
16QT-LFVR-CX9W 

1/13/20 AM 
1-14-20 AM 
9/24/19 191034SM 
11/12/19 1873746SM 

1/22/20 PM 
365 

8310005335294-0120 
8310005335298-0120 

-1/14/20 PM 
10/8/19 190934SM 

December 10, 2019 
246304 

1/14/20 PM 
1/10/2020 PM 

1/4/20 1916450M 
1/4/20 1917180M 
1/6/20 1916180M 
1/6/20 1916940M 
1/6/20 191940M 
1/13/20 PM 
1/16/20 AM 

Calopisis,S. 0120 
1/21/20 PM 

1/6/20 19-0925-SD 
1/16/20 PM 

Page: 

Amount 

33,267.54 

33,267.54 

33,267.54 

375.00 
49.95 

8,016.51 
240.00 

74.78 

240.00 
240.00 
40.00 
40.00 

560.00 

240.00 
250.00 

2,231.30 
1,738.95 

3,970.25 

240.00 
240.00 

480.00 

100.00 
1,000.00 

240.00 
240.00 

480.00 

24.00 
75.00 
75. oci 
24.00 
56.00 

240.00 
240.00 

734.00 

45.80 
80.00 

13. 60 
240.00 

253.60 

2/7 

Status 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open· 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 



02/05/2020 02:55 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

Check 

526761 
526762 

526763 

526764 
526765 
526766 
526767 
526768 

526769 

526770 
526771 

526772 

526773 
526774 
526775 
526776 
526777 

526778 

526779 

526780 

526781 

526782 
526783 
526784 
526785 

Vendor 

00001244 
00000206 

10004348 

10003084 
10000127 
JUROR 
JUROR 
REFUND DEP 

10004332 

10004397 
10004306 

10004088 

10004308 
10004164 
10004424 
10004398 
10003867 

00013036 

10004417 

00000436 

10000009' 

00001591 
10000170 
10003261 
00001652 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/25/2020 - 01/31/2020 

Vendor Name 

Comcast Cablevision 
Consumers Energy 

Cory Westmoreland 

Curbco, Inc. 
Delta Dental of Michigan 
Dixon-Johnson, Muriel 
Donalson, Christine 
Donnetra McGhee 

Edith Blakney Law Firm, PLLC 

Empyrean Benefit Solutions, Inc. 
Erika D. Morgan Law, PLLC 

Invoice Number 

52-0812853-0220 
6180-96321407-0120 

1/15/20 AM 
12/17/19 190995SM 

52133 
RIS0002615292 
Dixon-Johnson,M 
Donalson,C. 0120 
R#81801-226319 

1/6/2'0 1917480M 
1/10/20 AM 
1/23/20 1910850M 
12/3/19 190138SM 
12/11/19 1917190M 

SINV10008516 
1/9/20 FD 

Fidelity Security Life Insurance Ccl64205532 
164208079 
164204917 

Forster Vine Rochester Auto Wash 
Frank Benion Jr 
Frederick Pruitt 
Gary Ashton 
George J. Hartman Architects, P.C. 

Giarmarco, Mullins & Horton, P.C. 

Gonzalez Law, PLLC 

Gracey Law Firm, PLLC 

Great Lakes Auto Superstore LLC 

193 
0125202021 
0125202025 
0125202020 
20-001 

93194-016B-100 
93194-067B-10 
93194-000B-101 
93194-074B-l 
93194-070B-6 
93194-057B-63 
93194-069B-6 
93194-073B-l 

1/7/20 PM 
1/16/20 PM 

1/14/20 AM 

February 2020 
2019-11&12 WRC 

Guardian Alarm Company of Michigan 20703340-01 
Harold Harris December 10, 2019 
Hillarie F. Boettger, PLLC 1/21/20 AM 
Honigman Miller Schwartz & Cohn LL11542094 

Page: 

Amount 

285.17 
516.22 

240.00 
200.00 

440.00 

20,940.96 
1,002.08 

45.80 
45.80 

100.00 

460.00 
240.00 
155.00 
720.00 

80.00 

1,655.00 

10,517.50 
480.00 

460.47 
170.62 
125.90 

756.99 

105.00 
75.00 

237.50 
75.00 

100.00 

29,121.54 
2,415.00 

18,040.00 
1,517.40 

237.50 
4,200.00 
6,675.00 

125.00 

62,331.44 . 
240.00 
240.00 

480.00 

240.00 

5,833.33 
323.62 

6,156.95 

134.24 
100.00 
240.00 

1,416.39 

3/7 

Status 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 



02/05/2020 02:55 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

Check 

526786 

526787 
526788 
526789 

526790 

526791 
526792 

526793 

526794 

526795 

526796 

526797 

526798 

526799 
526800 
526801 
526802 
526803 
526804 

Vendor 

10004337 

10004399 
10004163 
JUROR 

10003866 

JUROR 
10003942 

10004388 

10002474 

10003741 

00012690 

10003972 

00010223 

REFUND DEP 
JUROR 
10004400 
JUROR 
JUROR 
10004366 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/25/2020 - 01/31/2020 

Vendor Name 

Idurnesaro Law Firm, PLLC 

James M Huddleston 
John C. Bowie 
Johnson, Vera 

Kand Q Law, PC 

Keyes, Erin 
Law Office of D Ann Parker, PC 

Invoice Number 

1/7 /20 AM 
1/7/20 1873109SM 
12/20/19 191474SM 

0125202035 
012520207 
Johnson, V. 0120 

1/15/20 AM 
1/22/20 AM 
12/17/19 19-0376SM 
12/17/19 18-72956SM 
12/17/19 19-15290M 
12/29/19 19-18400M 
12/29/19 18-1480660M 
12/29/19 19-16110M 

Keyes,E. 0120 
1/10/20 PM 

Law Office of Christophen R Shemke 1/16/20 AM 
11/20/19 1917960M 
12/19/19 191595SM 

Law offices of Moneka L. Sanford Pil/21/20 PM 

Law Offices of Nadine R.Hatten,PLLCl/15/20 AM 
1/21/20 PM 

Law Offices of Paulette Michel, PLil/17/20 PM 

Linda D. Watson 

Lisa C Watkins Law Office 

Lisa Holland 
Lor, Jenny 
Lucetry Dalton 
Manni, Marion 
Mason, Charles 
MGM Legal, PLLC 

2145 - NOV 2019 

December 10, 2019 

1/7/20 19-1416SD 
1/9/20 AM 
1/22/20 PM 
10/15/19 19-1314SM 
12/3/19 19-0594SM 
12/3/19 18-73088SM 
12/5/19 18-73088SM M 
12/5/19 19-0594SM 
12/5/19 19-1314SM 
12/17/19 19-0771SM 

R#81804-226393 
Lor,J. 0120 
0125202019 
Manni, M 0120 
Mason,C. 0120 
1/15/20 PM 

Page: 

Amount 

240.00 
75.00 

262.00 

577.00 

118.75 
75.00 
45.80 

240.00 
240.00 
440.00 
440.00 

80.00 
75.00 
75.00 
75.00 

1,665.00 

91. 20 
240.00 

240.00 
40.00 
40.00 

320.00 

240.00 

240.00 
240.00 

480.00 

240.00 
3,750.00 

3,990.00 

100.00 

40.00 
240.00. 
240.00 

75.00 
360.00 

60.00 
40.00 
20.00 

200.00 
440.00 

1,715.00 

100.00 
91. 2·0 

150.00 
91. 20 
38.30 

240.00 

4/7 

Status 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

.. Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 



02/05/2020 02:55 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

Check 

526805 
526806 

526807 

526808 

526809 

526810 
526811 
526812 
526813 
526814 
526815 
526816 
526817 

526818 

526819 
526820 
526821 

526822 

526823 

526824 

Vendor 

00002024 
10003957 

00010549 

10004329 

00002217 

10000078 
JUROR 
10004395 
10004426 
10004007 
JUROR 
JUROR 
00013067 

10003760 

00002548 
JUROR 
JUROR 

00013050 

00012256 

00000773 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/25/2020 - 01/31/2020 

Vendor Name 

Michigan Dept. of Transportation 
Mona Storm - Storm Reporting 

Mutual of Omaha Insurance Company 

Nachawati Law, PLLC 

Oakland County Legal News 

Invoice Number 

MDOT-00279-010520 
January 21, 2020 

1038552318 
1050877965-022020 

1/3/20 PM 
1/13/20 PM 

1706561 
1706562 
1706563 

Occupational HealthCenters 
Ojaruega, Emuobosan 
Pamar Enterprises, Inc 
Pauline J. Woll 

of MI PC713072969 
Ojaruega,E. 
Pay Est#2 
1/2/20 PM 

0120 

QRS Court Reporting, LLC 
Ratcliff, Denise 
Redder, Justin 
Scott C. Kozak, Attorney 

Scott's Lock & Key Shop 

Service Glass Co., Inc. 
Spears, Antionette 
Springer-McKinney, Aveyan 

Stacy A. Drouillard 

at Law 

Staples Business Advantage 

90602 
Ratcliff,D. 0120 
Redder,J 0120 
1/9/20 AM 

0992 
0995 

242238 
Spears,A. 
Springer-McK,A. 0120 

1/7/20 19-1603ST 
1/17/20 19-0153SM 
12/19/19 191484SM 

8056573938-431813744 
8056573938-431813747 
8056573938-431813747 
8057086401-436062787 
8057086401-436062788 
8057086401-436062789 
8057086401-436062790 
8057086401-436062791 
8057086401-436062794 
8057086401-436062795 
8057086401-436062797 
8057170896-436670340 
8057170896-436670342 
8057001242-435448405 
8057086401-436062792 

State of Michigan-Dept. License&Re,BLR439147 

Page: 

Amount 

140,714.76 
345.00 

9,247.20 
8,019.21 

17,266.41 

240.00 
240.00 

480.00 

93.80 
93.80 
93.80 

281. 40 

236.00 
91. 20 

505,227.45 
240.00 
800.00 

45.80 
45.80 

240.00 

69.50 
18.75 

88.25 

192.66 
45.80 
91.20 

88.00 
75.00 
72. 00 

235.00 

366.61 
282.58 

9.61 
80.97 

389.56 
31. 39 
58.45 
83.06 
41. 53 

138. 84 
48.39 
48.26 

708.87 
(158.96) 

(41.53) 

2,087.63 

250.00 

5/7 

Status 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 



02/05/2020 02:55 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

Check 

526825 
526826 
526827 
526828 
526829 
526830 
526831 
526832 

526833 

526834 

526835 

526836 
526837 
526838 

CONS TOTALS: 
Total of 96 Checks: 
Less O Void Checks: 

Total of 96 Disbursements: 

Vendor 

JUROR 
00000275 
JUROR 
REFUND DEP 
JUROR 
10003496 
JUROR 
JUROR 

00002832 

JUROR 

10004330 

REFUND DEP 
JUROR 
JUROR 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/25/2020 - 01/31/2020 

Vendor Name 

Sturgis, Doris 
The Law and Mediation Center PLLC 
Thompkins, Lakeisha 
Tiffany Williams 
Turner, Wendell 
United Lawnscape, Inc. 
Violante-Garcia, Juan 
Vue, Leann 

Waterford A Charter Township 

White, Millicent 

Wilkerson Law, PLLC 

William M. Taylor 
Williams, Erik 
Williams, Terrence 

Invoice Number 

Sturgis,D. 0120 
1/22/20 AM 
Thompkins,L. 0120 
R#81800-225678 
Wendell,T. 0120 
270272-270328 
Violante-G,J. 0120 
Vue, L. 0120 

348-5548109-1119 
348-96397916-1219 
348-69848-00-1219 

White, M. 0120 

1/2/20 18-73727SM 
1/13/20 AM 
12/10/19 191188SM 

R#81795-226029 
Williams, E. 0120 
Williams,T 0120 

Total For 01/31/2020: 

Total Paper Check: 

Bank COURT FIFTH THIRD-COURT OPERATING 

Check Type: Paper Check 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 
01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

01/31/2020 

7969 
7970 

7971 

7972 
7973 

7974 

7975 

10002889 
10004373 

10000511 

00001353 
00000407 

00001998 

10001573 

50th District Court 
Barbara Jill Palulian 

DATA LEGAL 

Detroit Elevator Co. 

190S28005A A 
1302020 

24852 
24876 
24863 

185537 
International Controls & Equipment,74865-E 

Michigan District Judges Assoc. 

Oakland Schools 

1518 
1383 
1445 

GR20012715890 

Page: 

Amount 

38.30 
240.00 

91. 20 
100.00 

45.80 
16,103.62 

45.80 
45.80 

272.21 
552.89 
345.60 

1,170.70 

91. 20 

66.40 
240.00 
293.60 

600.00 

100.00 
45.80 
45.so· 

823,563.76 

823,563.76 

856,831.30 
0.00 

856,831.30 

250.00 
150.00 

419.64 
876.66 

51. 04 

1,347.34 

285.00 
268.00 

225.00 
225.00 
225.00 

675.00 

102.46 

6/7 

Status 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 



02/05/2020 02:55 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date Check 

01/31/2020 7976 

01/31/2020 7977 
01/31/2020 7978 
01/31/2020 7979 
01/31/2020 7980 
01/31/2020 7981 

01/31/2020 7982 

01/31/2020 7983 

COURT TOTALS: 

Total of 15 Checks: 
Less O Void Checks: 

Total of 15 Disbursements: 

REPORT TOTALS: 
Total of 123 Checks: 
Less O Void Checks: 

Total of 123 Disbursements: 

Vendor 

00002244 

00000641 
00002316 
10001809 
00011582 
00012362 

10000944 

10004418 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 01/25/2020 - 01/31/2020 

Vendor Name 

OFFICE DEPOT 

Pitney Bowes Global Financial 
Pitney Bowes Inc 
RACHEL SEGUNA 
Renee Greer -Alvrez 
STAPLES CREDIT PLAN 

Stella Reyes 

Susan M Moiseev 

Invoice Number 

427582622001 
428136618001 
428148116001 
407330681001 

3310503932 
1212020 
12/12/19 
12/12/19 
2409222781 

200005FY I 
200S02184A I 
200S01046A i 
190805SM I 

MOISEEV 2020 

Total For 01/31/2020: 

Total Paper Check: 

Page: 

Amount 

80.97 
63.68 
23.97 

(39. 99) 

128.63 

400.05 
1,020.99 

86 .. 30 
86.30 

1,sss:2s 

73.00 
73.00 
70.00 
73.00 

289.00 

937.95 

7,882.30 

7,882.30 

7,882.30 
0.00 

7,882.30 

871,314.60 
0.00 

871,314.60 

7 /7 

Status 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 





02/11/2020 03:54 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date Check Vendor 

Bank BOND FIFTH THIRD BOND ACCOUNT 

Check Type: Paper Check 

02/07/2020 12686 10002889 

02/07/2020 12687 BOND 
02/07/2020 12688 BOND 
02/07/2020 12689 BOND 
02/07/2020 12690 BOND 
02/07/2020 12691 BOND 
02/07/2020 12692 BOND 
02/07/2020 12693 BOND 
02/07/2020 12694 BOND 
02/07/2020 12695 BOND 
02/07/2020 12696 BOND 
02/07/2020 12697 BOND 
02/07/2020 12698 BOND 
02/07/2020 12699 BOND 
02/07/2020 12700 00002208 
02/07/2020 12701 BOND 
02/07/2020 12702 BOND 
02/07/2020 12703 BOND 
02/07/2020 12704 BOND 

BOND TOTALS: 
Total of 19 Checks: 
Less 1 Void Checks: 

Total of 18 Disbursements: 

Bank CONS CONSOLIDATED 

Check Type: EFT Transfer 

02/05/2020 
02/05/2020 
02/05/2020 
02/05/2020 
02/05/2020 
02/05/2020 

686 (E) 
687(E) 
688 (E) 
689 (E) 
690 (E) 
69l(E) 

10004293 
00000603 
10003903 
00012890 
00012890 
00012890 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 02/01/2020 - 02/07/2020 

Vendor Name 

50th District Court 

ANTIONIO JOSEPH CARR 
AUSTIN KRALISZ 
CHARLES DAMONTE LEWIS 
CHRISTOPHER JOHN KASER 
CHRISTOPHER JOHN KASER 
EARNESTINE SELLERS 
EBONY MONEA-EVETTE HADEN 
FRANK SLAUGHTER 
GARY LEE RUDOLPH 
JAILA MARI JONES 
JASON NABIL BASHI 
LEMARR HUNT 
LINDA ELLEN OGADINMA 
OAKLAND COUNTY CLERK 
PREDRAG JANIC 
ROSETA GUY 
SHANICE EATON 
VICTORIA LOWISE ONEAL 

North Bay Drywall, Inc 
Oakland County Treasurer 
Pontiac Public Library 
Pontiac Schools 
Pontiac Schools 
Pontiac Schools 

Invoice Number 

2000130M A 
200085SM 10 9s 
1905330M A 
160S07622A 10% 
190S26097A A 
190922SM 10 9

0 

190S32505A A 
190S32505B A 
190S25455A A 

190922SM R 
200S00631A R 
2000520M R 
190S32505A R 
190S32505B R 
160S07622A R 
1905330M R 
200085SM R 
190S42172A R 
190S38295A R 
190S25455A R 
191380SMR 
190S41916A R 
1873989FY C 
200S01595A R 
1916870M R 
1918790M R 
180S42873D R 

Total For 02/07/2020: 

Total Paper Check: 

February 2020 
2019-1152020County 
2019-1152020Library 
2019-1152020MESSA 
2019-11520200peratin 
2019-1152020Sinking 

Page: 

Amount 

100.00 
50.00 

325.00 
7.50 

120.00 
5.00 

45.00 
45.00 

120.00 

817.50 

45.00 
10.00 

100.00 
243.00 
201.00 

67.50 
675.00 
450.00 

5.00 
3.00 

35.00 
600.00 
160.00 

6,500.00 
2.00 

500.00 
100.00 

91. 00 

10,605.00 

10,605.00 

10,605.00 
91. 00 

10,514.00 

14,552.69 
110,646.84 

1,560.17 
666.91 

16,977.53 
4,780.75 

V 

1/6 

Status 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 



02/11/2020 03:54 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date Check Vendor 

Check Type: Paper Check 

02/03/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

526839 

526840 

526841 

526842 

526843 

526844 

526845 
526846 
526847 
526848 

526849 

526850 

526851 
526852 
526853 
526854 
526855 

526856 

00002496 

10001957 

10003733 

10003879 

00000050 

10002333 

REFUND DEP 
00000097 
10000139 
00000119 

00001156 

00001244 

00013029 
10004383 
00001353 
00010679 
00000247 

00000247 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 02/01/2020 - 02/07/2020 

Vendor Name 

First Student, Inc. 

Ajax Materials Corporation 

Alliance Payment Solutions, Inc 

Amazon.com LLC 

AT & T 

Auto Value - APC Store 

Beatrice M. Howard 
Bell Equipment Company 
Bloomfield Township 
Bostick Truck Center, LLC 

C&S Motors, Inc. 

Comcast Cablevision 

Invoice Number 

Total For 02/05/2020: 

Total EFT Transfer: 

2/8/19 9:30-10:30 

Total For 02/03/2020: 

245388 
246240 
246433 
246486 
246511 
246512 

317916 - Jan 2020 

308273633 Sept2019 
379447781-Jan 2020 

80025874118-0220 

642782-313 
645485-313 
645769-313 
645824-313 

R#81484-222785 
163289 
2019-11520-425Agreem 
246474 

FP190459 
FP190781 

52-1022718-0220 
990-0878763-0220 

CompOne Administrators, Inc. 173515 
Dennis Thompson 1302020 
Detroit Elevator Co. 185869 
DLZ Michigan, Inc -Johnson&Andersorl41747 
DTE Energy 60-8830604-0120 

DTE Energy 52-7080527-0120 
70-4941404-0120 
216-7484267-0120 
435-7849547-0120 

Page: 

Amount 

149,184.89 

149,184.89 

310.00 

310.00 

148.24 
149.10 
184.68 
642.40 
905.30 
661.10 

2,690.82 

551.83 

161.86 
166.47 

328.33 

1,708.78 

49.35 
314.30 
224.85 
15.48 

603.98 

100.00 
2,000.00 

14,740.66 
450.00 

490.59 
33.96 

524.55 

261.32 
355.63 

616.95 

4,685.90 
315.00 
4 61. 7 4 
242.50 

9,914.69 

657.13 
2,410.20 

61.93 
64.74 

2/6 

Status 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 



02/11/2020 03:54 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

Check 

526857 

526858 

526859 

526860 

526861 

526862 

526863 

526864 

Vendor 

10004397 

10004182 

10003904 

00001624 

00001649 

10000136 

10001885 

00013185 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 02/01/2020 - 02/07/2020 

Vendor Name 

Empyrean Benefit Solutions, Inc. 

Invoice Number 

786-2776558-0120 
827-55434577917-0120 
827-7082417-0120 
6180-5436439-0120 
6180-5436464-0120 
990-7078596-0120 

SINV1000 92 64 

Great Lakes Power & Lighting, Inc 19608 
19610 10/4&7/l,9 
19611 
19612 
19613 
19614 
19615 
19616 
19617 
19618 
19619 
19620 
19621 
19622 

GreatLakes ContractingSolutions,LLC18-37-12 
18-37-13 

Hayden's Stearn Cleaning Service Inc01103 

Home Depot/Comm. Credit 

Howard E Nyhart Company Inc. 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 

Kristel Group, Inc. 

1124003 
4022230 
4023728 
5014503 
5014504 
5022112 
6023410 
6023411 

152801 

175672 
176350 
176352 
176353 
176354 
176356 
176357 
176358 

7779 CityHall 
7780 Sheriff Dept 
7781 

Page: 

Amount 

25.74 
88.67 

1,206.03 
·395.33 
775.40 
599.11 

6,284.28 

5,445.00 

1,528.33 
1,536.19 
4,628.65 
2,132.41 
4,329.35 
1,579.87 

878.24 
1,177.89 
1,359.32 

511.27 
664.00 

3,442.79 
8,340.49 
3,112.47 

35,221.27 

111,005.52 
5,000.00 

116,005.52 

1,100.00 

35.61 
23.16 
29.97 
31.97 
40.55 

131.76 
154.00 

8.91 

455.93 

1,350.00 

5,306.15 
1,029.95 
4,044.15 

206.76 
316.79 

2,377.14 
58.50 

477.26 

13,816.70 

3,902.00 
4,465.00 
1,551.00 

3/6 

Status 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 



02/11/2020 03:54 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

Check 

526865 

526866 

526867 

526868 
526869 

526870 

526871 

526872 

Vendor 

10003930 

10004302 

10001088 

00002197 
00000596 

10003740 

10004173 

10003769 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 02/01/2020 - 02/07/2020 

Vendor Name 

Leslie Tire Services, Inc. 

Invoice Number 

7782 RuthPeterson 
7785 

3090150 
3090288 

Michigan AssociationofCode Enforce-3/11-13/2020 

Nelco Supply Co. 10097061 
10097308 
10097310 
10097504 
10097734 
10097735 
10097796 
10097797 
10097798 

Nowak & Fraus, PLLC 102695 
NTH Consultants, Ltd 621299 

Oakland Strategies Group 338 
339 

Seasonal Property Maintenance LLC 1876 
1877 
1878 
1879 
1880 
1881 
1883 
1884 
1885 
1886 
1887 
1888 
1889 
1890 
1891 
1892 
1893 
1894 
1895 
1896 
1897 

Service Heating & Plumbing Corp 1911006 
1912012 
1912023 

Page: 

Amount 

574.25 
1,985.00 

12,477.25 

255.00 
255.00 

510.00 

600.00 

133.80 
842.46 
842.76 
199.00 

46.00 
46.00 
50.40 
61.40 

175.70 

2,397.52 

2,599.50 
18,589.76 

225.00 
1,527.50 

1,752.50 

3,004.00 
525.00 
750.00 
750.00 

75.00 
75.00 

375.00 
150.00 
249.00 
249.00 
249.00 
300.00 
355.00 
875.00 
875.00 
875.00 
249.00 
249.00 
355.00 
725. 00 
875.00 

12,184.00 

2,001.49 
988.24 

1,296.35 

4,286.08 

4/6 

Status 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 



02/11/2020 03:54 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date 

02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 

02/07/2020 

Check 

526873 
526874 
526875 
526876 

526877 

526878 
526879 

526880 

CONS TOTALS: 
Total of 48 Checks: 
Less O Void Checks: 

Total of 48 Disbursements: 

Vendor 

REFUND DEP 
00011704 
00002630 
REFUND DEP 

10004423 

EMP. REIMB 
00010664 

10003813 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 02/01/2020 - 02/07/2020 

Vendor Name 

Sheryl Williams 
Spencer Oil Company 
State of Michigan 
Toynisha Green 

Trane U.S., Inc. 

Invoice Number 

R#81810-227478 
1936501-012300 
2019-1152020SET 
R#81809-227195 

310413782 
310416274 

Troy Craft Craft,T 12/7/19 
Truck & Trailer Specialties, Inc. HS0006531 

Water Resource Commissioner 10-80898-00-0120 
52-69413-00-0120 
70-81022-00-0120 
70-81023-00-0120 
110-81011-00-0120 
216-80908-00-0120 
825-80806-02-0120 
47450-81007-00-0120 
440-80918-08-0120 
990-78699-00-0120 

Total For 02/07/2020: 

Total Paper Check: 

Bank COURT FIFTH THIRD-COURT OPERATING 

Check Type: Paper Check 

02/07/2020 
02/07/2020 

7984 
7985 

COURT TOTALS: 
Total of 2 Checks: 
Less O Void Checks: 

Total of 2 Disbursements: 

Bank PAYR PNC PARKING 

00000603 
00000776 

Oakland County Treasurer 
State Of Mich/Treasury 

JANUARY 2020 
JANUARY 2020 

Total For 02/07/2020: 

Total Paper Check: 

Page: 

Amount 

100.00 
3,533.42 

11. 33 
100.00 

1,175.00 
971. 00 

2,146.00 

36.19 
635.45 

43.20 
283.76 
82 6. 72 

43.20 
921. 5 9 
114. 79 

1,147.76 
1,351.04 

345.60 
345.60 

5,423.26 

286,996.69 

287,306.69 

436,491.58 
0.00 

436,491.58 

18,219.39 
64,557.25 

82,776.64 

82,776.64 

82,776.64 
0.00 

82,776.64 

5/6 

Status 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Open 
Open 



02/11/2020 03:54 PM 
User: JPETERS 
DB: Pontiac 

Check Date Check Vendor 

Check Type: EFT Transfer 

02/05/2020 55 (E) 10003892 

PAYR TOTALS: 

Total of 1 Checks: 
Less O Void Checks: 

Total of 1 Disbursements: 

Bank PNCMM PNC MONEY MARKET 

Check Type: EFT Transfer 

02/05/2020 146 (E) 00013053 

PNCMM TOTALS: 
Total of 1 Checks: 
Less O Void Checks: 

Total of 1 Disbursements: 

REPORT TOTALS: 
Total of 71 Checks: 
Less 1 Void Checks: 

Total of 70 Disbursements: 

Vendor Name 

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
CHECK DATE FROM 02/01/2020 - 02/07/2020 

Invoice Number 

Pontiac Downtown Business Assoc IncJanuary 2020 

Total For 02/05/2020: 

Total EFT Transfer: 

City of Pontiac 2019-1152020TD 

Total For 02/05/2020: 

Total EFT Transfer: 

Page: 

Amount 

5,010.00 

5,010.00 

5,010.00 

5,010.00 
0.00 

5,010.00 

88,228.90 

88,228.90 

88,228.90 

88,228.90 
0.00 

88,228.90 

623,112.12 
91. 00 

623,021.12 

6/6 

Status 

Open 

Open 


	20200228103000605
	20200228103117224
	20200228103247409

